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MISSION

Te manage a financlally stable social security system which shall
promote social justice through savings, and provide meaningful
protection and exemplary service to members and their families.

VISION

Aviable social security institution providing universal and
aquitable social protection through world-class service,
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555 @ YOUR FINGERTIPS:
H! CONNECT AND PROTECT

The Social Security System (SSS) commits to fulfill its objective
of promoting the welfare of its members and their beneficiaries
by improving access to quality social protection through
digital transformation. Thus, the affirmation,

“SSS @ YOUR FINGERTIPS: WE CONNECT AND PROTECT.”
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QUICK FACTS

MEMBERS' INVESTMENT AND
CONTRIBUTIONM OTHER INCOME
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COMPARATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

{amounts in Million Pesos)

FOR THE YEAR
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Assets
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Property and Equipment
Others
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SOCIAL SECURITY FUND'
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Revenues
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Investment and Other Income
Expenditures
Benefit Payments
Operating Expenses
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Investments
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Others
Liabilities
Reserves
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EMPLOYEES' COMPENSATION AND STATE INSURANCE FUND
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MESSAGE FROM THE

PHILIPPINE PRESIDENT

MALACANAN PALACE

MANILA

y warmest greetings to the Social Security System (S55) on the publication
of its 2019 Annual Report.

The year 2012 marked a period of transition in $55 history with the passage into law of the

Sccial Security Act of 2018, Through this landmark legislation, the long-term viability of the
555 is ensured and its programs are made more responsive to its members’ needs,

The significant change was coupled with a 21% surge in the contribution collection
amounting to P220 billien, as well as a 2% increase in benefit payments worth P197 billion.
As we look forward to the future, | ask you to remain steadfast in your mandate of providing
social protection to over 38 million members against the hazards of disability, sickness,
maternity, old age, death, and now including unemployment.

While so much has been achieved over the last year, may you also rise to the challenge of
going full speed ahead, especially in delivering prompt and efficient service to our people.
I trust that you will remain steeped in the culture of excellence and committed to the
improved welfare of every hardworking Filiping, here and abroad.

I'wish you all the best,

RODRIGO ROA DUTERTE
President
Republic of the Philippines

MANILA
NOWVEMBER 2020
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CHAIRMAN's

MESSAGE

Republic of the Philippnes
DEPARTMEMNT OF FINANCE
Rocas Boulevard Comer Pablo Ocampao, S Street
Manila 1004

Security Act of 2018, the Secretary of Finance became the

ex-officio Chairman of the Social Security Commission (S5C),
the highest decision-making body supervising the Social Security
Systern (555). This report covers the first vear of the 555 operating
under this new organizational format.

W hen President Rodrigo Roa Duterte signed into law the Social

We hawve set out ambitious goals for the organization.
These include reducing the overhead expenses of
the 555 and extending its fund life. We seek to
ensure a large return from our information
technology investments through better online
sarvices for our mambers. We have also set

out to review and reinforce the pension

fund's public messaging program,

As you know, well-run social safety nets are
critical to national development. Keeping the
555 efficient and effective is part of our collective
duty to provide our citizens with a dignified
retirement in their old age.

| arm happy to note that the 555 has made gains
in achieving the abovementioned goals. These
accomplishments are enumerated in detail in
this year's annual report

To be sure, the 555 will continue to face many
challenges. This institution's roadmap towards
excellence will be tested by a changing landscape
and unfarmiliar risks to the insurance sector

| encourage the 555 to further improve its
cybersecurity system Lo better protect its clients.

At the end of the day, we are accountable for every

peso that members have entrusted to this fund. We are responsible for securing
and growing their contributions. We should assure our people that they can rely
on the 555 now and into the long future. We must not let them down.

I arm confident that the dedicated professionals of the 555 will
continue warking hard to better deserve the trust of our people.

CARLOS G. DOMIN i

Secretary of Finance
Chairmar, Social Securify Commission

December £ 2020




MESSAGE OF THE

SSS PRESIDENT & CEO

he path that the Social Security
Systern (555) took in 2019 was a
remarkably steady, upward course
towards better financial stability, with
our net revenue leaping by 146.7 per cent to
P56 billion from P23 billion in the previous
year, Said growth was driven, in particular,
by the breakthrough event of the passing
and implementation of the new 555 Charter,
which paved the way for the expansion of
powers of the Social Security Commission,
among other reforms, to ensure the
long-term viability of the institution

The year 2019 also marked the 62nd year

in service of the 555 and was highlighted
by the enhancements in policies, systems
and procedures geared towards the
increase of fund life, improvement of both
service quality and corporate culture, and
establishment of accountability. Our theme
of “555 @ your fingertips: We connect
and protect® sums up the pension fund's
long-term desire to further improve its
services through full digitalization. Slowly
but surely, we are bidding adieu to our
manual and paper-based processes.

We are gradually embracing digitalization
not only to keep abreast of changing timas,
but also tosupport our mission-critical
functions for the people we serve.

"ro- 555 2010 ANWUAL REPORT
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Sturdy Financial Performance

vounts wonwonpesos | zm | o | sincresse
Revenues 26237 21246 3.5%

Members' Contribution

Investrment and Other Income

Expenditures
Benefit Payments
Operating Expenses

22038 18152 211

4199 3054 F1.5%
20669 189,89 8.8%
19676 180.08 93%

For the period January to December 2019, the 555 total revenue amounted to P262.37 billion, 235 percent
higher than the total revenue posted last year. OF this total, members' contributions amounted to P220.38
billion or 84 percent, while investment and other income was at P4199 billion or 16 percent. Members’
contribution collection was 211 percent higher than previous year's totals.

Imvestment and other income was 375
percent higher than last year's due to the
income from real estate properties.

We are glad that members’ contributicn
collection amounted to P220.38 billion, an
increase of 21.] percent over last year, due
mainly to the increase in the contribution rate
from 11 to 12 percent and the adjustments in
the minimum and maximum Monthly Salary
Credits (i.e, salary base) frorn P1,000 to P2,000
and from P16,000 to P20,000, respectively.
These provisions from the 5SS Act of 2018,
which was implemented effective April 20719,
accounted for 63 percent or P24.12 billion of
the increase in contribution collection, while
the remaining 37 percent came from other
collection efforts undertaken by the 555.

Increase in contribution
rate and salary base,
P24128

Ocher collection
afforis, PI4.348
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MESSAGE OF THE
SSS PRESIDENT
& CEO

The year-end figures in 2019 show a PZ3.62 billion contribution surplus. The surplus is 1,183.7 percent
higher than the recorded figure in 2018. This mean that the contribution collection alone was enough

to cover the benefit payments in 2019 worth P196.76 billion,
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Income from government securities,
corporate notes and bonds, loans

to members, bank deposit and
mutual funds posted double-digit
gains as compared to the preceding
year. In addition, incorne from real
estate properties more than

tripled due to the increase in 555
investment properties’ valuation
while equities posted negative
growth rate. The investment effort
of 555 managed to yield a significant
return on investrment (RO) of

8. percent, outpacing the 364-day
T-kill rate at 5.2 percent and the
Philippine Dealing Systemn (PDS)
10-year T-bonds at 5.8 percent.
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We implemented the Contribution
Penalty Condonation Program for
employers, increased the number

of paying members and improved
compliance of employers and
memipers to 55 Law, and pursued the
coverage of informal sector workers.
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Minimal Operating
Expenses Maintained

Cperating Expenses (OpEx) for 2019
was at P2.93 billion, higher by 1.2
percent than 2018's operating
expenses, which amounted to P2.81
billion. The 2019 OpEx is only 35.84
percent of the allowable 555
Charter limit compared to 4312
percent in 2018,

Investments Initiatives

As one of the efforts to achieve its
okjective: increase the fund life, the
555 deployed P7 billion to five
external fund managers and earned
P325.41 million from February to
December 2019. The P7 billion was
deployed to three balanced fund
rmandates, three pure equity fund
rnandates, and one pure fixed
income fund mandate, with F1 billion
allotment to each fund.

Pension loan releases for 2019
increased by 480.4 percent which
amounted to P2.52 billion for 74,503
pensioner-borrowers from last year.
The maximum loanable amount was
increased to P200,000 in October
2002 from P32,000 since its initial
implementation in Septermber 2018,

Coverage

The number of active employers

totaled 973 409 as of December 31, 2019,

This consisted of the establishments
registered with the S55 that are still
operational, including household

employers. Shty-eight percent (68%) are

regular employers while the remaining
32% are household employers.

OpEx vs. Charter Limit
A51Z%  3smaxn
2018 2019
Penslon Loan




MESSAGE OF THE
SSS PRESIDENT
& CEO

Employed, Salf-Employed,

30.05M 2.53M

Local and Foreign S55 Offices

The number of covered members who are
eligible to avail at least one benefit has
reached 3817 million as of Decernber 21, 2019,
These members are composed of the
emploved, including househelpers duly
reparted by their employers, as well as

the self-employed professionals and
workers from the infermal sector, voluntary
members, and OFWs. The number of
covered members exclude those with final
claim of granted benefits (e, retirement,
total disability, death or funeral benefit).

The 555 continues to open new local branches across the country to increase coverage and provide service
to its members. In 2019, the 555 opened three new branch offices, in La Trinidad (Benguet), Danao [Cebu}
and San Pedro [Laguna), 11 new service offices, and one representative office, bringing the total number of

local offices to 321,

The 555 also opened one new foreign representative office (FRO) in New York, USA This made the

total number of foreign offices to 26.

Digitalization Initiatives

In our continuing quest to improve
service quality, we implemented
electronic functionalities such as Online
Payrment with PayMaya through our 555
Mobile App, PRN generation through the
Self-Service Express Terminals and
various online transactions through our
555 Website like salary loan app,
resumption of updating of contact
information, online payrment with
Moneygment and online filing of
retirement claim of mermbers &5 years
old & above and voluntary members
60 years old & above. The S55 Mobile App
downloads increased by 278.8 percent
from 824,006 in 2018 to 312 million
as of December 2019,

¢ Q

'— SSS Mobile
f‘ 555 co-developed with Exakt Inc.

394 [2] (3] o

11K réviews 45 MB Rated for 3+ © Decravi

About this app 2>

D) smvmiom



We also piloted the expanded e-Centers in 13 branches namely: Diliman, Cubao, Deparo, Dagupan,
Makati-Chino Roces, Cainta, Tagaytay, Odiongan, Cebu-NRA, Mandaue, Victorias, Tacurong and Gingoog.

555 Diliman Branch {Large Branch), somple e-Center

From January to December 2013, the usage of 555 electronic facilities increased by 12.39 million
or 25.8% to 60.34 million from the 47.95 million in 2018,

JANUARY TO DECEMBER

TYPE OF TRANSACTION 29 |
Registration 957 506 15.03 n3z 577 17.08
Benefits 6.46 025 67 668 034 703
Loans Granting 304 0.75 379 23 135 166
Contribution Collection 107 2459 2565 048 2500 2548
Loan Collection 154 7.75 929 078 83 8.09

Inguiries 8610 9.56 9566 9250 1957 207
(o [ oew | wss | s | new | coss | mam
I I I T T




MESSAGE OF THE
SSS PRESIDENT
& CEO

Customer Service Enhancements

Service excellence has always been one of the top pricrities of S55 and we are continuously working to
address members’ concerns. Complaints monitored by the Member Communications and Assistance
Department tremendously decreased by 9018 percent to 10,550 in January to December 2012 from 107,421
during the same period of 2018 across all complaint service delivery channels such as Call Center, Social
Media, Hotline BBBS and email.

We have also launched the 555 Hotline 1455 in October 2019 and pilot-run the Customer Relationship
Management System in Decemnber 2019,

We have also reinforced our public messaging to inform 555 members and pensioners of the services of
the 585 thru various info campaigns such as “Save More, Get More”™ with parallel messaging "Sa Konting
Dagdag-lpon, Mas Malaking Benepisya”. We also had info campaigns on 22 testimonials showing the
benefits given by 555 and its improved services, seven delivery channels in obtaining 555 information,
the new contribution schedule as a result of the S5 Act of 2018, expanded Maternity Leave Law and
various electronic services of 555 We had 53 Facebook livestrearn sessions of "Usapang555™ with a
cumulative reach of 10.7 million Facebook subscribers.

Good Governance Practice

We, at 555 are finding ways to realize
our objective to improve corporate
culture and establish accountability.
To instill quality to our service delivery,
wie warked hard to make our services
better and as a result, 10 branches
were recommended in December
2012 for 150 2001:2015 certification on
various processes such as registration
and coverage, contributions and loans
repayment collection, short-term
mermber loans granting, sickness,
maternity and EC benefits, death,
disability and retirement benefits
and 1D capture.

With the hard work and efforts
exerted by the men and women of
SSS, we wanted to know whether
our members are satisfied or not
with what we have been doing to
better our service. We engaged the
services of a third party provider
who conducted the customer
satisfaction survey that gave the
555 a 925 percent net satisfaction
rating, thereby exceeding the 90
percent target rating.




Awards and Recognition

In 2019, the S5S was recognized by the ASEAN Social Security Association [ASSA) for the project “P131-8
Fund allocation for the 105-Day Expanded Maternity Leave Law (EMLL) for 2019%, The award was under
the Insurance Coverage Recognition Award.

Taken from the ASSA webpage

in addition, the 555 was also recognized by the IFC-World Bank Doing Business Team for the 5585
Real-Time Processing of Contribution Program as one of the significant reforms in paying taxes.
The recognition was relayed through the Team's letter to 555 dated September 18, 2019,

Compliance with S5 Law

With the approval of the 55 Law of 2018

in February 2019, we wasted no time to
implement the new provisions of the law.
Under the Unemployment Insurance benefit,
we have released a total of P177.86 millicn to
14,895 members from August to December
2019. The 555 also released P&.35 billion warth
of maternity benefits to 192 883 qualified
fernale members from March te December
2019, in accordance with the Expanded
Maternity Leave Law (EMLL).

With so much work to do, we did our best!

These accomplishrments may not have been possible if not for the full support of the
Social Security Commission and the hard work and cooperation of our officers and
staff. To our members and their beneficiaries, our employers, pensioners and other
stakeholders, thank you for your trust and confidence in S55.

Mabuhay po tayong lahat.

C. Ao’

AURORA C. IGNACIO
President and Chief Executive Officer

oo )



ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE

SOCIAL SECURITY
COMMISSION

Reorganization of the SSC Committees.

The Commission streamlined the number, composition, and
functions of S5C committees with the following goals in mind:

« reducing 555 operational expenses,
s extending further the SS5 fund life,
* ensuring payback for IT investmenits,

s expanding E-services and use of modern digital
tools to facilitate members’ access to services, and
s reviewing and reinforcing the public
messagqing program.

Member Service and Welfare. # award of procurement antracts for IT_
resources for members’ access Lo services,
The Commission approved the following: rencvation [civil, structural, architectural,
sanitary, electrical, mechanical and
e various guidelines on payment of structured cabling works] and construction
rnaternity benefits, funeral and death design of the SSS branches/offices, lease of
claims processing, use of credit/debit/ office space for the relocation and renewal
orepaid (cash card/stored-value card/ of lease of SS5 branches;
e-wallet) cards as additional payment
form for contribution, loan amortization & implementation of the Communication
and other 5S5-related payments; Plans on the Updating of Membership
Data Record and Enhanced Pension Loan
* memoranda of agreement (MOA) Program, through media placements and
enhancements and amendment between conduct of S55 Pensioners’ Day,
555 and partner banks/ companies in the
implementation of various S55 programs ® Salary Loan releases thru-the-bank
{e.g. Pension Loan Program, Unified via Philippine Electronic Fund
Multi-Purpose Identification-Automated Transfer System and Operations
Teller Machine Card Program), bank Metwork (PESOMet) Disbursement
disbursernent facility, Internet Payrment Service Program,

Cateway, Automatic Debit Arrangenment;

& revised payment deadlines for
contributions and extension of payment
deadline for remittance of contributions
and salary loan repayments;

+ ‘555 2019 ANNUAL REPORT




¢ online or electronic payment of 55
contributions, loan amortizations and
other S55-related remittances;

¢ enhancerment of the Pension Loan Program;

* expansion of e-Centers in the branches;

the Joint DOLE-S55-CSC IRR of
Republic Act No. 11210 entitled “An Act
Increasing the Maternity Leave Period
to One Hundred Five [105) Days for
Female Workers with an Option to
Extend for an Additional Thirty (30}
Days Without Pay, and Granting an
Additional Fifteen (15) Days for Solo
Mothers, and For Other Purposes”,

Coverage and Collection.
The Commission approved the following:

* MOA between 555 and various
cooperatives as collecting and
nen-collecting partner agents;

* project initiation far the
procurement of the services
of a 3rd party to conduct the

# the Circular for the Implementing
Cuidelines on the Payment of
Unemployment Insurance and
Imvoluntary Separation Pay, and

# linkages with Filipino cormmunities

abroad/Overseas Filipino workers
with the formal opening of 555
Foreign Representative Offices in
Vancouver [Canada) and Los Angeles
(US), the raticnalization of S55
foreign offices, and the signing of the
Social Security Agreement between
the Republic of the Philippines and
the Republic of Korea.

¢ Circular on the Cuidelines
on the Payment of the
Maternity Benefits, and

detailed survey in determining

# accreditation and renewal of
accreditation or reaccreditation
of mobile money and payments
companies and banks as 555
Collecting Agents;

* Policy Guidelines on the Use of
Credit/Debit/Prepaid [Cash
Card/Stored-Value Card/E-Wallet)
Cards as Additional Payment
Form for 55 Contributicn, Loan
Amortization and Other
555-Related Payments;

# Memorandum of Understanding
[(MOU) between 555 and the
Philippine Crop Insurance
Corpaoration pertaining the
coverage/membership of
seif-employed farmers and
fisherfolk with 555 and the
promaotion of SSS programs thereto;

the correct universe for social
security coverage and identifying
the untapped workforce (e.g., the
employed and self-employed) for
social security coverage,

= grant of authority to 555 lawyers,
who have been designated as
sheriffs and deputy sheriffs, to
conduct public auction of
levied/distrained properties and
other activities related to the
implementation of the program
on Warrant of Distraint, Levy
and Garnishment;

* Revised Cuidelines for
Accreditation of Remittance
and Transfer Companies to
Act as Collecting and
Paying Agents for 555;

LCUMENTS
“Wikw

#» Revised Cuidelines on
AlkanS55ya Program and
the MOU to be entered
between the 5SS and the
participating Informal
Sector Group under the
AlkanSSSya Program,

Through the direction

of the Commission, the
decades-old unremitted
collections from a collecting
bank was finally resolved,
with the payrment in full to 555
of maore than PS00 million.

S



ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE
SOCIAL SECURITY
COMMISSION

Corporate Social
Responsibility.

The Commission approved assistance
package for S55 members/pensioners who
were affected by Typhoon Depression
Usman, and the earthguake in Zambales,
Eastern Samar and Batanes. To expedite
the delivery of assistance, the Commission
granted the 555 PCEQ with the authority to
issue 555 Circular on the provision of usual
assistance for 555 members/pensioners in
the areas affected by calamities as by the
Mational Disaster Risk Reduction and
Management Coundcil.

The 55C also approved the standard MOA
between 555 and universities and colleges
for the implementation of the Student
Internship Program of the SSS. Further, it
pledged suppert and commitment to the
“Social Protection Plan” of the Department
of Social Welfare and Development.

Good Governance.

The Commission approved
the following:

# the designation of the Compliance
Officer for Management with the task
of monitoring and overseeing the
compliance of 555 unitsfofficers with
the audit recommendations of the
Commission on Audit and the 555
Internal Audit Services Group and
rules and regulations of 555 and
pertinent government agencies,

= directive for the submission of the
disaster recovery plan involving 100%
backup of all 555 applications and
data, and the location of the backup
center to be outside Metro Manila;

& Guidelines on the Checks and

Balances in the Handling of

Authaority of Account Officers to

File and Terminate Cases Before the
Prosecutor's Office/Court Against
Delinguent/Non-compliant Emplayers;

recommendation of awards of procurement
projects costing rmore than P10 million and
declaration of failure of bidding due to
bidding committee’s non-compliance with
the prescribed procedures; and position
statements to various legislative bills
proposed by the Philippine Coengress; and

results of the baseline assessment of the
internal control system of the 585,




Investments.

The Commission approved the following: * 555 KLIMAP Investing Policy (Kalikasan,
Lipunan at Mabuting Pangangasiwaj:
s amendments to the 555 Guidelines Paolicy on Erwvironment-Social-Governance
on the Accreditation of Dormestic [ESG) Investing {also known as
Mutual Funds; Sustainable Investing);
» sale of housing-acquired properties * accreditation/re-accreditation/
and lease of real properties; non-renewal of accreditation of 555
stockbrokers, arrangers/dealers of fixed
& participation in initial public offerings income instruments and government
of corporate and bend issuances of securities broker/eligible dealers;

private corporations,
* Revised Guidelines for 555 Investment in

& the Revised Guidelines for 555 Corporate Fixed Income Securities, containing
Investment in Corporate Fixed the new investment provisions under RA No.
* Reforms on the Member Loan Program;  * Policy revision on foreign currency holdings.

Quasi-Judicial Function.

The Cormmission adjudicated cases with respect to coverage, benefits, contributions and
penalties thereon and other related matters, It promulgated 157 full Resolutions and 144
Final Orders for writs of execution of SSC Judgmenits, closed and terminated cases and
motions for reconsideration filed by litigants. Through the Office of the Commission
Secretary and Executive Commission Clerk, the Commission released 1,786 issuances an
the handling and disposition of cases.

55 2019 ANNUAL REFORT rﬂ-



ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE

SSC COMMITTEES

" p—

Audit Committee
A. Audit Reports Monitored and Discussed in 2019

1. Employer Coverage and Employer Delinguency - 30 branches
2. Implementation of the Guidelines on Warrants of Distraint, Levy and/for
Garnishment - 30 branches
3. Cash Management/Accounts Tellering System — 10 branches
4, Internal Quality Audit on 1ISO QMS - 23 branches and 70 support units
5. Member Loans Billing, Collection and Posting - 29 branches
&. Pension Loan Program — four branches
7. Validation of Payment of Manpower Services on Quantum Meruit Basis
8. Local Procurements — Mindanac West (Zamboanga)
9. Audit of Expired Contracts for Janitorial, Security and HR Services
10. Revaolving Fund of Media Affairs Department
M. Use of Leased Premises at HK Sun Plaza
12. Real Time Processing of Contributions for Individual Members
13. Corporate Communications Department
14. Fund Disbursement (S55 Investments, Provident Fund, Procurement
of Goods and Services, Member Loans and Benefit Payments)
15. Health Care Department (Health Care Services, Medical Benefits
and Revolving Fund)
16. Janitorial Services (Main Office)
17. Procurement Management Review

B. Endorsements to the 55C

1. Procurement projects in 2018 on non-compliance with procurement timelines
2. Revolving Fund of the Media Affairs Department
3. internal Control Systern of the Social Security System

C. Approved the Audit Program for 2020
D. 2018 Audit Projects Reperted in 2019

1. Service Delivery and Employer Clearances

2. Tri-Media Placements and Contracts

%, 555 Collections thru Metrobank

4, Local Procurements (Baguio, CDO and Bacolod)
5. Repairs and Maintenance of 555 Building

6. Accounts Management System

7. Available for Sale Marketable Securities

Executive Committee

In 2019, the Committee discussed and resolved the following items:
1. Report on Procurement through the Departrment of Budget and Management
Procurement Service and/or Philippine International Trading Corporation

2. Project Implementation Monitoring Plan (Catch-Up Plan) for the 4th
Quarter of 2012 for the full utilization of the Capital Expenditures Budget



Directive to Management to recast the 555 Financial Statements in accordance
with the generally-accepted International Standard for Accounting for insurance
operations, as 555 is essentially an insurance company

The Committee resolved that S5S may be doing wrong accounting as all contributions
were recorded as incorme and no future liability was recorded. Mot all collections for
contributions should be recognized as income given the liability that they set in the
future. These were based on comments in the report of International Monetary Fund
survey regarding bookkeeping practices of insurance companies,

. Management action relative to SSC approval to lift the freeze hiring

policy [Authority to Replace Retired/Resigned/Separated Employees)

Cuidelines on the checks and balances in the handling of the authority of Account
Officers, whereby the Committee endorsed the same to the SSC for approval

. A universal bank's decades-old unremitted collections to 555

amounting to several hundred million pesos was finally settled
Development of the SS5 East Triangle Property

Putting timelines and anticipating contingencies to
prevent delays in procurement contracts

in terms of cperating cost to benefit ratio or delivery cost, 555 spends
P7.00 for every P100.00 benefit paid. The challenge is to lower it to P2.50.

Information Technology and Collection Committee

Endorsements to tha 55C

L
2

Deposit pick-up arrangement of 11 555 tellering branches with Philippine National Bank

Opening of 20 new peso accounts with Land Bank of the Philippines and/for
Development Bank of the Philippines for real time processing of contributions
(RTPC}-compliant collecting partners (CPs) and granting authority to the PCEC to
approve opening of new accounts for CPs that will comply with RTPC in the future

Confirmation of Memoranda of Agreement (MOA) between 555 and various
cooperatives on their accreditation as collecting and non-collecting partner agents

Terminal report on the "Special Project on Processing, Monitoring and
Consolidation of all Collection Transactions™ for submission to the General
Accounting Department and uploading to Financial Accounting System

Amendments to the agency agreements with the electronic payment collection
service with accredited banks and remittance and transfer comnpanies (RTCs)

Revised guidelines for accreditation of banks and RTCs
to act as collecting and paying agents of 555

Non-renewal of accreditation of several collecting agents

. Circulars for the Implementing Guidelines on the payment of

Unemployment Insurance and |Involuntary Separation Pay
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. Revised guidelines and Memorandum of Understanding

and other updates on the AlkanS55ya Program

Delegation to the S55 PCEO the confirmation of MOA executed by the 555
signing autharity and partner agents for collection and non-collection services

Variation Order on the Primary Branch Connectivity Agreement/
Suspension of Work with INNOVE Communications, Inc.

Amendment of agreement with PLDT for Multi-Protocol
Label Switching Network Services
Proposed rationalization of SSS foreign operations

. Guidelines for accreditation of express gelivery providers
Tor the prompt delivery of UMID Cards

. Accreditation to 555 of non-life insurance companies

k Management and Investments Committee

Recommended the policy of collection of outstanding loan amounts of
member-barrowers who are 65 years old and above and with 120 contributions by
offsetting it against their pension benefits, subject to further study by Management
an how to collect from those member-borrowers who are still below 65 years old

Established the use of benchmarks per asset class in comparing
555 investment performance

Directed Management o study investment opportunities

in real properties and foreign currencies

Initiated the review of the Member Loan Program and the Policy on

Personal Equity Investments of 555 officials and employees

Reviewed investment programs and policies, such as the small and mid-capitalization
program, Flexi-Fund program, PESO Fund program, and Stop Loss/Cut Loss Policy
Invited investment experts to give market briefings

Directed Management to carry out a comprehensive review of the

S5S experience of investing in mutual funds

Endorsed for SSC approval the following:

- amendments to the 555 Cuidelines on the Accreditation of Domestic Mutual Funds
- sale and lease of several S55 real properties

- participation in bond issuances of private corporations

- revised guidelines for 5SS investment in corporate fixed income securities

- enhancements 1o the Pension Loan Program

- reforms on the Member Loan Program

- 555 KLIMAP Investing Policy [Kafikasan, Lipunan, at Mabuting Pangangasiwgl

- revised policy on foreign currency holdings

- guidelines for the Mew Voluntary Provident Fund
- participation in initial public offerings and bond issuances of private corpaorations

—
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YEAR-IN-REVIEW

Once a humble service office, S85 Ortigas was upgraded to
a full-service branch with facility for UMID card applications
on January 22 Located at a rent-free space in Robinsons
Calleria, 555 Ortigas has a daily average of 1,753 member
transactions and is part of Robinsons Land Corporation's
{RLC) Lingkod Pinoy Center that offers one-stop-shop
government services for the public. Present during the
ribbon-cutting ceremony were the executives from 555
and RLC led by 55C Chairperson Aurora C. Ignacio (209 from
left), 5SS PCEO Ernmanuel F. Dooc {20 from right), 555
Crtigas Branch Head Wendelino C. Comboy (leftmaost),
RLC EVP Faraday D. Co (3 from right), and RLC SVP and
Ceneral Manager Arlene G. Magtibay (3@ from left)

Cther branch developments in 2019 include the upgrading
of 355 Pasay Taft from srmall to medium branch category;
the relocation of 555 Baliuag, 555 Victorias, 555 San Carlos,
and 555 NCCC Centerpoint Senvice Offices (S0s);

the expansion of 555 Bais and 555 Dumaguete; and

the creation of four SOs namely, 555 Felcris Centrale,

555 Candelaria, 555 La Carlota, and 555 San Miguel.

FEBRUARY -

Bicol-based

Jose Morato Honrado
{IMH) Microfinance
Inc. officially

became the 555

aly under its
Accreditation
Program for
cooperatives and
other organized
groups after a Memorandum of agreement (MO®) signing held on February 7.5 the pension fund's senvicing and
collecting partner agent, JIMH Microfinance Inc. is given the authority to recefve and screen 555 claims and
applications of its 20,000 members as well as collect their contributions and payments. Leading the MOA signing
ceremony were 555 Account Managerment Croup Acting SVP Atty. Antonio S. Argabioso (20 from left) and JMH
Microfinance Inc. President Charisrma D. Lascota (center).
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For its first university job fair participation, 555 teamed up with
the Centro Escolar University (CEU) along with 71 other public
and private companies in helping CEU graduating students and
alumni explore career opportunities and prepare the needed
documents for future employment. Held on Februany 1at CEU
Manila's Student Activity Center, the CEU Job and Career Fair
featured information booths from various emplovers and
government institutions such as the pension fund that allowed
students tovoluntarily register as 555 members and have their
55 Numibers issued. Throughout 2019, the 555 participated in
other school-based job fairs organized by De La Salle University,
Dr. Carlos 5. Lanting College, Ateneo de Manila University,
Colegio de San Juan de Letran, College of Saint Benilde,

Miriam College, STl College, San Beda University, Far Eastermn
Liniversity, 5t. Faul University QC and Manila, World Citi Colleges,
and University of the Philippines.

PUBLIC FORUM ON
REPUBLIC ACT NO. 199 -
SOCIAL SECURITY ACT OF 2n8

MARCH-

With the passage of
Republic Act (Ra) No 192
comes the enactment of
its relevant Implermenting
Rules and Regulations
{IRR). But prior to full
implementation, the 555
conducted three sets of
Public Consultations on
the IRR — the first held at
the City Sports Clubin
Cebu on March 1and the
other two at the 555 Main

Office in Quezon City on March 4 and May 3 [specifically for OFWs). Consultations serve as a regulatony process by
which the public’s input on matters affecting them—like the new 55 Law—is sought. In 2019, the 555 further
intensified information dissemination on RA No. TIT92 and its various programs via other education seminars with
the Associated Labor Uinion, Philippine Commission on Women, and Philippine Chamber of Commerce.

Following the 61-magnitude earthguake that hit the municipality of Porac,
Pampanga in April, the 555 immediately launched a Calamity Assistance
Package [CAPR) for the short-term and urgent financial needs of its affected
members and pensioners. Launched on May T7, the assistance package
allowed qualfied members to avail themselves of the pension fund's
Calamity Loan Assitance Program, three-month advance pension, and
Direct House Repair and Improvernent Loan. The other CAPs provided by
555 in 2019 were for the earthquake-stricken members and pensioners in
Batanes and Mindanao region in August and Movember, respectively, as
well as for the victims of Typhoon Tisoy in December. Photo shows one of
Pampanga's earthquake victims getting her 555 benefit cheque.




MAY - y P4 ©sEDP

In May 2019, the 555 signed a
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with
sEDPI Development Finance, Inc. to
intensify the coverage of workers in the
informal sector. With the agreement,
SEDPI became accredited and authorized
to receive and screen non-collection and
collection-related S55 transactions not

only of its regular and associate members

and their families, but also the voluntary
contribution payment transactions of
non-SEDPI members, "SEDPI believes that the marginalized sector should be the first to enjoy the benefits of
government services,” vince Rapisura, SEDPI President, said in a staterment on the occasion of its MOA signing with 5SS
*Our partnership with 555 will realize this so that low income groups will benefit from social safety nets of the
government,” he added.

JUNE

The 555 and the Department of Environment and Natural Resources
(DENR) signed a MOA on June 11, formalizing the 555 membership of
450 job order workers at the DENR's central office. Under the agreement,
job order workers will be registered in 555 as self-employed members,
while the DENR, as a collecting partner, will remit their monthly 555
contributions through salary deduction as part of the KaltaS55-Coilect
Program. Photo shows 555 Large Accounts Division VP and Account
Management Group Concurrent Acting Head Antonio Argabsoso and
DENR Assistant Secretary for Human Resource Development and
Legislative Affairs Joan A Lagunda during the MOA signing held at the
DENR Compound, Visayas Avenue, Diliman, Quezon City,

The 555 kicked-off its natiorwide ca rnpa'gr'
against non-compliant employers with the first

leg of its simultaneous Run After Contribution
Evaders (RACE) Campaign in Mandaluyong City,
San Fernando City in Pampanga, Mandaue City
n Cebu, and Dipolog City in Zamboanga del Norte 2
on June 14 A number of establishrments were
visited by the RACE tearm and posted Show
Cause Orders to rermnind themn of their obligations
under Republic Act No. 11199 or the Social Security
Act of 2018 Three more nationwide simultaneous
RACE operations were conducted by 555 until §

Jubly, narmehy: the second wave held in Binondo, *

Cabanatuan, Durmaguete, and lligan; the third -'l-fA

wave held in Parafiague, Batangas, and Koronadal, and the fourth and final wave held in Novaliches, Quezon City,
Digos, Davao del Sur, 5an Fernando, La Union and Tacloban, Leyte
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Officials and employees of '- ' T N A

555 gathered atthe Ramon . UL'TI
Magsaysay Hall on Juby 1 for H
the ceremonial turnover of =3 - ol
leadership between N

cUtgoing President and
Chief Executive Officer
(PCED) Emmanuel F. Dooc

and current PCEQ Aurora C f ‘ {1 1]
Ignacio. Former SSSPCED ' ’ L
Docc played a huge role in
spearheading the pension
fund's organizational reforms and service improvements, particularly the passage of the 55 Act of 2018 that primnarily
aims to lengthen the fund life of S55. For her part, PCED Ignacio previously served as the first wornan Chairperson of
the S5C. Officially appointed as 555 PCEO on March 28, she now becomes the second female head of S55 since
Corazon Dela Paz-Bernardo's term in 2001 Photo shows the two well-respected leaders of the institution, together
with sorne S5C members and 555 executives.

555 PCEC Aurcra C lgnacio paid a courtesy call with
Metropolitan Manila Development Authority (MMOA) Chairperson
DCanilo Lim at the 555 Main Office in Quezon City on July 18
Dwuring the meeting, Ignacio and Lim discussed the
coordination between the two agencies for the clearing
operations on 555 properties with informal settlers. They also
talked about the possible coverage of the job order workers of
MDA through the Kaltasss-Collect Program, Photo shows 555
PCEC Ignacic meeting MMDA Chairperson Danilo Lim,

while inset photo shows [from left) MMDA EDSA Special

Traffic and Transport fone Head Edison "Bang” Mebrija, ignacio,
Lim, and MMDA General Manager Jose Arturg "Jgjo” Garcia
[Photos grabbed from www.manilatimesnet)

On July 30, the 555 signed a Memorandum of

Agreement [MOA) with the Philippine Sports "@
Commission (PSC) to ensure the social E( v
secLirty coverage of over 1100 national MOA SIGNING
athletes, coaches, and trainers whom the e R

latter agency funds and supports. Under the
agreement, the PSC shall deduct from the
allowances of national athletes, coaches, and
trainers who are not covered by the
Covernment Service Insurance Syster, their
mcnthly contributions and remit to S5 They
will be registered as self-employed 555
members and will be entitled 1o its benefit
and lpan programs upon meeting the set
qualitying conditions. Photo shows (from left)
555 Large Accounts Division VP and
Concurrent Account Management Group Acting Head Antonio Argabioso, 555 NCR Operations Group SVP Jose
Bautista, 555 PCEQ Aurgra Ignacio, PSC Chairmman William Ramirez, and PSC Commissioners Charles Maxey, Celia
Kirarn and Armcld Agustin during the MOA signing at the PSC Press Conference Room of the Rizal Memorial Sports
Complex in Manila,
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AUGUST -

The 5SS kicked-off its 62nd
anniversary celebration by featuring
Bureau of Jail Management and
Penology (BIMP) Tagaytay City Jail
Persons Deprived of Liberty (PDL)
artworks to benefit the latter's
Sponsor-A-Release Prograrm. Photo
shows (from left) BIMP Tagaytay
City Jail Warden 1/SINSP Aris
Williarmere A Villaester, MM, BIMP
CALABARZON Regional Director
JCSUPT Amelia A Rayandayan,

BIMP Deputy Chief for Operations JCSUPT Dennis U, Rocamara, 555 EVPs Rizaldy T. Capulong, Judy Frances A See,
arvd Elvira Alcantara-Resare during the turmover of a 36 x 40-inch anwork donation entitled “Contraband.” The 555
featured two other art exhibits in early 2019 titled “Ugat” and *Ugnay Kulay: Paanyaya ng Sining,” respectively
showcasing the creations of Ms. Rara Carillo and group of artists namely, Jose Hombrebueno, Chris Magbubhaos, Eric
Mercadao, Joey Alambre, Manny Gonzales, Jeffrey Crescinl, and Marce! Quezon

2019 ~ SEPTEMBER.

\ BALIKATA

The 555 recognized the 2019 top employers in its annual Balikat ng Bayan (BnEB) Awards held during the institution's
62nd annisersary celebration. Ryomo Philippines Corporation, Gingoog City Colleges, Inc, and Hitachi Global Storage
Technologies Philippines Corp. were named 2012 BnE Top Employers for their utrnost support to the pension fund
through their strict compliance with the Social Security Act of 2008 and amenability on the ongoing process of
digitalization of S55. Photo shows (from left); $55 SWP Jose Bautista, 555 EVP Judy Frances See, 555 PCEC Aurora C_ Ignacio,
Hitachi Global Storage Finance Manager Ryan lbardolaza, Gingoog City Colleges Inc. Finance Coordinator Melissa
Apolinar and Assessment Remittance In-charge Paz Gonzales, Ryomo Philippines Corporation Human Resource
Administration Supervisor Ma. Melanie Sebastian and Human Resource Administration Assistant Maojica Grace

Dequina, 55 Commissioner Diana V. Pardo-Aguilar, 555 VP Helen Abclencia, and 555 Account Management Group
Acting Head Atty. Antonio Argabioso during the awarding cerernony on Septernber 12 at the 555 Main Office.
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More than 50 cooperatives and associations nationwide joined the 555 on its fourth Multi-Sectoral Forurn which aims

1o promate 555 programs for self-emploved workers in the informal sector, Tagged as "555: Nakikiisa sa Pagsulong ng
Social Protection Para sa maga Manggagawa sa Informal Sector,” the event was attended by about 100 representatives
fromn 50 cooperatives, organizations, Local Government Units and Mational Government Agencies. Among the event
highlights was the sharing of best practices of Simbayanan ni Maria Multi-Purpose Cooperative President and Chief
Executive Officer Angelita & Ramos and SEDPI Developrment Finance Inc. President Mariel Vincent A Rapisura as
S55-accredited Partner Agents (PAs). Meanwhile, Cooperative Developrnent Authaority Executive Director Rey R. Elevazo,
CSEE, provided directions during the discussions. Said event was already the fourth multi-sectoral forum conducted by
S8Ssince 2017

OCTOBER

In celebration of the Elderly Filipino Week,
the 555 held on October 5 at the Ramon
Magsaysay Hall its annual Pensioners’ Day
Program wherein the usual free consultation
and medical services, complimentany basic
medicines, as well as lectures on health and
weliness were provided to the attendees.
Making the yearly gathering extra special
was the pre-launching of the enhanced
Pensicn Loan Program that offers qualified
retiree-pensioners with a higher lcanable
amount of up to B200,000.00 at a longer
payrment term, Photo shows Federation of
Senior Citizens Association of the Philippines
[FeSCAPR) President Jorge Banal Sr. {standing,
right) raising a question in the open forum,
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NOVEMBER . L

Thea 555 was recognized as one of the Philippine Information
Agency's (Pla) development partners during the Media and
Stakeholders Appreciation Program on November 15,

The 555 was awarded a plague of appreciation for its
partnership with the PLA in communicating 555 programs for
an informed and empowered Filiping citizenry. Photo shows
555 PCED Aurora C. Ignacio (37 from left) and 555 Media
Affairs Department Head and Public affairs and Special
Events Division Concurment Acting Head Fernando F. Nicolas
[2rd from keft) receiving the plague of appreciation from

PIA Program Management Division Cfficer-in-Charge

Rhea Kristine J. Cy (leftmost) and Presidential Commwunications
Operations Office Undersecretary for Good Governance,
Government-Cwned and Controllied Corporations and
Finance George A Apacible [rightrmost) during the event held
at Sequica Hotel in Quezon City.
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BRIEFING OHN

BONDS

In support of the Bureau of the Treasury (BTr), the 5SS hosted a briefing on the Prermiyo Bonds Prograrm wherein investors
can purchase bonds for as low as PSO0.00 per unit and multiples therecf of up to P10 million. Under the Premyo Bonds
Program, bondholders will benefit from its features such as principal protection, fixed interest rates every quarter, and be
able to join in quarterty cash revward draws of up to P1 million. Photo shows speakers and representatives from the ETr,
Developrment Bank of the Philippines, LandBank, Chinabank, and 555 with pensioners who attended the event held at
the Ramon Magsaysay Hall of the 555 Main Office.
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DECEMBER

[he S55 has tapped digital
financial services leader
PayMaya Philippines, Inc
to allow meambers to
convenienthy pay their
contributions through the
555 Mobile App. 555 PCED
Aurora C. lgnacio (8t from
left) and PayMaya CEO
Orlando B. Yea (T from
right) formally signed the
agreerment on Decernber
18, making PayMaya as one
of the BS accredited
collecting and paying partners of 555, 35 of which are already Real-Time Processing of Contributions system compliant
According to PCEQ lgnacio, this partnership will ensure members of “fast, corvenient and secure way of remitting their
hard-earned money for their future contingencies and retirement options to the pension fund.”

Delegates from JALA PRT and BPIS Ketenakerjaan of
Indonesia visited the 555 headquarters in Quezon City
on December 1 for a study visit in-order to learn from
the pension system, particulary about its programs and
policies for domestic workers. JALA PRT and BPIS are
imvolved in actively carmpaigning for labor and sacial
sacurity rights of domestic workers in their country, The
delegates from baoth organizations were accompanied
by some members of the Labor Education and
Research, a non-government organization, which
hosted their trip to the Philippines

The 555 hassigned a
Memorandurn of
Understanding
(MOU) with the
Philippine Crop
Insurance
Corporation [PCIC) on
December 19 for the
cocial security
coverage of farmers
and fisherfolks in the
Philippines. Under R p——
the MOL, the 555 p— —
shall link up PCIC
with existing partner

agents, provide information, education and communication materials on 555 programs, as well as conduct briefing
and orientation on the value of 555 membership during serminars organized by PCIC. On the other hand, PCIC shall
include social security protection as one of the major topics during its briefing/orientation for farmers and fisherfolks
Also, they can refer cooperatives and associations 1o 555 for coverage and promational activities of their respective
members. Leading the MOLU signing were S55 PCEQ Aurgra C. lgnacio and PCIC President Atty. Jowy C. Bernabe,
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SOCIAL SECURITY ACT OF 2018:

THE JOURNEY TOWARDS PERPETUITY

eight interpellations succeeded, alongside tons of data
gathering and feasibility studies for both the lower and
upper chambers of Congress, the Social Security System (S55) finally
has a new charter through the passage of Republic Act Mo. 199, or
the Social Security Act of 2018, after more than two years in the making.

W ith more than 16 committee and floor hearings participated,
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President Rodrigo Duterte on February 20, 2012 finally signed
into law RA No. M99, thereby amending the 21-year old charter
of 5SS (RA No. 8282 or the Social Security Act of 1997). The law is
akin to a new breath of life for the institution, with provisions
that will deliver better social security protection for its members
and pensioners, under a more robust and stable pension fund.

But the work did not end on the signing of the law. It was just the
middle of the hike. Upon the publication of the law on a newspaper of
general circulation on February 18, the 555 team whao are still savoring
their success on the legisiative and executive branches, needed to roll
up their sleeves and get back to work for the Implementing Rules and
Regulations (IRR) of the law, which was due on June 3 of the same year.




hile an omnibus IRR was being drafted, consultations with

concerned stakeholders are being held to make sure that

their sentiments were heard and that 555 will try to find ways
to address the needs and requests of all parties involved.

Among the landmark provisions of the new law are:

* Unemployment or involuntary separation benefits

* Mandatory coverage of Overseas Filipino Workers

* Provident Fund benefits

* Condonation of penalties on delinquent contributions

* Enhanced investment capabilities, statutory investment
limits and cumulative ceilings

The legislated contribution rate and new Monthly Salary Credits (MSC)
stipulated in 55 Act of 2018 will bring the 555 fund life to safe levels to promote
an actuarially sound and viable social security institution. Notwithstanding,
benefits also increased with the higher MSC. To illustrate, sickness daily
allowance of P480 in the old law will increase to PE00 under the maximum
MSC of P20,000. Monthly pension under the old MSC of P16,000 was anly
P&,400 but will increase to P8,000 under the S5 Act of 2018,

These changes are vital for the S55 to be able to effectively play its role
in protecting its members and pensioners in times of contingencies
such as sickness, disability, maternity, old age, death and other hazards
resulting in less of income or financial burden.

The law paves the way for a more responsive 555. Its principal author,
Senator Richard J. Gordon, espouses as philosephy the value of "WORK,
SAVE, INVEST, PROSPER" ta become seif-reliant and financially independent.

The journey to provide meaningful secial security protection for all Filipinos
continues to be challenging but rewarding. With the help and support
from both Houses of Congress, labor and employer groups, members and
pensioners, the 555 succeeded in crafting a law that truly ensures universal,
equitable, and viable social security for all.




STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of the Social Security Systemn is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements, including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2019
and Decernber 31, 2018 in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statemnents that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial staternenits, management is responsible for assessing the Social Security System's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Social Security
Systern or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Social Security Commission is reponsible for overseeing the Social Security Systemn’s financial
reporting process.

The Social Security Commission reviews and approves the financial staterments, including the schedules
attached therein, and submit the same to the stockholders or members,

SEC. CARLOS G. DOMINGUEZ Il
Chairperson, Social Security Commission

L. Ao’

AURORAC. IG
President and CEQ, Social Security Systern




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Republic of the Phil ppines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Commorwealth Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines

The SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION
Social Sacurity System
East Avervue, Diliman, Quezon City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial staterments of Social Security Systern [S55), which comprise the staterments of financial position as at
Decermnber 31, 2019 and 2008, and the staterments of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity 8nd statements of cash fiows
for tha years then ended, and rates to financial staternents, including a surmmary of significant accounting policies.

In cwr opinicn, except for the effects of the matters described in the Bases for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the accomparnying
financial statements present fairy: in all rmatenal respects, the financial postion of 555 &8 ab Decermber 31, 2019 and 2008 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended In acoordance with Phifppine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS),

Bases for Qualified Opinlon

Philippine Accounting Standards 40 requines that the entity shall apply the chosen accounting policy to all of its investrment Properties
[iPs). I the case of 555, its chasen accounting paolicy is the fairvalue model for the measurement of its IPs after recognition. However, some
of its Imvestmeent Properties (IPs), namaely: Pasay City (FCA 7 Site 2), Green Meadows, Queron City and Pryce Denvao (Memorial Park] are
measuned using the cost model. This resulted in the understaternent of both the IP and Resenve Fund accounts by P84S billion, PI2T74
billion and FI6957 billion in Cys 2017, A8 and 2019, The balance of the Fair Value Gain - IP-Land account is likewise understated by P4.784
Eilion in Cy 2019

Further, the account balances of the Loans and Recaivables of PY0N74] billion in 2018 and PI5N2 billon In 2008, Investrments in Debt
Securities at Ameetized Cost of PZX0TE4 billion in 2018 and P197816 bilkon in 2018, Imnvestrments in Debt Sacurities at Fair Value through
Other Compeehensive Incomee of P52.968 bifion in 2019 and P44.412 bilion in 2018 of a wital of P375.473 billion and P337 340 billion as at
December 3, 2019 and 2018, respectively, arne misstated by undetermined amounts due to the non-adoption of the provisions of the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standard 9 on the recognition and rmeasurement of expected credit losses through a loss allowance.

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institubions (I55AlS). Cur responsibilities nder
those stancands ane further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finoncial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the $55 in accordance with the Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards for Cormnmission onAudit Officials and Employess
[Code of Ethics) together with the ethical reguirernents that are relevant to our audit of the financial staterneants in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilied our other ethical resporsibilities in accordance with these requirernents and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provice a basis for our gualified opanion,

Responsibilities of Managerment and Thase Charged with Governance for the Finonciol Statements

Managament is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial staternents in accordance with PFRSs, and for such
internal contrgl 28 managemant deterrnines & necessany (o enable the preparaton of financial statements that are free frorm material
misstatement, wihether due Lo fraud of error.

In preparing the financial staternents, management is responsible for assessing 555's ability to continue as a going concerm, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of sccounting unless management either intends to
liguidate 555 or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to da so.

Those changed with governance are responsible for oversaeing the 555 financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoie are free from material misstaterment,
wihether due to fraud or ermoe, and 10 issue an auditor's repot that includes gur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is mot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 155A1s will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, indhidually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.
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#As part of an audit in accordance with [55Als, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
thraughout the sudit W alse

& |centify and assess the risks of matenal misstaterment of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or eror,
design and perform sudit procedures responsive o those risks, and obdaln sudit evidence that Is sufficlent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenial misstaterment resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frawd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overnide of internal control

&  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design awdiz procodures that ane
approoiiate in the circumstances, but nat for the punpose of expressing an opsnion on the effectiveness of 555
intermal control,

& Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of sccounting estimates and
related discosures made by managernant.

8  Condude on the appropriateness of managerment’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
Lthe audit evidance oblained, whather a matenal uncerainty exasts related Lo evenls or condilions that may cast
sgnificont doubt on 555's ability to continuee 25 a going concem. fwe condude that a material uncerainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are ‘nadeguate, to modfy cur opinion. Ouwr condusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. Howeser, future events or conditions may cause SS5 1o coasa o
cantinue s 8 going concem.

& Evaluate the overall presentation, soructure and content of the financial stetements, including the disclesures,
and wnether the finencial statements represent the underlying trensactions and events In @ manner that
achieves fair presentation

We commundcate with those charged with gevernance reganding, among other maters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inchuding any sigrificant deficiences in intemnal control that we
Idenitify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statermnent that we hawve complied with relevant ethical
requiremnents regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our sudits were canducted for the purpoese of forming an opinion on the basic financial staternents taken asawhole, The:
supplementary inforrmation in Mote 36 to the financlal staternents ks presentod for the purpase of filing with the Bursau
of Invernal Revenue and is not a regquired part of the basic financial satements. Such supplementary information is the
resporsibiity of the managerment of 555 The supplermentary information has been subbocted to the auditing proceduncs
appied in the audit of the basic Mnancial staterments. (n owr opnion, except for the effects of the matters described in the
Bases for Qualified Opinion section, the supplementary information is fairky stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic finandcal siabements aken as a whale,

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

W

ELIZABETH M. SAVELLA
Supenvising Auditor

September 22, 2020



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az at Decermnber 31, 2019 and 2018
(In Philippine Peso)

Mota 20189 2018 Al 1 January 2018
As Roslaled Restated
ASSETS
Current assata
Cash and cash equivalents 3 22,417,183,110 15,440,541 241 26,821 426,070
Financial assets 4.1 64,101,424,305 37,058,803,638 16,847 812,051
Other investments ] 400,000,000 £ ;
Recelvables 8.1 5,804,339,088 7,587,064,794 5,366,312,531
Inventories T 95,920,305 169,465,093 181,278,628
Mon-current assets held for sale ;] 892,154,670 857,806,720 937,654,203
Other current assets 8 15,232,643 13,884 555 12,272 251
93,726,264,121 61,128,565 548 50,178,755,734
Mon-current assets
Financial assets 4.2 314,927,150,411 310,291,214 588 326,900,661,415
Receivables 6.2 98,797.021,388 92,745,974,5641 87,665,909,114
Investment property 10 53,088,685,217 42,140,785 244 30,188,222 532
Proparty and equipment 11 7,134,302,971 5,854,268,084 4,532 663,850
Intamgible assets 12 195,626,815 235,322,104 203,095,350
Othear non-curment assets 13 267,142,205 249 554 303 347,748 743
474,400,920,007 451,517,118,864 458 836,301,004
TOTAL ASSETS 568,136,193,128 512,645,684,410 500,013,056,738
LIABILITIES
Currant llabliities
Financial labiliies 14 B,248,289,339 8,203,528 955 8,115,832,871
Inter-agency payables 15 167,940,551 149,959,185 178,002,873
Trust liabdities 1B 861,005,497 TE5,244 T34 654,715,321
Deferred cradits/Uneamed income 17 T6, 445128 58,046,852 122,308 497
Other payables 18 1,063,119,232 1,990,631,087 1.743,958,037
10,416,880, 747 11,168,510,823 10,814,822 695
Mon-current llabllities
Financial Labiliies 14 785,314,040 45,300,960 37,175,482
Daferred cradite/Unearmed incoma 17 355912179 382,762 849 409613518
Provisions 18 1,313,064,493 1,480,775,508 1,488,426,808
Othear payables 18 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
2,484,290,712 1,938,529.315 1,963,.218,806
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,801,180,458 13,107,440,138 12,778,042 505
EQUITY
Resarve fund 581,851,564,402 525,441,040,184 500,743,541 6855
Cumulative changes in fair valua of investments {21,501,686,058) (30,822 445 526) (8,181,548, 850)
Revaluation surplus 4,046,242,799 4,048,242, 799 2,879,088,355
Members' equity 1,038,891,527 873,406,815 773,834,173
TOTAL EQUITY 20 555,235,012,669 499,538,244 272 496,235,014,233
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ﬂli‘lllﬂﬁﬂﬁi 512,845,684, 410 500,013,056,738

Tha notes on pagas 38 to 63 form part of these financial statemants
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2008
(In Philippine Peso)

MNote 2019 2018
As restated
INCOME
Service and business income s | 248,187,578, 776 209,808,600,735
Gains 2 17,167,544,339 6,266,881,958
Other non-operating income 23 1,949,691,850 1,008,100,818
267,304,812 9685 217,083,583 610
EXPENSES
Benefit payments 24 186,T61,172,845 180,078,514,500
Personnel services 25 6,797,376,912 6,531,203,783
Maintenance and cther operating sxpenses 26 2,423,TT0,163 2,947 696,555
Financial expenses 27 308,761,300 12B8,166,035
Non-cash expenses 28 5,338,422,615 5,014,978,608
211,628,503,925 184,701,560,382
PROFIT 55,675,309,040 22,382,023,228
Assistance and Subsidy 29 - 185,357 843
Mat Income 56,675,309,040 232 567 380,871
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period
Gain on sale of FA at FVTOCI 796,228 646 1,061,182,721
Changes in fair value of FA at FVTOCI (679,240,533) (22,880,895,575)
Revaluation surplus - 1,167,154 445
COther Comprahansive Incoma for the year 116,988,113 (20,432,548, 409)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 55,792,297,153 2,134,832 482

The notes on pages 38 to 63 form part of thase financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(In Philippine Peso)

Mote 2019 2018
Restated

Cash flows from operating activities
Members' contribution 21 220,379,478 961 181,917,282 180
Investment and other income 15,215,515,112 8,631,856 648
Payments to members and beneficiaries (196,758,118,302) (180,078,887 ,666)
Payments for operations (10,425,007,710) (8,326,354,122)
Met cash generaled by operating activilies 28,411,868,081 1,143,857,040
Cash flows from investing activities
Loan releases and othar investment purchases (20,841,054,807) (12,080,994,429)
Acquisition of property and equipment (484,885,361) (2685,339,600)
Acquisition of intangible assets {14,000,000) (75,990,894)
Net cash used in investing activities {(21,339,720,168) (12,402,324 ,923)
Cash flows from financing activities
Corporate operating budget of;
Employees' compansation commission {243,408,494) (202,694,321)
Flexd Fund
Contribution 158,585,771 114,653,653
Withdrawal (73,482,268) (72,930,753)
Guaranteed income 35,712,242 13,572,408
Annual incentive benefit {1,760,497) (1,931,638)
PESO fund equity
Contribution 27,824,489 28,792,800
Net cash used in financing activities (85,528,757) (122,538,050)
Met increase/{decreass) in cash and cash equivalents 6,976,619,136 (11,380,865,833)
Effact of exchanga rate changes in cash and cash aquivalents 32,733 81,104
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4 15,440,541,241 26,821,426,070
Cash and cash equivalants at end of the 4 22,417,183,110 15,440,541,241

Tha noies on pages 348 to 83 form part of these financial stalamants




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Decarmnber 31, 2019 and 2018
{All amounts in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

1. GEMERAL INFORMATION

The Social Security Systern (555) is an independent ard accountable government-owned and controlled corporation which administers social security
protection to Filiping workers, lecal and overseas, and their benefidanics. Social security provides replacement income for workers in times of death,
dizability, sickress, maternity, old age, unemployment of ivaluntany separstion and other contingencies.

On Septermber 1, 1957, Repulbdic Act (RA) No, TG or the “Social Security Act of 1954° was implemented. Theneafter, the coverage and benefits given by
555 have been exparded and enhanced through the erpctment of varlous lawa On May'1, 1997, RA Mo, 8282, athorwise known a8 the "Social Security
Act of 1997, was enacted to further strengthen the 555, Under this Act, the government accepts general respoensibility for the sohvency of the 555 and
guarantees that prescribed benefits shall not be diminished. Section 16 of RA No. T16], as amended by RA No. B282, exernipts the 555 and all its benafit
payments from all kinds of taxes, fees or charges, customs or impart duty.

On February 7, 2019, RA Mo, TI99 o the “Sacisl Security Act of 200187, was enacted to rationalize and apand the powers and dutkes of the Soclal Seeurity
Commission (35C) to ensure the long-tenm viability of the 555, repealing for the purpose RA, No, TIEL as amended by RA Np, 8282, cthenwise known as the
“Cocial Security Act of 1997" Among the landmark provisions of the A Mo, 1159 are the grant of unemployment or involuntany separation benefits for the first
tirme in the country, the mandatony coverage of Overseas Filiping Workers (OFwWs), the establishrmant of a Prosident Fund esclushe to S55 mambers, the
congonation of penaities on delinouent contributions, and the legistated adjustments in Membership premium and monthly salary credits. In pursuic of its
policy, 8 soclal security program shall be developed emphasizing the value of Swork, save, invest and prosper” for 8 more responshve 555, The maxdmum
profftability of investable funds and resources of the program shall be ensured throwgh a culture of excellence in management grounded upon sound and
effident policies employing internationally recognized best practices.

Pursuant Lo Section 9 o Tl of RA MNo. TN9S, coverage in Uhe 555 shall be compulsory upon all private empiovess including dormestic workers not over 80 years
of age and thelr employers, self-employed persons, regard iess of trade, business or occupation and sea-based and land-based OFWs. Com pulsory coverage
of the emiployer shall take effect on the finst day of operation and that of the employee on the fist day of employrment, while coverage of self-ermployed persan
shall take effect upon his registration with the 555 Non-working spouse of 555 member and Filipino permanent migrants, inchuding Filipino immigrants,
permanent residants and naturalized dtizans of their host countries may be covered by the 555 on a voluntary basis. Likewise, 555 rmernbars separatad from
employrment including OFWs may continue to pay contributions on a velunitary basis to maintain their rights to full benefits,

Under Section 26-B of RA Mo, TN99, the 555 as part of its investrnent operations, acts as irsurer of all or part of its interest on 555 properties mortgaged
to the 555, or Ives of mortgagors whose properties are mortgaged to the 555. For this purpose, a separate account known as the "Mortgagors' Insurance
Account® was established wherein all amounts received by the $55 in connection with the aforesaid insurance operations are placed in the said account.

Under Section 4 of RA Mo, TN9S, a Provident Fund for the memberns which will consist of contributions of employers and employees, self-employed,
OFW and voluntary members shall be established based on (i} the 555 contribution rate in excess of 12 per cent, of (i} monthly salary credit in
cxcess of P20,.000.00 up to the prescribed maximurm monthly salary credit and thelr carnings, for the payrnent of benefits to such membbers or
their beneficiaries in agdition to the benefits provided for under this Act A member may contribute voluntarily in excess of the prescribed 555
contribution rate andfor the maximum menthly salary credit, subject to such rules and regulations as the 55C may promulgate. The rate of
contributions s well as the minimum and maximum manthly salary credits shall be in accordance wilh the schedule defined undear Saction .29
of the law. The rate of penaity on unpaid loan amortizations shall be determined and fixed by the S5C from time to time through rules and
regulations on the basis of applicable actuarial studies, rate of benefits, Inflation, and othér relevant socioeconomic data.

Under Section 4 of RA No. 8282 voluntary provident funds known as the Flexd-Fund and the Personal Equity and Savings Option [PESC) Fund were
established and approved on September 2001 and June 207, respectively. Membership to the Flexi-Fund is on voluntary basis for those with at least
PI5,000.00 manthily earnings ather covered under existing program of new entrant with sequiremnent of initial contributions to the 555 program. The
PESO Fund Is offerad exclusively to S55 members in addition to the regular S55 Program. It aims to provide 555 memibers the opportunity 1o receive
additional benefits on their capacity to contribute mare. Each member of the PESO Fund shall be allowed a maximum contribution of PS00000.00 per
annum and a minimum of P1.000.00 per contribution. These two funds shall cease upon implementation of the new provident fund provided under
Secthon < of RA No. N9,

The 555 also administers Employees' Compansation and State Insurance Fund as provided for by Presidential Decree (PD) Mo. 626, as
amended. The Employees’ Compensation Commission (ECC), a government corporation, is attached to the Department of Labor and
Employrment for pollcy coardination and guidance. It was created on Novernber 1, 1974 by virtue of PD No. 442 or the Labor Code of the
Philippines. [t, however, became fully operational with the issuance of PD No. 626 which took effect January 1, 1975

Tre ECC isa quasi-judical conporate antity created to imolement the Employees’ Compensation Program (ECP). The ECP providies a package of beneits for
public and private sector employees and their dependents in the event of work-conrocted contingencies such a8 sickness, infury, disability or death

The State Insurarnce Fund [SIF) was estabiished o provide funding suppoant 1o the ECP. It s generated from the amployers’ contributions callected by both
Covernimens Serice Insurancs System [0515) and 555 from public and private Soctor crnplioyors,

Cowverage in the SIF shall be compulsary upon all employers and thair employees not over 60 years of age, provided, that an employee who
is over 60 years of age and paying contributions to gualify for the retirement of life insurance benefit administered by the Systemn shall be
subjact to compulsary covaraga. On March 6, 2019, tha ECC [n [ts Board Resclution No, 19-03-05 aporoved the expanding the coverage of tha
ECP to the self-employed compulsory members of the 555,

The summary of the financial perfarmance and result of operations of the funds as at December 31, 2019, are as follows. All inter-fund
accounts have been eliminated.

888° EC-SIF Total
Total Assets 527,808,783, T00 40,327 40D 348 568,136,183,128
Linbiitios 12,885,962 507 5,217 B52 12,901,180,458
Ecquity 514,912 821 273 40,372 191,506 555 735,012 699
Total Lisbilities and Equlty 527,808,783, T80 40,327,409, 348 568,136,193,128
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Income 262,855,837,997 4,448,974 968 267,304,812,965
Expenses 200,783 040,185 1,846,463 T40 211,629,503 625
Profit!{Lass) 63,072,797 812 2802511228  GHET6309040
Met Incoma 53,072,787 .812 2,602,511, 228
Other comprehensive income

for the period 564 688,013 (447.710,800) 116,888 113
Tatal comprehansiva income 53,637 496,625 2,154 800,328 £5,792,297,153

* 558 inchudns Flaxi-Fund, PESO Fund and Morigagors’ insurance Accoun!
The principal office addness of 555 Is located at Fast Averyue, Diliman, Queron City: it has 176 local branches and 144 senvice and representative offices located
in the various cities and municipalities of the country, and 26 foreign branch offices situated in Asia and Pacific, Eurcpe, Miadle East and Merth America

Theaccormparying financial statements as at and for the year ended Decermiber 31, 2019 {incled'ng the cormparathve francial statenants as at and for theyear
ended Decerniber 31, 2018) were approved and suthorized for issue by the SSC on August 2, 2000,

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements are surmmarized below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all tha years presented, uniess otherwise stated.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Basksof Praparation of Financial Statemants
a  Staterment of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards [PFRS] and Commission on Audit [COA) Circular No, 2077-004

The accorm panying financial staternents ane prepared in compllancewith PFRSs and Phillpoine Accounting Standard (PAS) issued by the Pollippine
Financial Reporting Standards Council (PFRSC) and with COA Circular No. 2017-004. PFRS are edopted by the PFRSC from the pronouncements
Issued by the Intermational Accounting Standard Board and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy. O0A Circuar No. 2017-004 was
msued by the COA as partly mooified by COA Resolution No. 2020-013 dated January 31, 2020, as guidelines on the preparation of financial
staternents and Implementation of the PRRS by governiment corporations dassified as s commercial public entity.

Thie PFRSPAS that wene not applied for the reporting pencd ane as follows:

PFRS 15 - Revenues from contract customer is inappicable 1o 555 mainly beceuse the relationship of 555 and its members i established by the
provision of law per RA TIEL as amended by RAB2E2 and RA TS

PR7S 9 - Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model fior impairment allowanoe was not yet applied in the reporting period until a rational and sound ECL
micdel i established basad on best practices.

PAS1 - Acorual basis of accounting was not applied due to absence of a reliable basks to estimate/getermine the income and expersa for the following:
+  Premiwm contributions collectible from 555 members

+ Unpaid benal® claims flled by 555 members and still in-process.

PAS 19 - Emplovee Benefits are calculated each year by the Actuarial and Risk Management Group, with the assumiption that all regular 555
emphoyeas would retire by the end of the following year. The salary increases and leave credits are projected up to the retirement year, which

are then the basis for the computation of the employee retirerment benefits. Computation was not done using the Projected Unit Credit cost
mcthod, Full complianos with PAS 19 shall be effected In the following vear,

b Presentation of Financlal Statements

Tha financial statements are presanted in accordarce with PAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements. The Systemn presents all iterms of
incorme and expenses in a single staternen: of comprehensive income.

c  Bask of Measurement
The financlal statements have been prepared on the historkcal cost basls, except for the following terns
» Finandal assets at fairvalue through profit or loss [PYTPL) are measwired at fair value;
+ Firancial assets at fair value through other compreher:sive income [FYTOC) ane measured st fair value
+  Inveestrrent properties are measuned at fairvalue, or at cost in exceptional cases;
+  Man-cument acsets hakd for sale ane rmaasuned at the kv of carmying amount or falr value less cost 1o salk and
+  Land under property and equipment ane measured at revabued amount

Fair Violue Measurement

Falrvalue ks the price that would be received to sell an assat of pald to transfer a [iability in an orderly transaction batween rmarket participants
at the measurement date. The fair value of 3 non-financial asset is measured on its highest and best use. The fair value of financial and
ron-financial liabilities takes into account non-performance risk, which Is the risk that the entity will not fulfill an obligation.

Tha 555 classifies its fair value measurements using a fair value hararchy that reflects the significance of the Inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

+ Lewdl ] - inputsane guoted orices (unad)usted) in acthe markets for identical assets or Rabilities that the entity can access at tho measurerment date.
FYTPL ard FVTOC! irvestrients fall under this level

+  Level 2- Inputs other than quaoted market prices iIncluded within Level 1 that are obsenvable for the asset or kability, efther dinectly (that 's, as prices)
or indirectly {that is, derived fram prices). This level includes the majarity of the over-the- counter derivative contracts.

+ Lewvel 3- inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unabsarvable inputs). This level includes investrnents and debt
instruments with significant unobsenvable components This hierarchy requines the use of cosenvable market prices in s valuations whare possible
ivesiment properties and non-curment assels held for sake are within this level.

d. Functional and Pressntation Currency'

The financlal statemnents are presented in Philippine pesa, which is the Systerms functional and presentation currency. All amounts arge
reanded to the nearest pesa, unless otherwise stated,




e  Estimates ard Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assurmptions that affect the application of
acoounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could resu't In outcomes that could require a material adjustrment o the camylng amount of the affected assat or llability in the futura

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continualy evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors, inciuding expectations
of future events that ane believed to be reasonable under the droumstances.

SR Y

Prosdsions ane measuned at the best estimate (including risks and uncertainties] of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation and
reflects the present value of expenditres required to sattle obligation where the tirma value of money ks material

555 recognizes a provision I, and only ift (a) a presant obligation (legal or constructive) has arsen a5 a result of a past event [the obligating evenit); (b)
paryTrent is probable (more Fkely than notl and o) the amount can be estimated rediably.
Events a'ter Reporting Perlod

Post year-end events that provide additional infonrmation about the Systern’s Tlinancal position at the end of eporting dete (adjusting events) are
refected in the financlal staternents. Post year-end evenis that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to firandal staternents when material

22 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS and Intenpretations

. L

Effective in 2013 that are relevant to the System

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the sdoption of the following new and amended
PFRS and Philippine Interpretations which the S55 adopted effective for annual periods beginning on o after January 1, 2013

« PFRS16, Leases - The new accounting madel under the standand requires a lesses 1o recognize an asset {right-of-use asset] and a financial
ligkility to pay rentals (lease lzbility). The right-of-use asset is treated the sarme as other non-financial 2sset and depreciated accordingly, the
liakdlity accrues interest. This will produce a front-lcaded expense profie as an assumed straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and the decreasing interest on the liability will lead to an overall decrease of expense over the reporting period. This brings most leases
on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating distinction between operatimg and finance leases. Lessor accounting,
however, remains unchanged and the distinction between operal'ng and finance lease is retained. PFRS 16 is likely to have a significant
Impact on the financial staterments of a number of lessees. The new standard will affect both the balance sheet and related ratios, such as
debt/equity ratics. Depending on the particular industry and the number of lease conlracts previously classilied as operating leases under
PAS 17, the new approach will result in a significant incresse in debt on the balance sheet.

+ Amendments to PFRS 8, Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation. The emendments clarify that a
fimancial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardbess of the event or circumstances that cause the early termination of the contract and
irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation far early termination of the contracl As such, the financial assets
containing prepayment features with negative compensation may still be classified at amortized cost or at FYTOCL Gain or loss should be
recognized immeadiatedy in the prafit or loss,

- The adoption of the faregoing new ard revised PFRS has material effect on the financial staternents. Additional disclesures have been
included in the notes to financial staterments, a5 applicable.

[Effective in 2013 that are not relevant to the System

The follasing new PFRSs, amendments and annual Improsemsaents to exist'ng standards are mandatory effecthse for annual periods baginn'ng on
or after Januany 1, 2019 but are not relevant to 555 finandal statements:

+  PRRIC Interpretation 23, Lincertainty over Income Tax Treatments ~ The interpretation specifically addresses (a) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax reatnnents separately, [b) the assurmptions that an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities, o)
o an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases on unused tax losses, unused tax credits ard tax rates, and (d) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances Applying tha interpretation could be challenging for antities, particularly those that operate in more cormples
multinational tax envirenments. Entities may also need 1o evaluate whether they have established appropriste processes and procedures 1o
obtain Information on a timely basis that is nocessary to apply the requirements in the iInterpretation and make the required disclosurcs,

- PAS 28 [Amendment), Investment in Associate - Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Venture. The amendment clarifies that the scope
axclusion in PFRS 9 20°4) applies only to ownership intenests accounted for using the equity method Thus, the amendment further clarfies that
borig-torrm INterests in an associate of joint venture - to which the equity method is not appied - must be accounted for unacr PFRS 9 (2014),
which shall also inchude long term interest, that in substance, form part. of the entity's net imvestment in an associate or joint venture.

+  PAST [Amendments} Empioyee Benefits — clarification on amendments, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the cument senvice
cost and nat interest for the rermainder of the annual reporting period are calcuated using updated actuarial assumptions = Le. consistent with
the caloulation of a gain or loss on the plan amendment, curtallment or settlernent.

Annual improverments 10 PFRSs 20152017 Cycle

+  Amendments 1o PFRS I, Business Combinations and PERS 1, Joint Arrangements - Remeasurement of Previoudly Held Inberest in 3 Jalnt
Operation The amendments clartdy thet previoustly heid imterest in a joint operation shall be remeasured when the Company ootains control of
the business. On the ather hand, previously held interests In a joint operation shall not be remeasured when the Company obtains joint control of
the business.

«  Amendments to PAS 12, Incorme Taxes - Tax Consaquences of Dividends, The amendrments clarify that all income tax consequence of dividend
payrments should be recognized in profit or loss.

+ Amendments bo PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Eligibility for Caphalization. The amendments clarify that. if any specific borrowing remiains cutstanding
after the related assat s ready for its ntended use o sale, that bomowing becomes part of the funds that an entity bormows generally when
calculating the capitalization rate on general borrowings.

Effecthwe subseguent to 2009 but not adopted early

Effective for reporting periods beginring on or after January 1, 2020

v Amendments 1o PRRS 3, Business Combinations - Definition of a Business The amendments clarify the minkmum requirements 1o be a business,
rerncve the assessrment of the market participant’s ability to replace missing elerments, and narmow the delinition of outputs.




The arrendments also add guidance 1o essess whether an acouired process is substanthe and add Bustrative exemples. An optional fair value
concentration test s introduced which permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not 3 business, The
amendments are effective and asset i not a business.

+ Amendmantsto PAS 1 Presantation of Financial Saternents and PAS B, Accounting Pelicks, Changas in Accounting Estirnates and Errers - Defin'ton
of Material The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definition used to PFISs and other pronouncements. They are
intended toimprove tha understanding of the existing requinerments rathes than to significantly impact an entity's materiality judgments.

*  Relevant new and revised PRFS which are nat yet effective for the year ended Decemiber 31, 201 and have not been applied in the preparation of the
finarcial stataments.

Effective for annual pered beginning on or after Januany 1 2023 [globolly) January | 2025 flocal Phifogpines)

+ PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts - PFRS 17 s a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance conbracts covering necognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosune, Once effective, PFRS. T will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, which currently permmits a wide
variety of practices in accounting for insurance contracts The new standard applles to all types of insurance contracts (e, life, non-life, direct
insurance, and reinsurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionany participation faatures. A few axcaptions will apphy.

+ The overall chiective of PFRS 17 is to provide an acoounting model for insurance contracts that is more wseful and consisted for insurers. The
code madel of PFRS 17 s the general mode!, supplemented by a specific adaptatien for contracts with direct panicipation features (the
variable fee approach] main’y for shor-duration contracts. The new standard requires insurance liabilives to be measured at & curment
fulfillment value and provides 8 more unifonm measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. The new standard
requines insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment vabkue and provides a mare uniforrn measurement and presentation
appraach for all insurance contracts. These requirerments are designed 1o achieve the goal of a consistent, principie-based acoounting for
Insurance contracts.

Effectivity deferred mdefintely:

« PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Staternents and PAS 28 |Amendrments), Investment in Associates and Jaint Venture.
The amendments 1o PFRS 10 require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gain or kosses arising on the sale or
centribution of assets that constitute s business as defined in PFRS 3, between an ‘nvestor and its sssociate or joint venture.
Corresponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that
when debarmining whether assets thal ware sold or contributed a business, an entity shall consider whether Lhe sale of contribulion
of those assets |s part of multiple arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction.

The 555 plans to adopt prospectively all relevant and apolicable standards from the date of its effectivity.

23 Financial assets

a

Date of recognition

The 555 inftially recognizes loens and recefvebles and deposits on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized
initially on the trade date at which the 555 becormes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

"ot i

Tha S5S inttially recagnizes a financial asset at fair value. Transaction costs ane included in the initial measurement, excapt for financial assets
measured at FVTPL

Determination of fair value

The 555 determines fair value based on the nature of the financial assets classified according to the intention of the management following
the fair value hierarchy of PFRS 13. This seeks to increase corsistancy ard comparability in fair value measuramants and related disclosures.
Based on the hierarchy categony which congders the inputs used in valuation technigues into thres levels, 555 financial assets fall under Levels
Tand 3 only.

Closication

The 555 classifies its financlal assets as subsequently measured at FVTPL or FYTOC! or at amortized cost based on the business model for
managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

a1  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL corsiet of held-for-trading financial assets. Held-for-trading financial assets are financial assats acquired or held for
the purpose of selling in the short tenm or for which there is a recent patvern of short-term profit taking.

Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurmed. Financial assets at FYTPL are measured at
fair value and changes therein are recognized in profit of loss.

d2 Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets ané mmeasured ot amortized cost if both af the following conditions ane et (1] the asset & held within the System's business
mioded, the objective of which s to hold the assets in order to coliect contractual cash flows; and [2) the contractual terms of the Instrument
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principals and interests (SPPH) on the principal amount outstanding.

Alter initial recognition, financial assels al amortizea cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less aliowance for iImpalrment, if any. Amortized cost Is calculated by taking Inte account any discount or premiurm on acgu’sition that arc an
integral part of the affective interest rate.

Galns and losses are recognized In profit or loss whan the financlal assets at amartired eost are derecegnized or impaired, as well as through
the amortization process.

Loars and recehables are financial asets camed 8t cost or amortized cost less impalrment in value, Such assels are with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market.
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d3 Firancial assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets are measured at FYTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: [1) the asset is held within the business model, the
oblective of which is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and [2) the contractual terms of the
instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPP on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition,
FYTOCI financial assets are carried at fair value in the staterment of financial position. Changes in the fair value of swch assets are
recognized in othar comprehanshe Incama and prasented within aguity in the unraalized gain of loss on FVTOC! financial assats partion.
When FYTOCI finamcial asset Is derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses are not recegnized to profitor koss, Instead, it will remeain part
of the statemeant of comprehansive Income. Dividends an FYTOC! equity instruments are recognized In profit or loss whan the right to
receive payments is established.

e Impaimment of financia’ assets

The Systerm assesses ab each reporting date whether there is objective evidenos that 8 financial asset or group of financial essets & Impaired. A
financial asset or group of financial assets is deerned impaired if, and only i, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or mane
events that occurred after the Initial recognition of the asset (an incumed "loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the finandal asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The carmying amount of the impaired account is
reduced o the exdent that it mocoeds the asset’s not realizable value. impalnment losses are recognized infull In profit or loss.

If in subsequent period, the amount of accumulated impairment loss has decreased because of an event cocurring after impairment has been
recognized, the decrease is allowed to be reversed to profit or loss to the extent that the resulting carrying value will not exceed the amortized cost
determined had no impairment been recognized.

Thia ECL rradiel of PFRS 9 was not yot appiied 85 cited In Note 21a.
f  Demcognition of financial assets

Financal assets are derecognized whnen the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or have been transferred and the 555 either has
traraforred substantially all risks and rewarnds of cwnership ar has nedther transferned nos retained substantially a'l the risks and rewards of ownership,
bt has transterned control of the asset

Cagh ard cash equhvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash in bank, deposit on call and highly bguid imestments with orginal maturity of three
manths or less, which are readily corvertible to known armount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change In value,

Irventories

Supplies and miaterials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, Cost is getermined using the weighted average method. |nventories are
recognized as on expense when deployed for utilization or consumption In the ordinary course of operation of the 555,

MNor-current assets held for sale [NCAHFS)

Non-cument assets ane classified as held for sale if thelr canrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through cortinuing use.
This condition i regarded as rmet whan the sale s highly probable and the asset is avallable for immed|ate sale in its prasent conditlon

Assets classified &s held for sale are measured gt the kower of camying armaunt and fair value less coss tosell Any excess of camying amourt over fair value
less costs to sell ks an Impalrment loss. Mo depreciation ks recognized for these assets while dlassifled as held for sale.

NCAHFS includes neal and other proporties acquired (ROPA) in settiernent of contribution and memberhousingfother loan delinquencies through
forechosure of datkan in payTnient. They are initially booked at the carmying amount of the contrbutionfean delinguendy plus Lransaction costs incurred
upon acquisition When the booked amount of ROPA exceeds the appraised value of the acquired property, an allowance for Impalrment |oss equivalent
to tha enxoess of the amount booked over the appralsed value is sat up.

Upon in-depth assessrment that properties classified as NCAHFS ceases to meet the conditions set under PRRS 5, such assets will be rec'assfied to other
essel classilication which best suits the individual assessment criteria of the property.

Immmﬂ

Investment property acoodnt consists of land of bullding held bo earm rentals andlor for capital apprecation. This accouint also includes real properties that
were proviousy subiect of mortgage lean, indhvidual real estate loan, cormmercial and industrial lean which were foreckosed or acouired through diocion
en pogo, cancelled or refnguished by former owners [n favor of 555 due to non-payment.

T fair values of Investment proparties ane determinad annually at the reporting date by an Indepandant professionally qualified valuar and intermal
appraiser, The 55C in ts Resolution Mo, 156-5.2020 approved the interim use of the weighted average valuation comprising 2% for external appraisa| repart
and V3 for 555 In-house appralsal report.

The Market Data Apprcach, Cost Aporoach, and Incarme Approach wene used by the in-house and extarnal appralsers in determining the value of the
properties. The market value is estimated using gathered available local market conditions giving considerations to the following: [a) extent, character and
utiliy of the properties, (b} comparable properties which have been sold recently, plus curment asking prices, (o) poning and curment bna usage in the:
locality. ard {d] highest and best use of the property.

The generally accepted Market Data or Comparathve Approach was used to measure land under the irvestment proparty cased on sales and listings of
cormparable property registersd within the vicinity, Comparsons are premisad on the factons of lecation, land uss, physical characteristics of the tand and
time element. The value of the land with improverments, the aporaisers used the Cost Approach taking Into scoount the current cost of reprod uction, new
of the replaceable property In accordance with the prevalling market prices for materdals, labor, contractor's overhead, and profit and fees In amriving the
value of the improverments, the modified guantity suney method was used by analyzing the various construction elermens of the property [foundations,
codurnins and beams, loaring walls, reof, etc). In Incame Approach, the value of the propemy s determined using the intenest rates and yiekds as well as
the records of nental income and operating expenses. However, in some cases when there are no comparable [Eings in the open market, the Value
Opinion from other appraisers or the 2IR Zonal Valuation are used which ane considered as Level 3valuation

Transfers to or from Inmvestment property ane made when there is a change in use, evidenced by [a] cormmencement of owner-cccupation; (b) end of
owner-oooupation; of (] commencement of an operating lease to anather pary.




28 Property and equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less scoumulated depeeciation, amortization and any impalment in value. Land s carried at
revalised amount. Increase in value as a result of revaluation is credited to equity under proparty valuation resense unless it represents the reversal of a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized &s an expense, in which case it is recognized as income. On the other hand, a decrease
arsing s a result of a revaluation i recognized as an expense to the extent that it cxceeds any amount previously credited 1o property valuation reserve
redating to the sarme asset.

‘Valuations are done by an external independent appraiser every three years or s the need anises. The valwe of land was arrived at using the Market Cata
Approach. In this approach, the value of the land is based on sales and listings of comparable propertes registened within the vicinity. This approach
requires the establishment of comparable properties by reducing reascnable comparative sales and listings 1o a common denominator witn the
subject. This is done by adjusting the differences between the value of the subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable.
Comparisons wene pramised on the factors of location, land use, physical characteristics of the land, ime element, quality, and prospective usa On
improvernent and building, the Cost Approach was adopted in armiving the marxet value of the building. This approach considers the cost 1o reoroduce
or replace in new condition the assets appraised in accordance with current prices for similar assets Inchuding costs of labor, transport, installation,
commissioning and consultant's fees. Adjustment is then made for accrued depreciation which encompasses condition, utility, age, wear and tear,
functional and economic obsolescence.

Construction in progess (CIP) nepresents buiking and building/leasshald improverments under construction and s stated at cost. CIP & nol depreciated
unitll such time as the relevant assets are completed and put Into cperational use.

The Initial cost of property and equipment consist of its purchase price, Including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly
attributable cost necessary in bringing the asset to s working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also includes an initial estimabe for
disrmantling and rernaving the itenn o restoring the site on which it s located, the cbiligation for which an entity incurs when the itern & acguined. The
capitalization threshold for an item to be recognized as property and equipment s PIS000.00 while terns whaose amounts are beiow the capitalization
threshold are accounted as sermi-expendalble property.

The cost of replacing a part of an iterm of property and equipment s recognized in the carrying amount of the iterm it i probable that the future
economic berefits embodied within the parn will flow to the 555, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. An Item of property and equipment is derecognized when edther it hes been disposed or when it s permanenthrwithdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any geins or losses on the retirement and disposal of an itern of propery and
equipment ane recognized in the consclidated staterments of incorme in the period of retirement or disposal

Expenditures incurmed afier the ivarn has been put inlo operations, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally recognized as experse in the period
such cost ane incumed.

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount less its residual value. Itis recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful Pves of each part of an itern of property and equipment.

Effective January 1, 2019, the system recognizes the right-of-use [ROL) asset for the right to use the underying asset over the lease term. ROU asset is
initially measuned based on the present value of the lease payrments plus any initial direct costs Incurmed and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
resmove the underlying asset or to restore the underhing asset on which & is located, less any lease incentives receved.

Consistent with COA Circular Mo, 2007-004, the estimated useful lves of property and equipment are as follows

Ansets Uneful L ife

Building and other stuciures 10-30 years

Land improvements 10 years

Transporation aquipmant T yoars

Leasehold improverments 10-30 yoars or the term of lease whichever is shorier
Rights of Use Asset Term of the lease

Property and equipment except land and construction in progress have resigual value equivalent to 10 per cent of the acquisition cost.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts untll they are no longer in use and no further depredation and amaortization are recorded of
charged to current operations.

29 Imangible assets
Aoquined computer solbwany censes ane capilalised on the basis of the costs incurred 1o acquire and Bring 1o use the speclic software. Computer
softwareficenses with finite [hes are amortized on a straight-ine basis over their estimated weeful Bves, while those with indefinite useful lves or those
used parpetually or for as long as there ane computers compatible with them ane carried at cost and tested annually for Impairment or whenever there
s an indication that the assets may be impained.

210 Impairment of non-financial assals

The carrying amount of non-financial assets, other than investrment property and ron-curment assets held for sale is assessed 1o determine whether
thara & ary indication of impainment. or an impairmeant pressously recognized may No longer exist o mMay have decreased. I any such indication axsts,
‘then the asset's recoverable amount is estimaned. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's falr value less costs to sell and isvalue in use.
Impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount. of an asset excesads iis estimated recoverable amownt. The carmying amount of the asset. s reduced
thraugh the use of an allowancs socount and the armount of ke s recognized in profit or ks unless it refates to a valued asset whene the value
changes ang recognired in other comprehensive incormefioss and presented within equity In the property valuation reserve portion, Depreciation and
amortization charge for future periods is adjusted.

An impairment loss s reversed i thene has bean a change in the estirnates used to determine the recovarable amount An impairment less i reversed
anly to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the camying amaount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impalrrent loss had been recognized in prior years.

211 PRevenue recognition

Revenue 5 recognized to the extent that it s probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the 555 and the amount of revenue can be reliably
risasured. PFRS 15, Revenue from contract customens s iInapplicable to 555 malnly bacausa the relationship of S35 and its members k establiched by
the provision of law per A 8262 and not based on contract while interest and other income from investments are covered by PFRS 9,

- crsme ©



The fellowing specilic recogrition criledia must also be mel before revenus is recognized:
Members' contribution
Revenue is recognized upon collection, except for contributions from Fled-Fund and PESO Fund memnbers which are directly credited to equity.

4

d

Interest and penalty income

Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking inta account the effective yield on the assat.

Effecthae Januany1, 2019, the 555 changed its accounting policy in the recognition of penalkty income an the financial assets from cash basks to acerual
basis to conform to the standard. The accrued penalty are computed foliowing the approved policy:

v Accrual of penally sannad on loans shall only be sllowed if the loans and othar credit socornmadations &ne Curnent andl pesforrning.

+  Loansarecurrent and performing if any principal andfor penalty are paid for at least 90 days. from contractuad due date.

= Moaconual of penalty is allowed iFa loan has becomea non-performing. Penalyy shall be taken up as incorme cnly when actua! payments ane recovered.

*  Loans irmestrments, recehables, or any financal asset shall be considensa non-perionming, sven without any mssed contractual payrmants, when it s
considered impaired under exising accounting standarcs, classifled as doubtful or loss, in tigetion, and/for there s evidence that full repayment of
principal, Interest and penalty is unlikely without foreciosure of collateral, Fary:

* Al other loars, even If not considened Impaired, shall be considered non-performming if any principal and/or interest andor penalty ane unpald fior moe:
than 90 days have been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement.

Theeffect of the change on the Staterment of Financal Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income ane presented in Note 33,
The interest income per PFRS 9 s intermalated with ECL implermentation. Since ECL was nat implemented in 2019, the approved accounting policy for
Interest and peralty income may not necessarly be aligned with PFRS 9,

Dividend income [s recognized at the tirme the right to necehve the payment s estabiished.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

212 Expensa recognition
Expenses are recognized in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income upon utilization of the service or at the date they are incurred.

215 Leases

555 a5 |eszpe

Thex 555 has appied PFRS 16 effective Januany 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach which does not require a restaternent of prior period
numnbers and be reponted under PAST7.

At inception of the contract, the 555 has sssessed that the contract contalns a lease that comveys the right to control the use of an identifled asset for a perlod
of tirne in exchange for consideration. The Systermn assessed whether

+  The contract imvoles the use of an dentified oot - which the ssset & physically distinc or represents substantially all the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
* The Systern has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

* The Systern has the right to direct the use of the asset and that it has the deciion-meking rights that are most retevant 1o changing how and for what
purpess the assot is Lsed.

As 3 lessee, the 555 classified leases as an operating lease based on its assessment of non-transferability of the risks and rewards of ewnership The right- of-use
asset s recognized for lease contracts that have a term of mare than 12 months at the commencement date of the lease.

The leasa llabliity & initlally measured at the present value of the lease payrments that are not yet pald at the commencement date, discounted using
appiicable Bloomberg's PHI? BVAL rates. The weighted awerage BVAL rate used in 2019 is at 6.50X%.

In applying PFRS 16 for the first time, 555 has used the following practical expedients permitted by the Standard:

* The useof aweighted average rate toa porifollo of lesses with reasonably similar characteristics;

*  Reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onenous

+ Theaccounting for operating leases with a remaining kease term of less than 12 months as at January 1, 2012 as short-term leases (straight-line basis);

+  The exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial apolication; and

* Theuse of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend of terminate the lease.

555 has also elected not to reassess existing keasa contracts at the date of initfal application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date
555 relied on its asseserment made applying PAS 17, Accrued rent payable is also adjusted accordingly.

The 555 leases varlous offices nationwide. Rental contracts are Typically made for foeed periods of three to eight years but may have extension options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
555 as lossor

Liearses, where the 555 does not transfer 1o the lessee substantially all the risk and benefits of cwnership of the asser, are classified as operating leases. Lease
Incorna from operating leases is recognized as incomeon a stralght-line basis over the lease tarmm.

In any case, 555 does not enter into a finance lease agreement.

214 Related pamy disclosures

PAS 24 enzures that an entity's financial statermants contain the disclosures necessany to draw attantion o the possibility that its financial position and profit or
bxss may be affected by the existence of retated partles and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. Related party transactions are transfer of
resourcess, senvices of obligations between related parties, regardiess of whether a price ischarged.
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1. | CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account is compesed of the following:
2018 2018
Cash mlﬂﬂ 1,447 8O3 465 1.164, 088 582
Cash In 2,305,950,545 1,087,522 850
Cash w 18,663,340,000 13,208,630,000
22417.193,110 15,440,641.241

Cash in banks earmns Interes: at the respective bank deposit rates. Time and specdial savings depasits are made for varying periods of up to 90 days
depending on the immediate cash requirernents of 555 and sarn interast at the prevailing time and special savings deposit rates

Interest rates per annum range frorm 000 per cent to L15 per cent for savimgs and current accounts and 140 per cent to 4.25 per cent for time and special
sanings ceposits.

In considaration of tha banks’ making thair deposit pick up facility avallabla to the 555, the latier agreed to mainta’n an swerage daily balance ranging
from Pl milllion ta P25 million in a non-drawing intenest bearing current account/savings account [CASA] with each of the banks’ senicing branches. As
at Decermnber 3, 2019, P407 million i being maintained in soveral banks for such purpose.

Interest incorne earned fram cash in banks and terrn deposits amauntad to PO02991 raillion and PT73195 milllion as at Decermnber 31, 2018 and 2088,

respoectively (see Mote 1)
FINAMNCIAL ASSETS
This sccount is compesed of the following:
Current Financial Assets
e 2018 2018
Financial assets — at FVTPL
Govemmant sacurites 24,825.049,102 16,500,823, 120
Equities - siocks 10,238,295 423 B,273,430,506
Extemnally fund T 3254118497 -
Invastmaent in mutual fund 3,299,001,358 3.110.872,148
45,837,757,700 30885325775
“Finandal assats — al amartzad cost
Invesimant in bonds — kocal
Govemnmmant borsds 11,842 467 652 439,840,354
Corporate notes 3,045858,953 2,034,537 470
bonds 3,275, 340,000 3,700,000,000
1 174,477
84,101,424,305 37,058,803 838

The fair value of financlal assets through profit or loss are measured using active quoted market prices, recurring and Lirl 1 based on the level of
Tair value hierarchy. They are measured at fair value to properly reflect the changes and actual values of the asset in the market.

Pursuant toSecthon 26-A of the RA NoU TIFES, the 55C under its Resolution Mo 10354 dated Decernber 12, 2018 approved the engagement of seven local
fund managers who shall ba respansible in the fund management and inestment of a portion of 555 Imastment Resane Fund. The deployment
surategy of funds totaling P7 billlen or P billion per fund manager are as follows:

Balanced Fund Mandate Pure Equity Fund Mandate Puire Fhied |naorme Mandate
*  Riral Commancial Banking Corporalion * B Amat Managermenl and Trust Corporation * BP Asml Managerment
*  BP Assct Management and Trust Comparation *  Metropolitan Bank and Trust Compary and Trust Corporation

*  ATRAM Trust Corporation *  Philequity Management, Inc.

Mutual fund irvestment is an imestrment vehicle made up of a pool of money collected from mary investorns for the purpese of imvesting in securities
such as stocks, bonds, maoney market instruments and other assets managed by professional fund managers. Imvestment in dormestic mutual fund was
appraved by SSC under Resolution Nos 351 and 509 dated April 25and Juna 20, 2018 respectivaly, with a P3 bilon allotrment. The sald amount is imested
and diszributed at P bilion each to the three accredited mutual fund companies, namely: Philequity Fund, Inc, Philippine Stock Index Furnd Corpand
Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Balanced Fund, Inc. As at December 31, 2018 and 2018, the vaiue of invested funds amounted to P399 billion and P
billion, respectively.

The eosts. of the financial sssats are as follows:

__2m9 2018
Govarmiman] securnios: 24,251 5 88T 18,8951 B3B8 458
Equities - riocks 12,528, 068,528 B4G8.3TT 242
Extemailly managed fund T.000,000,0:00 -
Irvaalmant In Mutual fund m.ﬂ_l,ﬂ! 3,018,108 287
45,516,968 235 32.,436,123,985
HNon-Current Financlal Assets
ame 2018
Financinl assols of amortised cost
Inmveatmant In bonds - local
Govemmant bonda 153,175, 588,710 148,008,814 267
Comporate bonds 20027377 483
Componabd notss. 5.510,000,000 8, 888 B66,668T
Govermmeni noles L 810,
183,438, 775,652 178,432 858 417




FLT 2Ne

Festwing

“Finencial assets-FVTOC]
Equly securties 78,522,400,585 86,487,880,699
Govemmant bands 0,104,017,578 42,561,003 478
Corporate notes. 2,338,750 885 2,338,750 686
— Corpomin bands 825,203,512 459,731,358
134,490,374, 788 131,858,388.11
314,927,150411 310,281,214 568

The fair value of the FVTOC! Fnancial asset are measured using active quoted market prices, recurring and level 1 basad on tha level of fair value hierarchy.
They are meas.ured at fair value to properly reflect the changes and actual values of the asset in the market. Fair value gaing/losses are recognized in the other
comprehensha Income. The cost of the financial assats as at Decembaer 31, 2019 and 20N8 |s PI52.992 billlon and PIE2680 billon, respectivaly.

Motes and bonds earn interest at 150 to 1250 per cent depending cn the amount and terms of the investment. Interest income earned from
invastrmants in bonds - local as at Decernber 31, 2019 and 2018 is P10C7T21 billion and P10.273 billion, respactively (see Note 2L

5 OTHER INVESTMENTS

This account consists of Investment in Time Deposit In local currency beginning on August 7, 2019 with original maturithes of more then 90 days and
earns interest at 1.4 to 3.8 per cent. As at Decembar 31, 2019, the book value of the time deposit amountad to 2400 millian.

6 RECEIVABLES

‘This account consists of the following:
Current Receivables
2018 2018
Fostated
Loans and receivable accounts 4 555 A5 BE4 4,290 686 918
Lo recahabls 85,566,248 78,478,033
Ciher recalvables 1,188,852, 700 3,240,432 548
5,830,772,500 7,610,688,600
Loan and receivables account are measured at amortized cost pursuant to PFRS 9. These are composed mainly of the following details:
2018 2018
Resialed
Accounts recelvable 268,178 520,551
Intenest recaivabie 4,526,613,940 4,288,825, 781
Dividends recabiabis 27,110,161 16,364,300
Sales contract receivable 1,358,568 4,878,277
4,555 350 B4 4,290,686.518

The Interest receivable account represents the accrued interest from vanous 555 investrnents such as cash equivalents, notes and bonds. and koans
and receivables which are still uncollected as at reporting perica. Likewise, the penalty receivable represents the accrual of penalty income from
various delinquent loans. These accounts are credited whenever cash is collected, aither monthly, guarterly, semi-annually or annually depending on
the interest/penalty payrmant dates of the Investment.

Lease receivable is com posed of operating lease receivabiles from contract of lease executed with the lessees amounting to P5.597 million.
Other receivables are composed mainty of the following:

2018 208
Restated
Pena ty recelvatie 214,334,106 55.433,184
Recevables - disallowances/charges 22,353,125 25,007,168
Due from officers and employeas JA8T. 96T 1,073,585
Insurance claims recahvable 312388 938,691
Othar racaiviebles 951,455,114 3,153,070.011
1,188,852,700 3,240, 432,648
Impairment loss for loans and receivables is broken down as follows:
2018 Fol ]
Restated
Intenest recaivabe 19,007,245 20,801 340
Opanating leass recoivasbio 6,466,038 3,147
Oihar recaivables 9,580,128 2,728 818
15,431 412 23,534 306
As at Decermnber 31, 20019 and 2018, the accrued interests and poanalty are as follows:

2019 2018

Interest recaivabie
Govermmant notes and bonds 3,312,385,641 3141, 712,299
Marnbar loans 884,880,784 819,324,701
Corporate notes and bonds 260,172,272 265,902,709
Cash squivalant and STMP 85,301,878 35,822 708
Housing loans 2,158,030 879,650
Sales contract receivabie 1,724,346 5,483,714
S iRl e ]

" 4,528,612,049 ..HI;‘IE

4,507 ,606,704 4,248,124 441




Diviclersd recehables ane cash dividends earned but not yet received on shares of stocks that are held &s FA at PVTPL and FA at FyTOC!,

Sale contract receivables are contracts ansing from deed of conditional sale execuled by the commission with properties under NCAHFS to
varicus buyer of the said properties

Operating lease receivables reprasant accrual of rental income from lenants of S55 which are collectible within a year. Rental income = derived
from Ivestrnent propernty, ROPA and operating assets and recognized PT32765 milllon and P732.678 million Income as at Decembaer 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively [ses Note 30.2),

Other recehables consist mainly of Recehable from Sale of Fouity Securities amounting to P&14.4B1 milion and Recehable - Collecting
Banks/agents {CBCA) of PS35.472 million. Receivable - CB{CA acoount represents premiums and loans receivables collected by banks and agents
aceradited by S55 bUL mol yet femitted 1o 555 a& at Decermbar 31, 2010 and 2018. The sald sccount B debited for the ameunt indicated to the
collection documents or e‘ectronic data files from CE/CA and credited for the amount of remittances'deposits of the CEs/CAs, The balance of the
acoount as of Decermnber 31, 2019 was presented net of negathve balances totaling to PET0.97 million which are mostly prior years unsubmitted
collection documents that did not pass the validation criteria. The implementation of the PRM which resulted to the immediate posting to the
subsidiany ledger of the members effected the reconding of the collections thus decreasing the Recsivable from CBICA

IL also includes Recehalble - disallowances/charges Unal are disallowances in awdit due from 555 officials and emiployees which have becorme final
and executony amounting to PZ2353 million and P25.007 milion as at December 31, 2019 and 2008, respectively.

The 55C Resolution Mo 97-52020 dated 2 February 2020 approved the Policy on Revenue Recognition of Penalty Income an Financial Assets from
cash 1o accrual basis, hanca Lhe 2018 armounts ware restated. The effect of tha restaterent is shown in Nete 33, Panaly recenvables are broken
dow &5 follows:

2018 2018
Rastassd

Penalty Recetvable
Member loans 212,784,241 58,531,451
Housing loana 80, hEE §ir.rra
Fental racaivabla 525 262 383,914
Sales confract recefvable 5517 -
214,325,106 50,433,184
Allowances for impairment (9,960,129} (2,729,819)
204,384,977 56,703,365

Hon-Current Recsivables
2018 2018
Rnstrnd
Loans and receivable 122 884,082 T2 118,058,890,800
Loser rpcohva biln 15,738,293 14,037,764
Other recalvables 1,316,150,808 1,458,130,485
124,195,971,770 110,526,858,673

Loans and recevable scoount is composad of short-term laans, housing koans, commercial and industrial loans to 555 members and persion loars to
5SS retiree-pansioners, as follows:

2010 2018
Mamiber loars 85,294,306,035 ©1,848,083,718
Pansion loans 2,008,385,B82 403,955,977
Housing loans 1,737,963,123 2,002, 860,547
Commarcial and industrial lans 89,508 283 68,778,450
Program msmbar assistance for developman? entreprenaurship (MADE) 17,218,220 17,210 200
: 99,128,393,543 54,141,877.521
Aligwance for impairment (7,113,034, 156)
92,015,350 387 85,718,321,378
Loars and receivables sarn imterests at their respective rates, as follows:
Mamibor loans 3040 10.0
Pension loans 1000
Hiousing loans 30k 120
Cormme sl and industrial loars (CIL) 26140
Loan & ofhar govemment corpormtion 4.0
Salsa coriract rcahab 8.0t 9.0

Cn March 7, 2018, the S5C under ks Resciution No. 214-52018 approved the re-implernentation of the Penalty Condonztion Program/Loan
Restructuring Program (LRP) extending the availment period up to sk months from Octolber 2, 2008 to April 1, 2018, The implementing guidelines
under Office Order No. 2018-023 covered the member-borrowers affected by previous calamities/disastars with the objective of providing reprieve
1o rmembers with past due calamity Ioans and ather shot-term member lcans resiiing or working In calamitydisaster-stricken areas s declaned
by the Mational Disaswer Risk Reduction Management Council or by the Mational Government. The total principal and accrued interest of all past
due short-term loans of the member-borrower shall be consolidated into one Restructured Loan [ALY). Penalties shall be condoned after full
payrment of outstanding principal and interest of RL within the approved term. The balance of RU should be rero at the end of the term.
Caherwise, the unpaid principal of AL and the proportionate balance of condonable penalty shall become part of 2 new principal under
Restructured Loan 2 [ALZ). As at April 1, 2018, mamber-borrowers availment of the re-implemented LRP reached to 658,402 with total

loan amount of F1L.409 billion and condonable penalty of P3.529 billion.
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The Educational Assistancs Loan Program amolinted 1o PSOGES bllllon consisting of tha 50:50 555 and NG shares, has besn expended/adtanded as
loans to member-beneliciares as at December 31, 2019, which is one of the main compositions of the member loans. The loans for degree course shall
be payable in five years to start 18 months for semestral courses, 15 months for trimestral courses, or 14 months and 15 days for quarter term courses
from the scheduled last release date or from the date of last release for those who will not avail of the subseguent releases. For technicalfwocational
courses, the lean shall be payable in three years to start 18 months for sermestral courses fram the scheduled tast release date or from the date of last
release for those who will not avell of the subsequent release. Interest and penalty on overdue amortization as at December 31, 2079 and 208 are
P508.306 million and P41.326 million, respectively.

For the Pension Loan Program (PLP} launched on September 3, 2018, this alms to provide financial ald to qualified 555 retiree-pensioners by way of
previding low interest loan. The program was spproved by the S5C under Resolution Mo, 341 dated April 25, 2078 and its implementing guidelines were
issued under Office Order Mo. 2018-033 dated May 8, 2018. After 10 months of implementation, the S5C under its Resolution No. 429-52019 dated July 5,
2019 approved the enhancement of the program in terms and conditions of the PLP, Among the highlights of the enhancements are as follows: (1) the
maxirmum koan limlt increased frorm P32,000 to P200,000; (2) the age of the retiree-pensioner at end of the month of loan term changed from B0 years
of age or below to BS years of age and below; and (3] longer loan repayment terms from 12 months to 26 months. The monthly amortization of the
pension lean shal! be deducted from the monthly pension of the pension loan borrower in which the first monthly amortization shall become due on
the second month after tha loan was granted. Interest rate remains at 10% per annum until fully paid computed on a diminishing principal balance,
which shall become pert of the menthly amortizatien. The number of loan releases reached to 74,503 or an increase of 56,328 from 18,175 releases in
2008 As at Decernber 31, 2019 and 2008, total loans amounted ta P2.003 billion and P403.956 million, and interest income recognized is PS2192 milllon
and P3156 million, respectively.

Loan to other gowemmeant corporation rafers to loans from National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation (NEHMEC) as mandated under Executhve Ordar
[EC) Mo, 30 to be the major government home mortgage Institution whose initial maln function was to operate a viable horme morigage market, utilizing
long-term funds principally provided by the S55, G515, and Home Development Mutual Fund [HDMF), to purchase maortgages originated by both the private
and public institutions within the Unified Home Loan Program (UHLP) guidelines. In accordance with the mandates of ED Mo, 50, the 55C in its Resolution
No. 509 dated August 4, 1988 approved the long-term [oans to NHMFC for low-income 555 members. Total loan relegses from 1988 to 1995 amounted to
F30.075 billion with total housing loan borowers/beneficiaries of 135229, In 1996, a substantial number of UHLP Portfolio borrowers defaulted in the
payment of their kans to NHMFC, thereby causing NHMFC also to default in its payments to 555. To address the deterioration of NHMFC's financial position,
a Memorandurm of Agresrnent dated Juma 5, 1996 was execuled by the parlies. On Decamber 17, 2003, the SSC under Resclution No. 684 approved the
restructuring of NHMFC's total obligations of P40.51S Billien broken down into: Principal (Low, Moderate & High Delinguency] — P27.940 billion, Accrued
Inkarest - P11.56] billion and Penalty - POB14 billion. The interest and penalty were not capitalized during the restructuring and are to be paid after full
satisfaction of restructured principal obligation per Restructuring Agreement.

As at Decernber 31, 2079, the wolal outstarding obligation of NHMFC is P21.792 billion, broken down as follows:

Principal 9,830,770,308
Interas 11,961,415,881
Panalty 814,840

21,702,801,239

The Department of Finance [DOF) in its ketter to Department of Budget and Management (DRM) dated July 3, 2099 requested for the P10 billion allocation
in the 2020 Mational Budget for the account of NHMFC for the full settlernent of the latter's obligation to 555. Also, the S5C in its Resclution Mo. 68152019
dated Septambar 25, 3019 approved the condonation of accrued interests and penatties wihich shall take effect once the request of the DOF to the DBM for
provision of an annual Net Lending Program for O 2020-2022 is approved and aliocated by the lstier,

Non-current inlerest receivable includes those originated from Home Guaranty Corporation (HCC) guaranteed corporate notes and koan to NHMFC
amounting to PI20L443 millicn and PRLSTS billlon, respectively.

The 55C approved 555° participation and Invested in various HGC-guaranteed Asset Participation Certificates (APC) from 1995 to 2000, Howaver, the
Agsat Pools failed to service the regular interest due on the APCs. In view of Lhis, the 555 decided to call on the guaranty of HGC Tram Novern ber 2000
to July 2001, HGC was unable to pay in full guarantee obligations and partially settled it through the Issuance of debenture bonds and transfer of 19
lats through dacion en pago. From year 2005 ta 2015, correspondences were sent and meet ngs were conducted batween and among 555, HGC, and
DOF. Upon approval of the S5C under Resolution No. 829 dated Novernber 27, 2013, 555 formally filed with Office of the Government Corporate
Counsel (OGCC) the Patition for Arbitration and Adjudication vargus HCC {Arbitration Case Ne, 2012-004). Ameaunt subject of arbitration |s PS.07 billlon
covering the principal, HGC-guaranteed interest, and compound interest. The case is sill with OCOC. Several negotiations were made on the
sottlement of obligation including proposal for condonation of HCC-guaranteed interest and compound intanest for endorsement to the Office of the
President of the Philippines. The Risk Management and Investment Committes [RMIC) in its meeting held on June 27, 2019 directed Management Lo
request clearance from the DOF Secretary to renegotiate for better terms towards settiement of HGC's obligation to 555, As of December 31, 2019,
on-going negatiation between 555 and HGC Involving cash repayment of the remain’ng balance and the compromise agreement within acceptable
terms and conditions is being undertaken,

Impairment lass for Mon-Current Receivables is composad of the following:

2018 208

Rostabed

Accounts receivabie 7,113,034,158 B.427 558 545
Interest racatvabia 12,707,637,959 12,707,637,953
Loans receivable — other govemment corporation 4,815,385,154 5,037,978,148
Sales contract recehvable 44,548,782 54,781,680
Oparaling loase recaivable 15,738,280 14,037,781
Other recaivabies 604,606,031 544,812,221
25,3948,850,382 26,782 884,332

Meverments in Allowance for Impairment Less of ron-current receivables for CY 2019 are as follows:

Balance, January 1 Additionsl Recovery! Bdnm.

[Restated) Provisien Reversal December
Ledins and recelvatls 26,223,834.330 AT 591,686 1,489,318,853 24,782 608,063
Lease receivable 14,037,781 1,705,324 4,815 15,738,260
Other receivable 544,612,221 74,524 112 18,830,302 600,606,031
26,782,884,332 124,231,122 1,508,155,070 25,388,950,384

" L— :



The net impaimment. provisions as of Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2018 amounted to PT24.237 million and PL22S billion, respectively and ane recognized in the
books using the Guidalines in Identifying and Monitcring of Firancial Assels and Setting of Allowance for Impainment Losses, which was approved by the
S5C under Resclution No. 161-5 20k, However, for the Loan Restructuring Program which ended in March 2019, the Impairment provision rate was
maintained at 20% [or the rate for substandand accounts that was used since the start of the program).

INVENTORIES
This sccount is compesad of the following:

2018 2018

Offca suppilas Inventany 118,590,907 152,741,200
Accountabie fonms invertony 5,484,002 TA70.318
Druga and medicines 3,008,051 6,011,908
Medical, dental and lsboratony supplies inventary 302,585 3,371,579
127,367,525 160,485,003

Alicswnnca for imgairment L ."!:;.ﬂll 2
95,920,305 168,485,003

Supplies and materials issued and recognized as expense during CYs 2019 and 2088 amounted to P168.09 milkon and PZI2186 milion, respective’y [see
Mt 263, T arnount of written-dean Imventones which have becams obsolete In CY 20019 armaunted ta PILA4T rndlllon.

NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
This sccount is compesad of the following:

Acquired ansetal
Land Building Ragintared Total
Carmying amount, Janusry 1, 2018 7,831,638 526,020,315 345,370,840 a78,022,793
Accumulatad impairment loss L (491,840} (20,724,233 {21,218,073)
Net carrying amound, January 1, 2018 7,631,538 525,528 4TS 324,548,808 857 B0B, 720
Addians = 582,660 848,072,715 348,855,375
Trangh - = (18,038, 560) (16,006,500)
Disposals (5,000,128) - (280,608,270} (285,908,398)
Imgairmont (lossVrecovery & 431,840 {10,856,277) (10,364,437}
Hot carrying amount, December 31, 2018 2,831,510 528,802 875 382,820,185 882,154,870

Acguired assois/
Land Building Rugistered Terkad
Nt Carmying amourt, January 1, 2018, as rported 189,024,530 506,720,329 583,132,885 1,388,887,124
Reclasafication io IP {121,695,667) (B,870,000) (300,467 054) (431,232,921)

T = S R R

Addesons . - 348,871,363 346,671,300
Transter (640,326,988) (5.863,165) {13.737.020) (79,847,161}
Disposals [245,700) (82,271,610 (266,313,504} (350,830, 814)
Impairmenl (loss)recoveny 1075282 25,823,811 (22,8:40,073) 4,058,100
Reststiod Mot camrylng amount, December 31, 2018 7,831,638 526,628 4T5 324 B48.80T B5T 808,70
Festatad Het carvying amount, Decombor 34, 2047 67,120,082 587,850 320 282 865,811 B37.854,200

The non-current asset held for sake (INCAHFS) s measured at the lower of canying amount and fair value less cost tosell. The fair value i measured based
0n the assesarment of intermalfexternal expert, non-recurring and is level 7 and 3 basad on the level of fair value hierarchy, As at December 31, 2001, the
impairmient koss of F14.715 milllion and recoveriesreversals of impairment of P4.863 millien are recognized in profit or loss. This also includes impairments
on the Sales Contract Recehvables that were reveried back to Acquired assetsPegistered account amounting te POSE milllien,

Had there been no Impaiment, the camying amount of the NCAHFS as at December 31, 2018 and 2018 are as follows

2018 2018
Fastind

Land 2,831,510 6,556,376
626,111,138 480,704 564

Acquired axsels/Registered 373,776,483 347,486,679
202,518,108 853,747 818

As for the internally appraised properties classified as NCAHFS, the va'ue of land was established using the Market Data Approach. The initial value of the
lang Is based on the sales and [stings of comparable propertics Adjustraents were then applied to the gathered value of land by comparing the physical
and lecational characieristics of the subject property and the comparable properties.

Tnevalue of the improvements was arrived at using the Cost Approach, The current reproduction cost of the improvernent or structure is first established
in secardancs with the provailing market prices of coRStruction mMaterials, [abor, contractors’ overhaad, profits and fees. Adjustrnents are then made to
refllect depreciation resulting from physical detericration and obsolescence,

NCAHFS includes real and other propertles acauired (ROPA) which are held for sale If Its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. As of Decermber 31, 2019, 555 has sold 401 properties through cash and instalment: bases generating gain
on sake of P2A227 million.

NCAHFS/ROPA can be keased out momentarity while waiting fior ks sale to madmize its potential income As at December 31, 2019, 222 ROPA properties
with a total book value of PI0.0S5 million ane being leased cut under a canceliable lease contract that can ba terminated anytime withoul army penalty
irmposed 1o 555 Rental income reconded as at Decernier 3, 2019 and 2018 for these ROPA amounted to P4LTOE milion and P2E6.480 rmallion, respectively.

The foliowing NCAHFS propertios, wihich were not soid for mone than five years even with continuous rrarketing efforts except for MCAHFS-ROPA-Registered,

are reclassified to Investment Property:
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9, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
This account Is compesed of the following prepayments:

20M8 2018

Pragaid rent 11,472,281 10,685,347
Advances lo contractoralsupplisns 3,000,000 3,000,000
Prepaid insurance 420,314 338
Other prapaymants 340,048 188,876
15,232 643 13,884,550

Advances o conlractors/suppliers represent cash deposit Lo Procurement Service (PS)- PhilGEPS intended for the Covernment Fares Agreement (GFAL The
GFA s an initiative of the Department of Budget and Management and the PS-PhIIGEPS that will ensure fast, efficient, fexible and savings in time, enengy
and rmoney when processing the alr transportation neads of all gevernmant afficers and parsonnel of thelr domestle tripa, Other prepayrnants which congist
mainty of withholding tax at source is 8 creditable withholging tax from remtal or other services deducted oy an entity designated by BIR as authorized agent.

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

This account is composed of the following:

Land Buliding Developmant Cost Total
Fair value, January 1, 2019 38,311,377,358 5.818,722,048 9,885,838 42,140,785, 244
Tranafar 16,096,690 {45,969,000) = {Z8.932.410)
Fair value gain {Joss) 11,177,050 478 (189,227,085) - 10,677 832 283
Fair walus, December 31, 2018 47,504 4T3 428 6,574,525,953 8,886,838 53,088,885.217

Land Building Dwwalopment Cost Total
Fair value, January 1, 218, as previously eported  32,8T2.788,7TT7 5.541,918,000 9,885,838 38,424, 359,615
Recipssification from NCAHFS 757,512,917 4,350,000 - 781862917
Foatnied Fair valus, January 1, 2018 33,630,268 664 5,548,268,000 0,885,838 38,188,222, 632
Transfor 13,737,018 - - 13,737,018
Fair vabus gain loss) 2,887 371,845 273,484,048 - 2,040,825,683
Reelated Fair Valus, Decamber 31, 2018 36,311,377,358 5819, 722,048 0,685,838 42,140,785, 244
Restated Fak Value, Decamber 31, 3017 33,830,288, 884 5,548,268,000 6,885, B30 36,188,222 632

The total costs of investment praperty as of December 30, 2019 and 2018 Is P10.770 billion.

The fair value of investment property s determined based on the Cost and Market Approach methods performed by independent appraisers and
in-house aporaisers, non-recurring and is Level 2 and 3 based on the level of fair value hisrarchy, Market values were based on the evidence of raliable
transactions like recent land sales and sales offerings of comparable properties within the vicinity and the application of land capitalization rate. Data
gathered from interviews with brokers and other real estate practitioners who are conversant with the property market wera also used as bases,
Adjustment factors were likewise considered such as the date of appraisal, size, location, comer/road influence, and conditions of sale.

Some |Ps were measuned at cast model because the fair value cannot be determined reliably due to legal cases still pending with RTC-Makati and
Suprame Court for the FCA 7, Memorial Lots and Green Meadows properties, respectivaly (Note 37).

As ot Decamber 31, 2018

Imvestment Propadty Book Valus Estimatad Appraised Valus
Pasay City (FCA 7 Sito 2) 2,624 825,000 18,155,038,800
Pryce - Memorial Lots 448 885,000 858,100,450
Graan Masdows 120,379,000 1,338,330,152

3,191,768,000 20,149,568,202

The appraised value was not used due to the fact that the appraisers did not include in their valuation the effect of the pendency of legal casas on the
said proparties Thus, the falr value cannot be ascartained. The fair market value for the said properties consists of the following:

Invastmeant Proparty 2018 2018 2017
Pasay City (FGA 7 Site 2) 18,155,039,800 13,799,.080,000 B,249,450,000
Pryca - Mamorial Lots 656,109 450 409,048,028 530,096,500
Green Meadows 1,338,330,162 1,198,972, 100 506,258,890
20,149,569,202 15,388,000, 128 8,335,805 390

The lollowing amounts are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Incomae:
2019 2018
Restoted
Mat gain on fair value adjustment 10,977,832,382 2,940,825,893
Fantal incormss 683,122,051 702,843,572
Penalty on rentals 5,382,127 1,543,977
Direct operating expenses (111,587,958) (65,653,288)
Impairment loss (7.001,974) (&.578)
11,548,020,628 3,579,651,378
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The rentals or sale procceds on the investment property ane subject to the restriction provided under Sections 25 and 26 of the Social Security Law, which
states that 1) per cent of other revenues shall be used for administrative and operational expanses. All revenues that ane not needed to meet the current
adminsirative and operational experses shall be accumulated in the investrment Reserve Fund, As at December 31, 2012, there are no investment
propertles sold.

Direct operating expenses incurred for investment properties generating revenue through lease as at December B, 2019 and 2018 & PTI2 832 milkon ard
PS2.944 million, respectively.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET
This sccount is compesed of the following:

Furnlture and
Equipmuant,
Bulidings Equiprment,
nnd Bulkding/ Comparter
Land Laasshold of Hardware and  Constnuction in
Land _ improvement improvements Uss aesot Others progres Totsl
Gross camrying amount
Jameary 1, 2018 4,543,368, 645 TR M0318  1,486,083,248 - 3,014,880.538 47,082,148 8,120,735 287
Additions - - = 1,136,768, 73T 551,055,880 23,109,965 1,711,732, 51
!‘n:m - - 57,065,387 - - {11,006,38T) 45,089,000
rement'cancallations!

__duponal/usiments E = _(NAILIS) [SA308) MOOTRTSO)  RIGST)  _{BGS10490)

Docomber 31,2019 4543369645 19340319 1,511,736,808 1,130.362431 3519856077 56,260,148 10,782926438
Accumuisted depreciston
Jaruary 1, 2018 - 10,637,324 808,216,108 - 2238542813 = 3,156,396,045
Daprecisticn Expanss . 1,053,861 44,765,821 220,543,525 200,617 504 - 486,880,531
Ratirernent’cancellalcns/

__disposallacjustments : - (42199.487)  (1,065264) (41,550,567) : 824
December 21, 2018 o 11,681,208 o1, TR, 262 10,4TH, 261 2,395 600,568 = 3538 552 288
Accumiilated Impalmment loss
Jarary 1, 2019 - 1,137,050 108,834,118 - - 110,071,168
Transfar - - - - - - -
Im fiomss G - _- - 4 s =
December 31, 2019 - 1,137,050 108,934,118 = = = 110,071,189
Per cost modal, December 11

4,543,360, 645 6,512 065 401,020,437 010,884,170 1,124,257 517 54,260,148 7,134,302,87T1

Fumniturs and

Equipmant,

Bulldings. Equipmant,

and Building/
Land Leasehold Hardware and Construction in
Lmnd Improvement Improvsments Others Tokal
Groas carrying mmount

January 1, 2018 3,317,280,000 10,752,881 1,458,831,047 2830208743 B4,410,254 T.678,520, 525
Addtions . - - 252,802 648 18,060,758 272,083,706
Transfers 58,954 200 8,587 438 39,337,054 - (%2,200.37T) T4, 560,315
Net revaluation incresss 1067, 164,445 - - - - 1,167,1564,445

depreciation

January 1, 2018 . 6,724,180 B4, 023,572 2,134,567 504 - 3,007, 335,856
Deprecistion Expensa - 814,804 42.811,840 188,714,130 - 210,440,774
Transfar - 1,088, 340 2,280,206 - - 3,378,638
Ratiremant/'canced ai:ona/

—_disposalladjustments - = = (64, TES021) .

_Ducombor 31, 2018 - 10,837 324 909,218,108 2,236,542,813 lr%
Accumyisted Impalrment loss
January 1, 2018 . 848,351 136,673,067 - - 138521418
Transtar £ = 6,008,435 6,009,435

_Impaimmant loss : 184 655 (35,848, 383) (35,458 684)
Decamber 31, 2018 - 1,137,050 108,834,118 110,071,188
Per cost Modsl, Decambaer 31,

2018 4,543,360,645 7,565,943 ATISI019  TIRII8306 47062149 8.864,260,084

Armaong the property and eguiprment, only land is subject 1o revaluation which was made by an independent appratser in December 2018, Any increase
in the value of the land as a result of revaluation is recorded under property revaluation reserves while a decrease is recognized as an expense (o the
extent that it exceeds ary amount previously credited to property valuation reserve. The balance of the proparty revaluation resenves as at Decamber 31,
209 and 208 is P4.046 billion and is not subject to any appropriations as at end of the reporting period.

If land were stated et the historical cost basis, the camying amount as at December T, 2019 and 2008 s PS34.062 milllion.

Rental income from a porticn of five property and equipment under a cancellable 'sase agreement as at Decemiber J1, 2019 and restated Decernber 31,
2008 ks PT5T million and FIOMES millicn, respectively, were included in the Staternents of Comprehensive Income Tha portion under lease cannot be
sald separately and insignilicant, thus, rermains as Property and Equiprment

The 555 recognizes the Right-of-Use Agset (ROU) for the right to use the underhying laasad asset As at Decembear B1, 2018 the carmying amount of the ROU assat
is PS0.884 million. ROU assets are depreciated each year on a straight-ine over the term of the lease [see Mote 14

As at Decerniber 31, 2019 and 2008, the total camying amount of fully depreciated property and equipment that are still In use are PTLEES milllon and

PZR.087 million, respectively.
555 70180 KNNUAL REPORT @



1L INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS - NET
This account is compesed of the following:

2018 2018

Coat

Balance, January 1 805,412,631 733,191,548
Addions 14,000,000 90,586,539
Transfers/adjustments - (18,386,518)
_Retirement/disposala/cancellation (27,844.802)

Balance, Decamber 31 791,568,020 BO5 412,831
Accumulsted emortzation

Balance, January 1 454 262 300 454 267,971
Amortization for the period 53,685,288 39,684, 320
Ralimment/dispesala’cancallation {1,912,374)

Balance, December 31 548,045,214 484, 262,300
Accumulated impalrment loes

Balance, January 1 75,828,227 75,828,227
Ratrement/disposals/canceilation (28,932.227) L
Balance, December 31 A5 06,000 75,828,227
Par Cost Valus Model, Decembar 31 195,626,815 235,322 104

Intangible assets with definite and indefinite life include both computer software and licenses. The carrving amount of intangible assets with
Indefinite life as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 Is PE0.ESS million. All intangitles with definite lives are amortlized efther over a perlod of five years or
with 20 per cent annual amortization rate. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the total carrying amount of fully depreciated/amortized intangible assets
that are still in use are PATT202 milllion and PATLESS milllion, respoctivaly.

5. OTHER MON-CURRENT ASSETS

This account Is composed of the following:
2ma 2018
Restated
Depoaita 92,177,831 85,601,718
Other assets 285,453,580 279,148,883
377,871,221 364,661,399
Accurmuiaied iImpairmen - other assets {110,528,016) {115,087 098)
267,142,205 249,554,303
Other assets account consists of fire insurance premiurn [FIF) and mongage redemption insurance (MAI) advanced by 555 for properties marigaged to the 555
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
This sccount is compesed of the following:
2018 2018
Currant financial llablites
Accourts: payable 6,161,118, 482 6,186,290,167
Accrusd expenses 1,894,842,208 2,017.238,788
Lease by 185,358,852 -
5,248 288,339 B.203,528,055
Non-currant financial llabiliies
Cparaling leass payable - 45,300,960
Loase |abilise 765,314,040 -
784,314,040 45,380,880
8,013,603,379 8.248,919.915

Accounts payable and sccrued expenses comprse of 555 obligations payable Lo members, suppliers, employess and officlals and refund to
member-borrowers for loan overpayments,

Men-current financial liabilities represent rent payables for lease contracts entered by the 555 as of December 31, 2018 and for 2019, it represents the
leasa payable for the right te use the underlying lsasad asset up to the end of the lease contract in accondance with PFRS 16 as fol lows:

208
Beginning Balance, January 1, 2019 &
Satup/Additions 1,138,786,737
Lease Paymants (83,183,807)
Retirement'Cancalaton/Adjustments (82,910,348)
Ending Balance, Decembaer 31, 2019 960,6TL,E92
Currant lsass latifties 195,358,852
Morecurrent lease linbiities 765,314,040

The associated right-of-use assels are measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
redating to the lease recognized as shown in the table below. There were no onerous lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the
right-of-usa assets at the date of initial application

Boginning balance, Janusry 1, 2019 At
SetupiAdditions 1,138,786,737
Raotirenpnt/Cancallaion/Adjustmant {5,339,042)
Depreciation (220,543,525)
Ending Balance, Decomber 31, 2018 910,884,170

555 as a bessee maintains 145 lease contracts with variakhke berms ranging from meore than one year 1o 10 years that are recognized as assel ana [iability, whike T

contracts with term of less than one year are recognized as operating expense.

Az at Decernber 31, 2079 and 2008, the total rent payout amounted Lo PIS35E8 million and P2SATH million, respectively (see Note 29,

. C—
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INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account is composed of the following:

19 2018

Due to BIR 81,074,602 61,408,510
Due to GSIS 74,523,180 T2.227.332
Due to PhilHealth 7,052 440 367,480
Due to Pag-BIG 5,290,331 4,876,071
Do o 555 - 5,048,522
Due to LGUs . 280
167,840,561 144,810,403

This account includes withholding taxes, contributions to G5I5, PHIC, HDMF and loan amartization due to 555 which were daducted from the payrol| of
555 employees.

Duse o BIR includes among others, VAT payabla, other taxes withheld for remittance ard over remittance for offsetting in 2000, The VAT exemplion of
555 was repealed by Section BS of the RA, 10963 also known a5 the Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAIN] effective January 1, 2018,

TRUST LIABILITIES
This account is compesed of the following:
2019 018
Trust liabilites 482,385,219 38T 608,600
Guarantyfsecurity deposits payable 230,385,454 237,603,881
Customans' deposits payabis 168,314,824 138,832,464
561,095.497 TiES, 344,734
Trust llabilities consist of the following:
FLak] 2018
Funds hald In trust -
Officlals and employess 410,245, B33 352, 362 314
Bomowers and othe: payors 3342817 3,717,714
Supplers and cradiiors 4,837,210 4,462 820
555 Prowvident fund and Madical Insurance 3378 E24 3,035,858
Flead-fund 10,288,808 8,508,199
Dividends - stock imvesiment loan program 848, TET 15,501,904
Educational lcan fund - DECS 87,082 =
462,395,210 387,508,809

Funds heid in trust [FHT) from officials and employees indudes among others the amounts deducted from their separation/retirement claims for the
benelis recehved but subsequently disallowed in audit which as at Decernber 31, 2019 and 2018, amaountisd 1o P380554 milban and P3S400 million,
respectively. This is done Lo assure collection once the pending appeal in court or COA will result in an unfavorable decsion and disallowences become
final and exeoutory. However, in the event that the Supreme Court dedsion should be in favor of 555 and its emiployees, the amount withheld from these
retined employees will be returmed in full.

Guarantyfsecurity deposits payable is composed of bidder's deposits, performance or cash bonds and netention money from winning bidders in the
procuremant of goods and senvices, infrastructure and corsultancy sanices.

Customers deposhs payabhke are rental deposits rmade by tenants of 555 properties.

DEFERRED CREDITS/UNEARNED INCOME
This account is composad of the following:

2018 2018
Current:

Daferad credits - output tax 1,143,787 1,088,026
Uneamed rental income 75,301,331 57,048 826
76,445,128 58,045,852

Mon-cumant
Unaamed income-unraalized gain-GBond 356,812,179 382,762,848
432 357,307 441 806, TO1

Trd sUtput ta is the value-sdaded tas of S55 for It properties under ks whils unearmod rental Incofn MERcents advancd rentsl payrnents from
tenants of 555 properties.

Tha non-curment unearnad income represents unnealized gain from 555 participation In the Republic of the Philippines Domestic Debt Consciidation
Program (Bond Exchange) 2071 and 2014, and Liability Managerment Program (Bond Exchange) 2015

PROVISIONS
The sccrued retirement benel ts of employees as ot December 1, 2018 and 2018 are as follows:
2019 208
Leave banafits payahie 1,003,172,055 564,916,238
Rednement gratulty payable 28,801,057 641,074,473
Criher provisions 281,201, 381 254,784,785
1,313,084,493 1,480,775, 508

Leave benefits payable represent the cash value of the accumulated vacation and sick leave credits of employvees, 50 per cent of which can be
menetized onoe a year and the balanos payable upon resignation/retirerment. As a1 Decermber T1, 2009, there wene 2420 employoees who avalled of the

rrsorvEtizatan of eve cnpdins with totsl arnaunt of PI23.953 million.
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Retirgment gratuily payable is svailable (o qualified employees under any one of RA No. 1616, RA No, 660 and RA No, B291 Under RA No, 1616, 555, 83
the last emnployer of the gualified employees, pays the gratuity benefit of those who opt to retire under the said law. Benefits under RA No. 860 and RA
Mo. 8291 are pa'd by GSIS. Thus, the lability only pertains to RA No. 1616

Other provisions pertaln to Retirement Incentive Award [R1A) given to employvees with at least 20 years of creditable sarvice and are antitled 1o PS000
for every year of service upon retirement. As at December 31, 2019, 149 employees were given RLA in the total amount of P24.811 million.

The provision is calculated each yoar by the Actuarial & Risk Management Group [ARMG), with the assurmption that all regular 555 emplovees would
relire by the end of the following yeer. The salary increases and lesve credits are projected up to the retirement year, which are Lhen the basis for the
computation of the employee retirermnent benefits.

OTHER PAYABLES
This account is composed of the follewing:
2019 2018
Currant 1.083,118,232 1.890,631,097
Nor-current 50,000,000 50,000,000
S 1,113,119,232 2,040,631,007

The-other payables - curment portion represents the undistributed collections, are as follows:

2019 2018

Member loans (ML) coliection 883,045,940 1762462284
Undlisiribuied collection 33,059,838 73,568,485
OFW collections 089,087,523 8,131,581
Salas pantract moshabls 49,733,771 46,848,029
Rantal Recaivable B,6TD 434 ¥
Raal astabe loans collaction 9,553 18,620,738
Employees” housing lcan program 3,173 -
1,083,119,232 1.880,631.097

These are collections for loan amortizations and contributions that have not yel been posted Lo individual members or borrowers and other accounts
pending receipt of collecting agenciesfermnployers’ documents and actual distribution of collections and payments whose nature are not indicated by
payars. Hence, undistributed collection accounts always carry respective balances at the end of any ghven period.

On member loans collection, the balance of unposted collections decreased to P883.046 million because the 555 has undertaken various efforts to
address the posting issues and expedited the reconciliation process thraugh (1) enhancing computer programs and systems, (2) continuous sending
and monitaring of No Collection Lists and Unbalance Transactions to branches, (3) regular clean-up of unpostables and reconclllation and (4]
improved frequency of generating the Actual Distribution of payments in the electronic Loan Management System (e-LM5) on a semi-monthiy basis.

On the other hand, the modules in the e-LM5S aid in the management of the undistributed collections on member loans. Billing and collection module
hastened posting of payments and minimized unpostables through a simplified process In the lssuance of billing and receipt of collection list. Loan
Record Management module will facilitate availability of reports on employers’ payments without colkection |ist and with collection list but underpaid,
The pasting of loan payments under the Payment Management module will be based only frorm Cash Collection System without manual enceding of

lean paymen:s.
The non-current portion of Other Payable represents the P50 million seed money to fund the initial investment activities of the PESC fund.

20. EQUITY
The 555 Equity Is compesad of the following:

2019 28

Resarve fund 581,651,564,402 525,441,040,184
Revalualion surplus 4,045,242, 700 4,046,242 799
Members' equity 1,038,881,527 BT3,408,815
Cumulative changes in falr value of irvestments. {34,501,888,050) (30,822 445,528)
555,235,012,669 499,538,244 272

The Reserve Fund as at December 2018 was restated to reflect the effect of the change in accounting policy set out in Note 211k, on the recognition of
panalty incorme on ML, HL, 5CR and rental receivable from cash to accrual basis, reclassification of NCAHFS to IP and other prior peried adjustments,

as follows:
2018
Rostatad
Balance at December 31, 2018, a3 reported 408,358 507,166
Reclassification of NCAHFS to IP
Al the beginning of January 1. 2018 330,628,995
Dhuring the year of 2018 10,753,485
341,383,480
Accrual of panalty incoms
At the baginning of Januery 1, 2018 50,383,055
During the year of 2018 9,040,128
59,433,184
Prior penod adjusiment
Available for sade financial assets from cost i fair value measunement BBE, 442 812
Irnpairment of panalty recalvablas and other non-curmant asasts {117,522 150)
Balance st Decambar 31, 2018, as restated 499,538, 244,272

Investrment Resarve Fund [IRF)

Ther Imvestrent Reserve Fund as at Decembaer 31, 2009 and restated 2008 is PSS0.835 billion and PS35139 billion, respectively.
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M reveniues of 555 that are not needed to meet the curment administrative and operational expenses are accumuiated in the reserve fund. Such portion
of the reserve fund that ane rot needed to meet the current benelR obligations is known as the IRF which the S5C manages and invests with the skill
care, prudence and diligence necessany to cam an annual incomne not kess than the average rate of ureasury bills or any other acceptable market yield
indlicatos in any or in all of tha undertaking, under such rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the S5C

Mo portion of the IRF or income therea! snall accrue to the general fund of the National Govermment of 1o any of s agencies or instrumantalities,
including government-owned or controlled corporations, except as may be allowed under the 55 Law. |t also provides that ro portion of the IRF shall be
irvested for any purpose o inany Instrurnent, institution or industry over and above the prescribed cumuliative cellings as follows: 50 per cent in private
secuiities, 5 par cent in housging, 30 per cant In real estate-related irnestmants, 25 per cent n short and medium-term membser lbans, 30 par cent in
government financial institutions and corporations, IS per cent in afy particular industry and 7.5 perosnt in forsigr-curmency denomanated investments,
5 par cent In private-spansored infrastructune projects without guarantes, S per cent In private and government-sponsoned Infrastructure profects with
guerantee, S per cent in private and government-sponsared infrastruciure projecs.

As at December 31, 2018, all ivestment categaries are within the 585 charter limits of the RA TNEA.
Long-Termn Viability of the Phiippine Sociol Security Systern

The Seclal Security Act of 2018 requires the 555 Actuary to submit a valuation report every three years (every four years, In previous k) or mone
frequently s may be necessary, to determine the actuarial soundress of the resense fund of the 555 and to recommend measures on how (o
improve its viabidlity.

The reserve fund Is affected by (3] changes in demographic factors (such as increased |ife expectancy, ageing of population, declining fertillty levedl
and delay in retirernent) and [b] the econcmnic conditions of the country. Economic factors on which assumptions are made include interest rates,
inflation rates and salary wage increases. With thesa and other assumptions, and taking Into account the uncertainty of future evants, the life of
thie fund is projected,

Tre recent actuarial valuations have shown some Improvements in the projected fund life, Le, from the fund e lasting uo to 2031 in the 2000 Actuarial
‘aluation, it extended to 2042 in the 2015 Valuation, However, the 555, like moest defined-benefit social security schemes, is faced with the reality of a
less-than-ideal actuarial fund iife, and a corsiderable level of unfunded liabilitses. There is unfunded liability when the reserve fund is lower than the
liability {the difference between the present value of future benedits and operating expenses, and the present value of future contributions).

The summmary of results for the original 2015 Valuation and the updated 2015 Valkuation, which took into-consideration the P1,0C0 additional persion
allowancs i 2007, ane comparned in the next tabla.

Comparison of Ky Projection Results
mlmwmmwumwm
{(Amount in Trillion Pesos)
2015 Valuation

Ky Prosoction Fosults Original® Uipdatad With 1,000 Additional Pansion Bonsdt

(A) (B) =)
Yoar Fund Wil Last 2042 204 2032

2034 2024 2022
Urifusichesd Lishility Computation (Discount raks = 63%)

(a5 ui Dec. 31, 2015) {as at Jan. 1, 2017} {ms at Jan. 1, 2017)

LEabsifty 87 41 538
Resarve Fund .40 0l 0.43
Unfunded Linbility 47 g 4.95

“An publshied ki i 3615 Acusinl visketion regcn

Tne Implermentation of the 7,000.00 additional pension berefi in 20717 reduced the fund life by 10 years, from 20462 to 2032, and caused the net revenue
0 be projected to become negative by 2022, way earfier than 2034 which was projected in the original 2005 Valuation.

Tre unfunded liability was computed at P4.05 trillkon a5 of January | 2077 [see column C). For proper comparison, the reference date of present value
computations for the original 2015 Valueation wes updated from December 31, 2015 1o January 1, 2077. Performing this updata resulted in an unfunded
limbslity of P3.E7 trilfon (see column B]. Thus, the increase in pensicn benefit in 2017 effectively increased the unfunded liabiity by P28 trillior.

On Februarny 7. 2018, RA TS, also known as the Sodial Security Act of 2018, was signed [nto law. Among the salient features of the law are the following:

1  Increass in contribution rate and minkmum and maxmum monthly salary credits (MSCs) in accondance with the foliowing schedule effective
January of the year of implementation

Yaar of Contribution Sham Marthly Sakary Cradit
~ Implamantation Reata Employsr  Employss Mirimurm Maximurm

2018 12% % 4% 72,000 P20,000
2024 13% B.5% 4.5% 73,000 P25,000
2023 14% 9.5% 4.5% P4,000 P30,000
2025 15% 10% 5% P5,000 P35,000

Z Mandatony coverage of Overseas Filiping Workers 5 Rationalized powers and duties of the Sodal Security Commission

3 Intreduction of unemployment benelit 6. Enhanced Investrment capanlizies

4, Esmablishment of valuntary and mandatory provident funds

On February 20, 2019, R 11210, also known as the 105-Day Expanded Maternity Leave Law, was likewise signed into 'aw: This law increased the number
af compensaible days for any instance of lve birth from 60 and 78 days to 105 days, with additional 15 days fior solo parents. in addition, the maternity
benalTt can now be availed regardless of the number of daliveries or miscaniages.

T effect of the two nesw ws on the updated 2015 Valuation, with the PLO0GO0 additional pension allowancs in 2017, ks summarized in the table below:.
Comparison of Key Projection Results

Updated 2075 Valuation with R T8 and RA TINO

[Amaount in Trillion Pesos)

2015 Vahation
With P1,000 AddSional Pansion Banefit With P4,000 Addiiorsal Psnaion Benafit,

Ky Projection Results RA 11188 and BA 11240

A1) A2y {8)
Yaar Fursd Will Lesl 2032 2032 2084
Yiar Net Fsvenus Bacomas Nagatve a0z 092 2017
Unfurded Liabiity Computation (Discount rate = 8%

) {asod Jon 1,2017)  (ns ot Jan 1, 201E) {am ot Jam 1, 2048)

5.38 B.01 BAT
Rasarys Fund 043 045 045
Unfunded Liabity 495 5.58 472

embanbon peviod w3 ko pear 208G)
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The implementation of RA NS5 and RA TIZI0 in 2079 extended the fund life by 12 years, from 2032 to 2044, and projected the net revenue to turn negative by
2037, much latar than 2002 which was previcusly projected.

Prior to the passage of the two new laws, the unfunded llability as of January 1, 2077 was computod at P4.95 trillion. Adjusting the reference date of presont
value computation to January 1, 2019, the unfunded liabil ity Increased to PSS trilllon. However, considering the effect of the new laws, the unfunded liability
was reduced to P72 trillion.

The 55F lifle and unfunded labilities presented above were determined using an open group projection method, where members who will jain the Systemni in the
future are considened in the projection of revenues and expenditures, The 555 program, as with other sodal security schemes, was designed such that the
contributions of the curment paying members fund the banelits of the curment pensionens; hance, therne s incoma tronsfer across ganerations. With the continuous
membership of future generations into the Systemn, the benefits of the current and future pensioners are continuously funded by the contributions of the former;
hence, the open-group projection methad is appropriate in assessing the sustainability of the 555 program.

Meanwhie, the closed group projection method considers only the existing members up to end of reporting date while continuing their contribution up to cartain
date. The unfunded liablity computed with this approach is highly theoretical, as it s only truly meaningful for a program that is intended to be fully funded.
Neverthakss, it provides an insight as to the magnitude of the unfunded llabiity of 2 program thar Is designed to be partially funded, such as the 555 program. Tha
companson of the unfunded |abilites computed under the open and cosed group projection methods are presented in the following table.

Updated 2005 Valuation

Comparison of Key Projection Resufts

Open Group vensus Closed Croup

Amount in Trillion Pesos) -

Projection Resulls Group Closed Group
) (A )
“Yoar Fund Wil Lasl 2044 2008
‘Ynar Mol Ravenue Becomes Megatie 2037 2030

i (o ot Jian. 1, 2020) (e it o, 1, 2000)
b by 548 8.85
Faasrves 0.48 048

Az enpected of a partially funded program, the 55 Fund life under the closed group method ks shorter by eight years at 2036, compared to 2044 under
the open group method.

The unfunded Habllity as of Decamber X1, 20015 at PE37 trilllon under tha clesed group mathod ks greater as well, comparsd to P5.00 trilllon computed
under the open group method.

The current unfunded lability and fund life situation presented above was caused In part by a structural imbalance, brought about by the mismatch
of the Increases In pansion, M5C calling and contribution rate. During the peried from 1980 to 2016, pensions ware increasad through across-the-poard
pension increases of up 20 per cent [22 times] and increases in minimum pension amount through Republic Act No. 8282, MSC ceiling also was
Increased 12 times, The contribution rate, on the other hand, was only Increased four times during the same pariod, from 8 per cent to 8.4 per cent in
1980, B4 per cent 1o 9.4 per cent in 2003, then to 10.4 per cent in 2007, and finally to 11 per cent in 2014.

The effect of demographic change on the fund should also be recognized, as there may not be enough contributors remitting to pay all the expenses
and banefits of the growing number of pensloners dus te declining population growth rate and langthening life spans.

To address these and other bswes on the viabllity of the reserve fund, actuarial valuations and other studies are conducted regularly, the results of which
serve as basis of recommendations for policy reforms. The recommendations mentioned in the valuations include raising the contribution rate, improving
the contribution collection, increasing the minimum and madmum MSCs, revisiting the pension formula, reviewing the qualifications for eligibility for
long-tarm banefits, ralsing the retirement age, and exploring other means to improve the adequacy of benefits. Further reform packages and other
measures shall be formulated, which simultaneously address the interest of the stakeholders of 555 benefit adequacy for current pensicners, and financial
sustainability for future pensioners, who are now active contributors of tha 555

Revolugtion Surplus

Revaluation surplus & the result of revaluation of assets. The balance represents the excess of revaluation/appralsal value over the boow value of the revalued asset.
Members' Equity

Members’ equity represents the contributions of Fled-Fund and PESO Fund members which earn interest based on guarantesd rates. Guarantesd earming shall

be computed based on 555 short term peso placernent rate or Si-day Treasury Bill rate, whichever is higher for Flexl-Fund, and for PESO Fund, it shall be based on
the Syear Treasury Bond rate and 3bd-day Treasury Bill rate

Cumulotive Chongaes in Fair Volue

2019 2018

Ragtated

Balanca, January 1 (30,822, 445,528) (8,556,971,868)
Mal gain (loss) arising on revaluation of financial sssels al FVTOC! {878,240, 53%) 122,285,473 680)
Balanos, Decambar 31 (31,501,806,058) {30,822 445,524)

The curmnulative changes [n fair value represent the investrments revaluation reserves arising on the revaluation of financial assets that have been recognized in
other comprehenshe Income.

SERVICE AND BUSIMESS INCOME

This account is composed of the following:

2019 .?J'IB

Mambars’ contribution 218,618,814,550 180,343 516,577
Imbarest Incorms 20,904,556,058 22.107,810,880
Fines and penaites- business income 3412,317,758 3,055,750,5682
Dividend income 2,084,537 804 3,078,353, 241
Rentiease income- invesiment property 683,122,051 TO2,843,572
Income frem scquined/forociosed essols 41,705,847 26,480,172
Munsgomart foos 8,938,207 7,028,433
Oiher business income 548,383,492 486,207,318
248,187,576,776 2046,608,600,735

Ag st Decernber 31, 2019, the cormbined 555 and ECC collection of mermbers’ contributions induding related intenests and penalties totaled 220379 bilion, Contributions
from emploved sector registered the biggest armnaunt of collection at PTS0203 billion, followed by veluntary paying mennbers at P23906 billlon and seiff-employed at
PEZ70 billicr. Thee murniber of paying rmermibers for the period from January to Decerniber 2009 reachied to PT7.581 million and PeS40 million for the serme period in 2018,




ECC members contribution for the year ended December 31, 20 and 2008 amounted to P2402 bilion and P2.251 bilkon, respectively.

Interest incomne are derived from the following 555 investments

2018 2018
Bonde imestments

FARVTPL 1,005,343,581 652,908,618
FVTOCH 2,775,112,231 3,201, 488,141
FA al Amortized Cost 10,720,870,637 10,273,6680,086

_14.501,320.440 14.128.086.847
Loans and receivabiss 5,399,820,086 7.179,585,775
Cumrentisavings/ierm deposits 902,990,641 773,185,154
Timo deposits 72,982,018 17,385,000
Others 31,437, TR4 9,678,084
20,808,558, 858 22,107 910,880

Other business income includes among others, senvice fees on salary loans granted and Income from 555 1D replacemeant amounting to P400XE2
million and P94.278 million, respactively, for CY 2015,

GAINS
This account ks composed of the following:

2M9 2018

Rastaled

Gain from changes in feir valus of imestment proparty 12,113,402,674 3,288,127 950
Gain from changes In fair value of financial Instruments 3,845,422, 72T 2,087,104,052
Gain on salelredemptioniransier of investment 1,208,187,834 892 559,507
Gain on foreign exchanga (FOREX) 305,237 5B4.673
Gain on sale of propady and equipment 225 86T 485 B4
17,167,544, 330 6,264 881,056

Irvestment properties ane remeasured a: fairvalue, which sthe armount forwhich the propery coulid be exchanged between knowledogeable, wiling partiesinam's
lemgth transaction Galn or iosses arsing from changes. in the falralue of the investment: proper©ty are inciuded in net profit o koss fior the period in whilch they arlse.

OTHER NOMN-OPERATING INCOME
This account i composad of the following:

2019 2018

Roversal of impaimant loss 1,530,031,607 434,443 321
MisceBanecus income 419,680,243 573,657 508
1,540,691 ,850 1,008,100,818

Tre 555 considers certain finandial assets to have recovered from impaiment kosses amounting to F1L530 bilkan due to the enhanced lean collection
efforts and digitalization initiathves Implemented by 555 Majority of the recovenices came from memiber ingns and housing 'sans amounting P1356 billion
and PI5T.E16 mition, respectively.

BEMEFIT PAYMENTS

This. Scoount Meproscnts payments to members and ther beneficianes In the event of disabilty, Sciness, maternity, oid age, death and other contingencies
resulting in loss of incorme or financial burden. Total benedit peyrents amounted to PISETE bilion and PRB0.OTS blon, with total numiber of of 1988,776and
3681447 beneficianes for Cv's 2019 and 2018, respectively, as follows

209 2018

Aetiramant 114,267,999,625 104,822 602,023
Death 57,065,758,182 54, 715,765,654
Matemity 10,411,803,431 7,068, 003,388
Drmability T, 368,931,044 6,785.319.427
Funemnl grant 4,230,672,378 3,806,046.527
Sickneas 3,236,363,830 2,790,857 883
Unamployment 177,083,624 -
Medical services 10,783,631 10,830,855
Rehabiliiation services - 58,702
196,761,172,845 180,078,514,500

Ths unermpioyTent o irvoluntary separation benel’l 5 ghen togualilied 555 membens as provided under Section 14-B of Uhe R4 TS, A mermiber who i nol
over 60 years of age and who hes paid at least 36 monthly contributions, 2 months of which should be in the 18-month period immediately preceding the
Inveluntasy separatian or uremployrnant, shall be paid banefits in the fomm of monthly cash payments equivalant 1o 50 per centof tha average monthly salary
cradit for a maximum of two monthe Provicied, that an employee who B involuntany urermpiovsd can only claim unermpikoyrnent benefit once eveny thee
wears and provided further, that in case of concurmence of two or morne cornpensable contingencles, only the highest benef s shall be pald, subject to the nules
The 555 has paid unermployment or involuntary separation benefit from August to Decamber 2019 to 14,993 555 members in the total amount of
PTT7.863 million,

Pursusant 10 Ra 20 or the 105-Day Expanded Matermity Leave Law [EMLL) increasing Lhe matesmily isave peniod 10105 days for flemale workers withan option
to exbend for an additienal 30 days without pay, and granting an additicnal 15 diys for sclo metihers, 555 has pald P22 billien frorm March to Decernber 2018,

PERSOMNMEL SERVICES
This account is composed of the following:

2013 2018

Salaries and Wages 2,880,081,635 2,882 B04 BEA
Other compansation 4,708, 321,420 1,558,748 429
Personnel benefit contribution 1,801, 480,068 1,548,222 965
Other persannal benafits 506,525,768 45,337 875
B,787,376,812 6,531,203,783




Personne berefit contribution includes Provident Fund which consists of contributions made by both the 555 and its alficials and employees and Uheir gamings,
for the payment of benefits to such officials and employees or thelr heirs as provided under Section 423 of RA Mo, TN2S. The affairs and business of the fund are
directed, managed and administered by a Board of Trustess. Upon retiremant, death or resignation, the empioyes or hisher heirs will recabve from the fund
payrments squivalant to his/ner contributions, proportionate share of tha 555" contributions and irvestmednt eamings therson.

Other personnel benefis indude the grant of Senvice Recognition Incentive amounting to PT2383 million which was given to all 555 officials and employees in
Decernber 2019, asauthorized under Makacafiang Administrative Crder 12,

A& at Decermber 31, 2019, 555 has 3 total of 7,252 regular perscnngl of witich 664 are new ernployees but nat of 39 retind/separated emplovess.
26. MAINTEMANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account is compaosed of the following:
2018 2018
Garbral sordcns 308,001,008 301,112,117
Repairs and maintanancs 285,873,055 262 428,075
Litiiity expenses 252,837,751 248,321,443
Labor and wagos 235,542,353 450,845,847
Cornmurnication axpense 210,886,199 247 701,305
Supplies and malerials expenses 168,001,312 212,185,975
Professional expenses B1,845,282 77,106,260
Traveling expensos 73,337,345 74,638,928
Taxes, Insurance premiums and other fees 20,082,022 24 670,208
Training and scholarship axponsas 24,846,022 51,280,537
Awards/Rewards, prizes, and indemnities 2,708,950 1,242 383
Confidential, intelligance and extracrdinary expansas 2,191,374 1,552 6a1
Crther maintenance and operaling expenses 856,657,400 BET A32 556
2,473,770,163 2,047 808, 555

Other maintenance and operating expanses consist of the following:
2018 2018
Faas and commission apansas 304,931,328 255,187,752
Printing and publication sxpenses 121,815,733 208 801,777
RentLeass expensas T0,384 385 304,507,045
Subscriplion axpanses 57,600,636 53,638,205
Advartising, promational and marketing expansss 35,214,035 75,078,189
Transportation and delivery expenses 15,803,283 16,768,387
Directors and committes members' fees 14,223,334 22,105,638
Membarship dues end contributions to Crganizations 9,353,834 9,300,158
Denations Td5,522 5,006 280
Othar maintenance and oparting expanses 26,575,912 30,434,169
656,657 400 87 832 508
7. FINAMCIAL EXPENSES

This account s compased of the following:
2018 R
Interest axpensas - lease Eabily 63,377,238 =
Bank charges 18,784,715 BB5.A55
Other finandial charges 236,587 438 128,280,980
308,761,380 129,166,935

Thie S55 recognizes intercst exponse on the lease labiity cakeutated using the offective interest micthod Inview of the new leasing standard (see Note 215

Other financial charges represent Imvestrmant-related axpanses Incurred In connection with maraging the Imestment properties, broker's commissions on

trading financial assets and other depositony maintenance and of-exchange trade fees as well a5 management fee expenses of the Flexi-Fund and PESO Fund,
28, HOMN-CASH EXPEMSES

This account is composad of the following:

2019 2018 Restated

Losses o B23,986,054 3,361,248,235
Depreciation 466,011,313 208,743,541
Impairnent loss 184,729,960 1,403,222 693
Ammorization 54,605,288 43,764, 140
5,338,422 815 5,014,878,609

Thie 558 recognires losses on fair value adjustments of financial assets and imvestment properties as at December 31, 2019 in the amount of PE308 billon and
B1.136 billicn, respactivaly,
The depreciation expanse recorded for the ROU assets starting Januany 2019 amounted to PZ20543 million.

29, ASSISTANCE AND SUBSIDY

Tha Educational Assistance Loan Program s funded on a 5050 basis from the National Covernmaent (MG) and 555 The NG counterpart of P35 billion was released
under Special Allctrment Release Order No. BMB-F-12-003125] dated Decernbar 14, 2012 The total cash allocations released to 555 from 2012 to 2008 amounted to

FZE28 pilion, as follows

NCA No. Date Amount
2012

BAMB-F-12-0023001 December 14, 2012 45,270,005
2013

BMB-F-13-0017483 Seplember 23, 2013 480,771,648
BME-F-13-0020336 Movemiber 11, 2013 278,800,487

750,672,145

—— :




NCA Mo. Date Amount
2014
BMB-F-14-00054T4 May 2, 2014 BB0,B3T 040
BMB-F-14-0012071 August 27, 2014 178,052 884
BMB-F-14-0018332 Nowvember 10, 2014 332,823,150
771,813,074
ZD18
BMB-F-15-0005560 April 20, 2016 32,207 250
BMB-F-15-0016231 October 26, 20156 374,662,870
406,885,520
Z018
BMB-C-18-0008531 April 28, 2018 84,168,930
BMB-C-16-0016738 September 15, 2016 54,212,150
118,411,080
2017
BMB-C-1T-00007T80 January 8, 217 183,867,300
BMB-C-17-0007120 May 17, 2017 72,955 2684
BMB-C-17-0015878 Ociober 11, 2017 274,253,486
541,078,050
o018
BMB-C-18-0008631 Saptembar 17, 2018 185,357 843
2,828,178,907
LEASE COMMITMENTS
555 4 berna

Tz 555 keases officas for its various branches under cancellable operating lease agreemonts. The leases have vanying terms, escalation dauses, and
rasreinaal rrghils Exlendnn oplion & marasabhe up Lo o yiar aller Lhe lsats paviod has expared as runmeng fom month-lo-rmonth with Uhe same s
and conditions as stipulated. On the other hand, Feither party desires to terminate prics to expiration of the lease peried, the desiring party shall Inform
the othar party in writing of such intentian at least 60 days before the intanded tarmination date: There are na residusl value guarantees and sale and
leaseback transactions in the lease agreement.

Ir 2019, 555 opanad thres new branches and 12 new senvioafrepresentative offices nationwide 1o provide a conducive mermbear-cantric emdronment and
entered into a cancellable operating lease agreerment with various property owners Out of the 220 local brarches, 167 branchisenice/representative
offices located In varous locations nationwide are rent-free. As at December 1, 2019 and 20M8, the total lease payment made amounted to P153.568
millian and P258T16 million, respectively (see Notes 14 and 26). Further, there is no sublease agreements mace and no cocurmences of contingent rent

555 a5 bessor

The 555 leases out portion of is office space Lo various tenants under cancellable operating lease agreements and the minimum leasa rental amounts
toat heast PE503 per rranth The keases b varying terms, escalation clauses and renswal Aghts Rencwal option i svaillable to the lesses whio shall g e
B written notice of it inenton o renew at least 60 calendar days prior to the expiration of the lesse period. I the lesses continues in the occupation of
the leased premises with tha consent of the lessor after the term, sald extension of the contract shall be understood as running from month te manth
basis under the same tarms and conditions stipulated in the agreement, but the monthly rertal shall 2)l be escalated based on the 555 leasing
guiclelimes. For the pre-1enmiration tenms, eithel By may pre-terrminate the lease for anmy reason provicesd that the party wivo will initiate the pre-termination
shall infiormm the other pamy inwriting 2t least 60 calendar days befone the intended date of termination. in the case lessee voluntarily pre-terminates the lease
agreement, the lessee shalll pay the 555 a pre-tenmiination fee to be deducted from the security deposit

Tetal rental income earned as of December 31, 2019 and 2008 amounted to PT32T65 milllion and PTIS.ETE million, respectively, details as follows:

2010 2018
Invesiment property BEI 122 054 To2 843 572
Leased scquiredioreciosed assals 41,705,847 28 480,172
732,765,146 738,677 548
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
A8 at Decambar 31, 2073, tha compesition of the Soclal Security Commission’s board membens i as follows:
Board Position Mame Appaintment
1. Ex-Officio Chalperson Caros G. Dominguaz IlI « Deparment of Finance
2. Vica-Chairparson Auroea C. Ignacie President & CEOQ, 558
3. Ex-OfficioMamber Sivesire H. Bello Il Secretary, DOLE
4. Memiber Michael G. Regino Reprasanting tha Workers' Group
5. Member Ricardo L. Moldez Raprasanting tha Employars’
6. Mamber Disna Pardo-Aguilar Reprasenting tha Employars’ Group
T. Mamber Anita Busmpus-Cuitain Represanting tha Workers' Group
& Membar Manuel L. Argel, Jr. Representing the Employers’ Group
8. Mambar Bal Morhata Macathar Alonio Representing the Workers' Group

Kay Managemant Personnel Remunaeration and Compansation
Tne management personnel of 555 are the President and CEQ, Executive Vice Presidents and Senior Vice Presicents of the operating and support
groups The remuneration of key managemnent personnel during the year is as follows:

2019 2018

Salaries 36,400,922 32,012,158
Other allowances and banafits 34,071,073 26,808,915
70,471,985 54,822,073

Meanwhile, the total remuneration received by the Board of Commissioners amounted 1o P14.742 million and P16.811 million for CYs 2019 and
2008, respactively.




31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

555 manages the existing and emergirg risks across the entire organization. These risks can be divided into lfour principal risk categories: Financial Risks, insurance
& Demographic Ris«s, Strategic Risks, and Operational Risks To provide systernatic method of addressing these risks, 555 established and adopts an Enterprise Risk
Managament (ERM)] approach. ERM ks a continucas, proactive and Integratied process Usad to identify, astess and manage feks across all aness and at all levels of
the organization. This will ensure the aligrment of strategic planning and sk management.

In the management of Fnandal risks, the Sodal Security Commission (55C) and Management are active In the evaluation, scrutiny and credit aporoval process on
all irvestmants being underaken by the SS5 The S5C has adopted adequate polices on imvestment procedures, nisk assessment and measuremnent and risk
monitoring by strict obsenance on the statutory Imit provided under the Social Security Law and complance 1o the investment guideines, Intemal controls are
also in place and comprahensive audit s being done by the Intemal Audit Senices Group.

Financial risk is defined as the potential losses due to changes in external rmarkets, prices, rates and liquidity supply and demand. Types of financial risks and risk
management tools, polickes and procedures curmently utilized by 555 ane discussed below.

1 Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk of 555 imvestrments declining in value because of econamic developments or other events that affect the entire market. This risk arises
from [} Nuctuations in market prices of equities due tochanges In demand and supphy for tha securities (Equity Price Risk); () changes In 555 investrient value
due to 8 change in the absolute level of interest rates, in the spread batween two rates, in the shape of the yield cunve of in any other interest rate relationship
{Interest Rate Risk); and (i) fluctuations in exchanges rates due to changes in global and local economic conditions and political developments that affect the
value of 555 foreign-denominated investrments (Forsign Currency Risk].

555 stricthy adheres to the provisions of Section 26 of the 55 Law, which states that the funds invested in equities, corporate notes/bonds, loans, mutual funds
and other financial Instrurnents shall earm an annual income not less than the average rates of treasury bils or any scceptabie rmarket yield indicator, Also, 555
developed risk managemment tools to rmonitor and mitigate market risks, these anec

& Value-at-Risk (Vali) - a risk managamant todl used to measune the equity portfolic’s maximum koss under normal markot movements for a specified tima
irterval and at a gren conlidence level. Altermnatively, it rmeasures the minimum loss of a portioko under extreme mar-et rmovwements. Daily VaR esimates
are maoninored daily and compared to its limits.

The VaR limit is designed to restrict potential loss to an amount tolerable oy the Management, given the daily investment exoosure on a trading
portiolio. It is a genaral limit that incorporates a wide array of risks but encapsulates the quantification of these risks to a sirgle number.

b Market-to-Acquisition Ratio [MAR] -a risk indicator that measures the percentage of the asset or portfolic's daily market value relatve to its acquisition cost.
The MAR values range from zero to positive infinity. MAR values lower than 100% indicate unrealized losses while values greater than 100% indicate
unrealzed gains.

The dally MAR values were translated Into colors to Indicate the magnitude of risks on the porifolla. These MAR values are visually represented using
a MAR Heat Map.

RED ZONE (Bresched the lower imit} YELLOW TONE (Bresched the upper limit bat within the iower limt) GREEN TONE

LOWER LIMIT: BE% LPFER LIMIT: 87%

c sr.@ Loss / Cut Lnss Program - a distiplined/programmed divestrnent of losing stodks triggered by certain conditions (e.g. technical analysisioptimal portfolio
racormrnardations, dhidend veld ete) until all suliect shanes Fave boan fully diestod for thi prirmany purposs of mitng omses to the aquity portfolio,

Z Creglt Risk

Credit risk refiers to the risk of an economic loss from tha failure of counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations or from the increased risk of defau't
during the term of the transaction. This inchudes risk due to [i) 555 debtor's incapacity or refusal to meet debt obligations, whether interest or principal
payments on the lban contracted, whan due [Dedoult Risky; (1) takdng over the collatera’ized or escrowed assets of 3 defaulted 555 bormower of courtenparty
[Bankruptey Risk); (iif) potential for a loss invalue of an 555 investment portelio when an individual or group of exposures move together in an unfavorable
direction [Concentrotion Risk); (v deteriomation of perceived credit creditwaorthiness of the bormower or counterparty |Downgrode Risk); and v failure of a
counterparty todeliver a saecurity or its valua in cash wien the security was traded after 555 have already defivered security or cashvalue, as per the trade
agreernent (Settiement Risk).

555 implements structures and standandized evalustion guidelines, credit ratirgs end approval processes. Investrments underge technical evaluation to
detarmine their viabilitwlacceptability. Due diligence process (cradit analysis, evaluation of the financial performance of the issuer/borrower ta determine
financial capability to pay obligations wihen due, etc.) and information from thind party are used 1o cetermine if counterparties are creditworthy.

To avoid significant concentrations of exposures to specific industries or group of issuers and borrowers, 555 investments are regularty monitored against
prescribed curmulative callings specified In Section 26 of 55 Law.

Th: table below shows the madmum credit risk exposune and aging analysis of the 555 financial assets with past due a5 at December 3, 2019 and 2008,

2019
Pasi dua but not impaired (Ags in montha)
MNefther past dua
nor Impaired 1-12 13-38 AT-A8 48-60 Crver 60 Expired  Impaired Total
HLEL i )]

Financial assets at FYTPL 35,213 = - - o . = - 35213
Financial assets at FVTOCI 131,480 - - - - - e - 131,480
Financial asets at amortized cost %
Short-berm money placemants 400 £ 2 o L . 4 it ADD
Corporate notea and bonds 36,082 . . o . . . . 36,082
Gervamimant nabes and bonds 160,158 . - - - - - 180,158
Loans and recelivables =
NHMFC 2 e ; 2 i z 4915 4915 9,830
Housing loans T 12 1 = f - - 1,277 1,737
Mambar loans 31,518 26,780 11,554 . 4713 11,880 - 5759 85284
Penaion lkeans 2000 < = = 2 z % 3 2,008
Sales contract recaivabie 1,002 L] i 1 1 43 47 a7 1,186
Rental receivabie = 28 43 - - - - 2 -1
Commercial and Industrisl ioans - - . - - - 10 58 68
Program MADE - - - - - - - i7 i
398,249 29,904 11,818 & 4,714 12,033 &,972 12,098 473,589




2018

Past dus but not impaired {Age in mantha)

Naithor past dus
nor Impalned 1-12 1336 AT-48 _M Cwer 60 Expired Impaired Total
(in W)

Financlal assets at FVTPL 30,886 - - - - - - - 30,885
Financial assets at PYTOCI 128,582 = = = = - 1,380 1.282 132,254
HTM investmants: =
Corporabe noles and bonds 34,849 - - - - - - - 34,649
Governmant notes and bonds 140,959 & = = i Z & L 140,959
Leoans and recaivablos: -
MHMFC - - - - - - 5,034 5,038 10,076
Housing loans JaT 178 T8 Fat] a8 2 - 1.201 2,004
Member loans 44,920 10,663 10,581 - 6511 12,808 - T.0&T 81,648
Pansion loans 404 - - - - - - 404
Sales contract recalvable 121 685 13 30 19 47 a0 55 1,138

Commarcial and industrial loans 1 . - - - Rl 58
Prograem MADE - - - - - - . 17 17

|0818 11,533 10707 50 5585 12,988 BABE 14,800 453,104

To further ensure compllance with Sectlon 26 of 55 Law, Policles and Culdelines in Determining and Managing Exposure Limits to Debt to Equity wene
established. The investrment Emits for Conglomerate/Group, Individual Conporation, Individual Corporation's Deiot and Individual Corporation’s Equity
anedeterimined based on two principles IRF forecast-based poncipie and rsk- based principle.

For the IRF forecast-based principle, the follwdng ane the limit cel ings s portion of IRF forecast, whena the |RF forecast is computed from the previous
year's |RF plus 90% of the curment year's tanget net revenue

10% for ConglomernatefGroup 3% for Indbvidual Corporation's Delnt
4% for Individual Corporation 3% for Individual Corporation's Equity

The risk-based principle for computing imvestrment limit |s based on the company’s value and Its credit score,
Ineclibvichual Corpomtion

Dbl Exquity

Corporation’s Vislue Thres timas the Unimpaied 10% of the Markel Value of Totsl
Capital of the Coporuion  Issued and Cubstanding Shams of
tha Corporation

Factars

Risk Measure Merton Distance-io-Oefaull Altman Z-Soom

With respect to stockbrokers, the 555 has adopted the following mitigating measures
1. Minimum requirerments for stockbroker evaluation
11 Steckbooker rmust be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC) and a member of good standing of the Phifippire
Stock Exchange (PSE) as defined under Section 28 of the Securites Regulation Code (SACL
12 The steckbroker must belang to tha top 30 in terms of cumulative value of transactions during the past threa vearn.
13 The stockbroker must be in operation for at least frve years and must be profitable for four yearsin these five years of operation, Prowided
that, the stockbroker mius: be profitable in the year prior 1o the application for accredization.
14 The stockbroker must have a minimum of unimpaired paid-up-capital of FI00 Mlion or the minimum capitalization required by the
SEC, whicherr [2 Rilghar
15 The steckbroker shall have a posithe track record of sohice to other Institutional dients.
2 Steckbroker transactions, allocations and limits
21 Tetal daily transactions, exchuding biock transactions, per stockholder shall not exceed 50 per cent of the stockiholder's equity of stockbrokers.

22 Total rarsactions, excluding negotiated block transactions, for each of the eccredited stockdorokers, during the accreditation period, shall not
expead Lhe higher bebwean one over Lha number of active acoredited stockbrokers x 100 per cant and 1 per cent of tolal SS5 transactions.

23 Transactions, excuding negotiated block transactions, with the 555 by the stockbroker within the year of accreditation, shall not exceed
&0 par cent of its total market transactions. This ensures that 555 Is not its only dient.

Liguidity rish

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that a company may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to
convert a security of hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/for Income in the process. This risk also refers to [i) unanticipated changes in
Boguidity supply and demana thet may afect 555 through untimely sale of assets, inability 10 meet contractual obligations or default (Funaing
Liguidity Risk] and (i} the pcssibiity that an institution will not be able to execute a transaction at the prevailing market price because there is
temporarily no appetite for the deal on the other side of the market (Troding Liguidity Risk).

E55 manages this risk through dally monitoring of cash flows In consideration of future payment due dates and daily coflection amounts. The 555 also
maintains sufficient portfolic of highy marketacle assets that can easily ba liguidated as protection against unforessen Intermuption to cash flow.

To ensure that investrents in Marketable Securities shall be compliant to the basic principles of safety, liquidiy and yield shall benefit as many
members of tha System, 555 anly Imvests in shares of stock and equity related-ssues that satisfies its stock accreditation guidelines.

Also, RMD developed a Risk Dashboard to provide the Management with bird's-eye view of the financial risks that 555 is facing. This dashboard will
help the Managemen: in identifying the Esues that may arise from the curnulative impact of risks over time. it consists of risk reports like Val, MAR
Heat Maps, Ageing Reports, and Umit Manitoring, which ame preserted in tabular and graphical form. RMD also conducts vaildation, back testing
and stress testing on risk models used by the Irvestment Sector 1o ensure effectveness and reliability of models.

Othear financial risks that might affect 555, which were identified and are still under study by RMD are discussed balow.

Reirvestment Risk

This.is the: possibility that an investor will be unable to reimest cash flows (8.g. coupon paymments) at a rate comparable to the current Investrment's rate
of returm, The term also sometirmes reflers to the risk that principal repayments on such seclirity may be pald prior to maturity, thereby forcing the asset
manager to seek reirvestmenrt of principal at a time when interest rates may be lower than the rate that was payable on the sacurity.

.



5 Aasot-Liability Mismanch Risk

Thits is the risk of a change in value from a devistion between asset and lizbility cash lows, prices or camying amounts, caused by change in actual cash flow,
change in expectations on future cash Mows and accounting inconsistonces.

iz

7. Sysiemic Risk
This s the risk of potential fallure of cne instinution to create a chain reaction or domino effect on other institutions ard consaquenitly threaten the stability of
financial rmarkets ard sven the global econormy.

RESTATEMENT
The following tables summariza the effect of the adjustrnents made on the change in accounting palicy, accounting error and reclassiflication of asset accounts.

Effect on the Statement of Financlal Poshion

Dacamber 31, 2018 Jamary 1, 2018
{in million pescs)

Effiect of Effect of
s Proviously Reastatamant! As As Previously Restatarment An
Reported  roclassificetion  Restaled Reporied reclassfication Floatofod

Raceivables 7.530 5% 7,588 5318 50 5,366
Accrual of penalty Incame 50 8 58 50 o 50
Reclasaication of NCAHFS tn B 1,308 [448) B8 1,388 (431} a38
Non-Current Assets Hald for Sale 41,354 787 42,941 38424 Y& 38,185

Effact on the Statement of Comprahansive Income

{in milion pesos)

Agerual of paralty intams
Increass In service and bisiness income i85
Increass in profit for the year 156
Reclassification of NCAHFS to IP
increase in pains AL}
lIncraass in ron-cash T
Incrsase In profil for tha year k] "
0.04
10
5
5

1

AFSFA messured st cost from falr valus

118

118

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The approval of the following policies and guidelines by the SSC after the reporting period are considensd adjusting events, hencs, financial statements are
ad|usted sccardingly.

On February 12, 2020, the 55C under Resolution Ne. 97-5 2020 approved the Policy on Revenue Recognition af Penalty Income on Financial Assets, the
Implermentation of which is effective January 2019

On February 26, 2020 the S5C under Resolution No. 156-5. 2020 approved the interim use of the welghted average valuation of one external appraisal and the
5585 in-house appraisal for the determination of the 2019 Fair Market Value of IPs and ROPAs for the year-end reparting in the 555 Financial Statements,

In view of the Proclamation No. %29 s. 2020 dated March 16, 2020 declaring 8 State of Calamity throughout the Philippines due to Coronavirus Disease 2019
[COW1 D-19) for a period of sbc months, unkess sarler fifted, in refation to Prodamation No. 922 & 2020 dated March 8, 2020 declaring a State of Public Health
Emergency due to COVID-19 and the declaration of Code Red sub-level two of the code alert systern for COMID-13, all lssued by the Office of the President of
the Phiippines, the Social Security Commission approved the following Resolutions
Resalution No. 205-5 2020 dated March 25, 2020
* Moratonium on short-termn loan payments of 555 members afected by COVID-19 for applicable months of Februany to April 2020,
*  Resolution No. 20652020 dated March 25, 20720, pursuant to Section {4){a){8) and Section 22{a) of the Social Security Act of 2008
* Baersion of deadlire of remittance of contributions by emplovers [Regular and Household) and Seif-erploved, Violuntany and Non-Warking Spouse
memberson or before June 1, 2020,
*  Resolution No. 258-52020 datéed May 78, 2020
*  Morgtodium on housing laan paymentsof S55 mermbers affected by COVID-19 shall cormmence from the applicable rontn of March 2000 with due date on
April 10, 2020 until the Ifing of the Imposition of Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ) in the covered areas.
Resolution No. 26152020 dated May 27, 2020, pursuant to Section (4] (a){B) and Section 22{a) of the Social Security Act of 20018
*  Further extension of deadline of remittance of contributions by employers (Regular and Household) and Self-employed, Voluntary and Mon-Working
SpoLss s bers on o befare June 15, 2020,
Resolution Mo, 284-s2020 dated May 27, 2020, pursuant to Section (4}[a)(1) and Section Z2{a) of the Social Security Act of 2018

* Further estension of deadling of remittance of contributions by employers (Regular and Housshold] and Self-ermployed, Voluntasy and Mon-Working
Spouse members on or before June 15, 2020,

Type of Payor Deadiing of Remitlance

Reqular Ermploayers Contributions for the applicable months of February, March and Apdil 2020 may be pald on or befiore Jure 30, 2000

Housahaold Ermployers Contributions for the applicable months of Jamuary, February and March ar for the quarter ending March 31, 2020
mary be pald on or before June 302020

Seif-Emploved, Valurtany Members Contributions for the applicable months of Januany, Feoruany and March or the first quarter of Year 2020 may be

and MNon-Working Spouses paid on or before June 30, 2020

. S— :
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7.

Per Resolution Mo, 403 s 2018, FCAT was valued at book value as the appraisal report for said property indicate that the same was valued on an "as s
where is° basis without considening expected value arising from |itigation pending with the Regional Trial Court and Supreme Cowrt. A the end of the
reporting period, said property was sublect of cases pending with the Regiona| Trial Court and Supremse Court. In addition, the COVIDI9 pandemic ard
its economic Impact which may be considered a subsequent event [after the reporting date) may result in negative effect to the FV of IPs as at end of
2078 (ie. without considering yat the impact of the pandermic).

OTHER MATTERS
Commitrments
Amount authorized but not yet disbursed for capital expenditures as at December 31, 2013 s approximatehy P1295 billlon.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS
Presented under the following labla is the supplermentary inforrmation which & reguined by the Bureaw of Intermal Reverus (BIR) under the Revenue
Regulations N, 15-2010 1o be disclesad a5 part of the notes to financial staternents. This supplermentasy Information & not a required disclesure under PRRS,

The 555 is withholding and remitting to the BIR appiicable taxes withheld impesed under the Mational Internal Reveriue Code and its implementing
rules and reguiations. Income taoes withhelkd on compensaton and expanded withbolding tax ane remitted on or before the 15:h day of the following
manth except those withheld fior the manth of Decemnber which are remitted on or before the 20th day of January of the following year. Value-added
‘taxes and fMnal incorme tees withheld are remitted on o before the 10th day of the following month.

Amount
Taxes padd as at December 2019

On compansatian 4217840
Expanded 71,490,100
VAT and other parcsntage tax 99,608,136
Final tax 1,260,370
Outpad tax (VAT) T0,386,845

Taxee withheid (io ba pasd in CY 2020)
On compensalion 14,702,584
Exparded 848,743
VAT and other percantage fax 14,871,689
Final tax 91,669
Output kax (VAT) 7,068,458
629,353,080

The 555 is exernpted from all kinds of taxes purswsant to Sec. 16 of RA Mo, 8282 which states that "V knws to the contrany notwithstanding, the S55 and
off its ossets and propevties, off contributions collected ond aif ocoruaik themete ond ncomse or Investmant eamings therefrom, as wel os off supplies
equipment, popers or documents shail be exempt from any tox assessment, fee, chorges, or customs or import duty; ond olf benefit payrments maoade
by the 555 sholl iikewise be axernpt from olf kinds of toxes, fees or chonges ond shail not be fable to aftachments, garmishments, lewy or selrune by or
under any kegol or equitable process whatscever, elther before or after recelpt but the person or persons entitied thereto, excent to pay oy debt of the
member o the 555 No tox megsure of whaotever noture enocted shall opply to the 555, unless it expressly revokes the declored policy of the Staote in
Section 2 hereof granting tax-exemption to the 555 Any tox assessment imposed ogainst the 555 shall be nuil and void *

Saction BE itarn . of tha RA No. 10963 othenwiza known 25 the Tax Reforrn for Accslaration and Inclusion (TRAIN' Law effective January 1, 2008, 555
exgmption on VAT has been repealed,

The ameurt of cutput tax on VAT paid by 555 as of Decambar 31, 2019 and 2018 amaounted to PTO3ET milkon and PE3.4T6 rrdlion, respectiely,

STATUS OF LAWSLUITS

The 55 is imvolved as a8 party in several legal proceedings pending for resolution that could materially effect its financial position. Among these
[avwsits are tha folkowing:

Description Amount Status

Aubitration cese fled against SO7E billion The casa s still panding with OGOC.

Himi Guaranty Coro, (HCC) The Risk Management and Investrnent Commitlee drected Management to request dearance from
the DOF Secretary 1o renegotiate for better ters towands sertiement of HOC obligations 1o 555 Aporoval
ofwhich was sacured from DOF in its letter to 555 dated August 2, 2018, Negotiation is on-gaing between
555 and HGOG now PhiCuamantee) imobing cash repayrment of the remaining balance and comprormias
BOTRLITIENT WIthin AcCeptable LerTrs and Conaition.

Expropration case fled by the 1461 Edllion The case ol pending with the Supreme Court (SC)

MNatonal g Corporation of the

Prilppines on 60872 squamne

rreters portion of 555 property

at Passy Cy [Ste 2 FCAT)

O cose for Sumn of Money with 1,51 billion On August 30, 2006, 555 appeal with the Court of Appeals was dacided In favor of tha 555

wﬁmm On Movernber 4, 2019, the Office of the Solicitor General |OSG] received 3 copy of the Petition for Review

Eippk o Inc ey on Cartiorar! dated Novemiber 4, 2018 Tlled by WPl with the SC. OSG still awaiting order from the SC to
file its cormment.

Quistrg of e Med by Eseemilion DO to expcute the Deod of Sake cver the properties in fver of 555 and susmonacs the Owner's Duplicats of

Desiderio ﬂah;r Imvestrment, TCT s T-18008, T- 1204, T-2550986 and T-255085, as wall as the Tax declarations ower the said properties.

|fﬂm—ﬁiﬂﬂﬂﬂgdﬁ 555 1o re-compute petitioner's cbligations, accordingly, reckoned from June 17, 1962, the date when

érwmll Fw' Bt mwmmmmu:wﬁtm?ﬂn |

Davao City) 555 Davao was reguestad to inguire from the Regicnal Trial Court of Cevao City, Branch 14, whather the
records of the case heve airesdy been rermanded by the SC This s preparatony for OS0/555 to Mlile Matkan for
Exgcution of Judgment

Chill case for Sum of Money FWaEmilicn  Hearing of the case on-going (RTC- Branch 61, Maksati Ciny)

fibed by Pryce Corpomsion on
One Time  Maintenance
Adjustrrent Change (MAL) on
565 cwwned rrermcnal kobs




INTERNAL AUDITOR'S REPORT

For 2019, the Internal Audit Service Group (lASG) implermented the following Audit Projects in
accordance with its Approved Audit Plan:

s Employer Coverage and Delinquency and Status of Implementation of Warrants
of Distraint, Levy and/or Garnishrment (WDLG) in 30 Branches

* (Cash Managerment/Accounts Tellering Systemn in 10 Branches

s Member Loans Billing, Collection and Pasting in 29 Branches
* Pension Loan Program [PLP] in 4 Branches

*  Payment of Manpower Services on Quanium Meruit Basis (SSSRC and DBPSC)
s Local Procurements - Mindanao West [Zamboanga)

s Expired Contracts for Janitorial, Security and Human Resource Services

*  Revolving Fund of Media Affairs Department (MAD)

s Use of Leased Prernises at HK Sun Plaza

* Real-Time Processing of Contributions for Individual Members

& Corpeorate Communications Department (CCD)

¢ Fund Disbursernent for Settlernent of SSS Investrnents, Provident Fund,
Procurernent of Goods and Senvices, Member Loans and Benefit Payments

* Health Care Department {Health Care Services, Medical Benefits and Revolving Fund]
® Janitorial Services at the Main Office

Basically, the audit objectives were to evaluate and assess management’s compliance with
applicable laws, policies, systems and procedures and attainment of the four Es of operations,
namely: Efficiency, Effectiveness, Ethicality, and Economy. This is in line with the mandate of the
1ASG that as an independant unit, it is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of
the risk management, control, and governance processes, and for making recommendations for
improvement to help achieve organizational goals.

Below are the significant audit findings for the abovermentioned audit projects:

» Compliance of the Branches/Legal Departments on the handling of delinquent accounts

" —

needs improverment. The activities related to the assessment of delinguencies, sending of
billing/demand letters, and referral to Legal Department for legal action are not properly
monitored. Improved handling of delinquent accounts will increase collection efficiency, thus,
the Accounts Management Systern must be fully implemented.

The Tellering Units of the Branches contributed significantly to the goals of S55 to provide
convenient and accessible payment channels. However, not all of these units are adeguately
equipped with the required operational resources and security logistics like computers, fast
internet connection, CCTV systern, teller’s beoth, vault, alarm system, etc, There are alsc heads
and supervisors who are not fully familiar with the policies and procedures on cash and vault
management. Finally, there are issues with the proper enforcement of Depesit-Pick Up
Arrangements with depasitory banks, resulting in a high rate of undeposited collections at the
end of the day.

The systermns and procedures in the processing and payrnent of Pension Loan Program allow
for the immediate approval of loan applications. However, the audit found that there is no
systemn for check-and-balance as only one person is in complete control of the transaction,
from receiving of application to approval of loan.




» Local procurements in the branches through the Division's Local Bids and Awards Committee
need significant improvernent. There were several findings on non-compliance with the
provisions of RA 9184 and with the 5SS internal policies and procedures. Majority of therm can be
attributed to the lack of adequate and appropriate training of the emiployees performing the job
and thorough supenvision and guidance by the Heads/Supervisors.

» Pdlicies and procedures on the procurement of services like human resources, janitorial and
security services are not strictly complied with. Hence, there are cases of contracts whose
terms have already expired prior to the procurement of new contracts. This practice often
resulted in the extension of existing contract and payment of contractual obligations based
on gquanturm meruit.

» The billing and posting system for mermber loan repayments needs significant improvernent as
well. The plan to enhance it through the Real-Time Processing of Loans Program should be
implemented immediately. Meantime, the issues on unposted payments, delays in posting,
unreconciled balances, and uncollected loan obligations should be addressed properly to avoid
cornplaints from the membsers,

» The Revohing Fund of the Media Affairs Departrment was set up to ensure timely implementation of
crucial media-related activities However, failure to comply with policies, rules and regulations led to
the abuse inthe use of the fund.

The 1ASC also made recomnmendations to assist management in addressing the causes of the
above-mentioned audit findings. Close coerdination with the 555 Compliance Cfficer/Management
Chbserver and operating units is being done to ensure implementation of recommended actions or
measures. We appreciate the plan of management to ensure that audit-recormmended actions are
made part of the deliverablesftargets of the concerned operating units.

At this juncture, we would like to reiterate management's compliance with the Mational Guidelines on
Internal Control Systern, This is because it is the direct and primary responsibility of the managerment to
install, implement, and manitor a sound system ofinternal control This san opportune time todo soinview
of the Business Process Re-engineering efforts being exerted in preparation for the 555 digitalization.

Starting 2020, the 1ASG will intreduce innovations on the conduct of audit, such as automation of

processes, objective and impactful audit reporting, improving audit gycle time, and instituting
feedback mechanism from the Audit Committee and operating units.

With these, we renew our pledge to be management's partner for efficient public service.

SVP JOSEFINA O. FORNILOS
Head, Internal Audit Service Group




HISTORICAL DATA

555 COVERED MEMBERS, ACTIVE EMPLOYERS AND PERSONNEL WORKFORCE

$5S Covered Membars, Acthve Employers and Personnel Workforce

As of Decembaer 31
(in thousands)
Eovvared Active Parsannsl "“mh-:“
s 3ATTES FTRA 72 53
e 3657368 932 69 53
T 353780 36 2] 5.1
206 BIoro 350 [ 52
205 ns0e sa0 58 54

= mambers who ane eligible to avail of at least one benalit
*= registersd astablishments that are still eperstional; includes household employers
== regular 555 amiployoas only

555 Covered Members
As of December X1
{in thousands)

40,000 % i

32000 |- - - : . - -
24,000 I
wooo | . !
BOOD | - . - : -
2015 06 2077 2018 2019

CONSOLIDATED GROWTH OF ASSETS, RESERVES, AND INVESTMENTS

Consolldated Assets, Reserves, and Investments

fin Billion Pesos)
Year Asaats Resarves Investmarts
2008 568.14 B5E.24 530,50
2008 51265 4£00.54 48133
2007 S00.ET 48585 A58
206 HTEAD L5442 G008
25 Al 80 43552 LDEVE

Growth of Consolldated Assets, Ressrves, snd Investments

120
'g 10.0 /
= 8o ﬁ_ -
® 40 7 e
20 \/
2015 2016 207 2038 2m9
B Accets, % inc/{dec) 4.0 7.2 6.8 0.8 10.8
Resarves, % inc/{dec.) £ 6.6 6.8 0.7 1.1
B Investments, % incfidec) 2.9 8.4 6.4 28 10.2

i,



CONSOLIDATED PROGRESS OF OPERATIONS

Consolldated Members' Contribution, investmant & Other Income, Beneflt Payments, and Operating Expenses

{in Billion Pesos)
Members’ It et Barnafit
Yaar ‘Contributlon & Other Incoma PayTments m
rinii-} rirink ] £1.99% HETE 293
e 18192 205 180.08 5.81
07 L b 188 TrOER 255
2016 ek 35 3000 nBaioe 948
05 me 2045 nzse Bas

Consolidated Members’ Contribution, investment & Other Income, Benefit Payments, and Operating Expenses
250

200

it

N Members' Contribution imvestrment & Other iIncome [l Benafit Payments B Operating Expenses

Armount in billion pesos

Consolidated Net Revenus
{in Billion Pesos)

Year Amount w%i
Fael 55.68
2008 22.57
e 2138
2016 FE00
2015 40.69

EEE&E%

Consolidated Net Revenug

20 i : = : - = - .
‘u i - " L I - - . .
o ]
205 2016 27 2008 2019

1) The increase in net revenue in 2019 came after the enactrment of the Social Security Act of 2018 which raised
the contribution rate and the minimum and maximum salary credits effective applicable maonth of April 2019,

2] The decrease in net revenue from 2015 to 2017 is attributed to the increase in benafit payments due to penslon
adjustments as @ resylt of posting of 1985-1989 contributions in 2016 and grant of F1,000.00 additional benefit in 207,

e O

Arnount In blillon pescs



SOCIAL SECURITY FUND*

55 Asseis, Resarvas, and Investments

{in Billion Pesos)
Assats Resarves Investrmants
5278 514.91 491.30
4E113 44450

HEY
:

14.0
12.0

0.0
80
e.0
4.0
20
0.0

%inc. / {dec)

N Assets, % incfidec)
Reserves, % inc./(dec) &1 6.8 6.6 0.6 n7
E Investments, % mr:.a"(duc.] 0.2 75 6.7 25 105

* incfudies Mortgogors ' Ineronoe Account, Flesl ond FESCH Funds

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND PROGRESS OF OPERATIONS

£5 Members' Contribution, Investment & Other Income, Benefit Payments, and Operating Expenses

{in Billion Pesos)

Marmbars' Investmaent Banafit Cperaing
Yuar Comtributioen & Other Income Paymants Expanses
pid-] mres £0.08 He10 9.85
xa 1TRET B.TT T8 2T
2017 15762 3377 AL 948
2006 1445 .5 mLea 940
s BoTe MLE m.4a 876

&5 Members’ Contributlon, Investment & Other Income, Benafit Payments, and Operating Expenses

=
L

RN |l|f

B Mambers' Contribution trvestmant & Other Incoma B Banefit Paymants B Operating Expenses

Amount in billlon pesos




55 Mat Revenua

[in Billion Pesos)
Yoar Armaunt % incidec)
2019 53.07 160.5
208 2037 0.9
2017 18,38 QA
2006 2869 (253
2005 3899 27
55 Net Revenue

20.00

10.00

Amount in billlon pescs
: s & 3
* I
: I
y_____=

EMPLOYEES' COMPENSATION & STATE INSURANCE FUND

Growth of EC Assats, Resorves, and investments

(in Billion Pesos)
Year Besats RESErves Investrments
2019 4033 4032 39.30
208 38.42 38.41 36.83
2007 762 3762 1456
2006 3456 3455 1368
3512 Iz 28,09
Growth of EC Assets, Reserves, and investments
70.0
60.0
'E‘ 50.0
_’_'-i- 40.0
4 200
® 200
10.0 .
0.0 e e e
2015 2016 2077 2018 2019
B Assets, % inc/(dec.) 5.4 &3 B.8 21 5.0
Reserves, % inc./{dec) 4.8 5.0 B9 21 5.0
. investments, % incfidec) &LT 159 25 6.6 6.7



EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION & STATE INSURANCE FUND PROGRESS OF OPERATIONS

EC Membaers' Contribution, Investment & Other Income, Beneflt Paymaents, and Operating Expenses

{in Billion Pescs)
M B Investment Benefit
Year Contribution & Othar Income Paymanis m
i 240 184 ‘LEG a.08
2008 235 178 172 9.09
2077 2.1 N 1Lis o.06
2006 1491 58 oy 0.08
ms 183 103 7 o008

EC Members' Contribution, Investment & Other incoma, Benaflt Paymants, and Operating Expenses
3.00

250

200

el

B Members’ Contribution Irvestrment & Other iIncome [ Benefit Payments B Operating Exponsas

Amount in bilion pesos

(in Billion Pesos)
Yeur Amount % Incf[dec.)
208 160 18.4
2018 220 [26.8)
2017 200 0.4
2006 232 36.4
2015 170 e
EC Met Revenue
350
3.00 '
g 250 L — _— ; -
= 200 | : | -
2
5
I 1.50
E
g 00 [e— : ; :
050
0.00
2015 2006 2007 208 2019

©
:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

STATEMENT ON FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The 555 is in full compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance under GCG Memarandum Circular Mo, 2012-07
covering the following mandates/requirernents:

Manual of Corporate
Gevernance

Dérectors and Officers
Liability Insuramce

Board Cornmittess

Désclosure and Transparency
Requirements

Staff Support to Directors

CSR Principles

Adopted and approved by the Social Security Commission under Resolution Mo. 898 sued on 27 Movembar 2013,
as amended under Resolution Nos. 597 dated 02 July 2014, 130 dated 29 April 2005, 138 dated 24 February 2006, 322
dated 18 May 2016, 387 dated 22 May 2017, 128 dated 12 February 2073, 352 dated 22 May 2009, 353 dated 22 May
2012, anvd 254 dated 12 May 2020,

The Mo-Gift Policy was approved under Section 29 of the Manual of Corporate Covernance for the 555, which was
approved undar S5C Resclution Mo, B98-52013.

implementing Rules on the 555 No-Gift Policy was approved under S55C Resolution Mo, B3-s2014,

Benewal of the Directors and Officers Liability Insurance [DOLI) was approved under 55C Resolution MNos, 456 dated
05 July 2019 and 793 dated 23 October 2015,

The 55C approved under Resclution No. 389 dated 18 June 2079 the streamlined S5C Cormnmittees, as follows:

1. Executive Committes 3. Risk Management and Investments Committes
2 Audit Committes 4. Information Technotogy and Collection Commities

In the last submission of requirements for the integrated Corporate Reporting System - GOCC Leadership
Managament System [ICRS-CLMS), tha 555 ks among the 46 compliant GOCCs (a reguirement under
Sec. 44 of the Code of Corporate Governance for GOCCs).

Tha Social Security Systemn's posting of the following information in s wabsite, in compliance
with Sec. 43, Mandatory Wabsite GCG MC Mo 2002-07 and in refation 1o Sec. 15.4 (c):

& Charter

® |zt of Subsidiarios ard Affiliates

* Covernment Corparation Information Sheet (GOIS) as mandated by the GOG In
fts Memarandum Circutar Ne. 2012-01

* Complete listing of the 55C Board of Directors and 555 Senior Officials’ attached résumdé, and thelr
mambership In Board Commiltteos

* Complete compensation package of all the board members and officers, including travel,
representation, transportetion and any other form of expenses or allowances

* Information on Board Committees and their Activities/Duties and Responsibilithes
* artendance record of Directors in Board and Commitbes meetings:

® Latest annual Audited Financial and Perfermance Report within 30 days from recelpt of such Report
* Aydited Financial Statements in the immediate past three years

® Quarterly, and Annual Reparts and Trisl Balance

& Current Corporate Operating Budget

® Local and Forelgn Bomowings and other forms of Rabilities

* Covemnmment subsidies and net lending

® Al borrowings guaranteed by the Govarnment

® Any matarial risk factors and measures taken to manage such risks

® parforrnance Evalustion System

* Charter Statement/Mission-Vision Statements

* pParformance Scorecards and Strategy Map

® 555 Organizaticnal Chart

* SR Statement

® Balance Sconecand

® Adoption of a No-Gift Policy approved by the GCG and uploaded on the GOCC's wabsite pursuant
to Section Z3 of GCG MC Mo, 2012-07.

Thia S5C rmemibers have reasonable support staff and office facilities stationed at 555 Maln Office, East Awve, QC
and at 555 Bldg., Ayala Ave. cor. Rufing 51, Makat! City.

Statermnent of Corporate Social Responsibility and Relations with Stakeholders is provided under the Manual of
Corporate Governance for the 555 as approved by the 55C In its Resclution No. 898-s2013 dated Movember 27, 2013

555 MISSION AND VISION CORPORATE STRATEGY

In its December 3, 2018 Strategic Planning, the 55C reviewed the 2008 Performance Scorecard and gave directives to sérve as the reference points
for 2015 and the Performance Scorecanrd for 2018, and identified and approved under SSC Resolution No. 998-5.2008, the 2013 strategic directions:

1. Increase the Fund Lifeof up to at least 2042 I Improve Service Quality
2. Establish Accountability 4. Improve Corporate Culture
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I its Febsruany T, 2010 Spacial Meating, thi SSC, assistad by Traln Statlon as facilitator, focused the Strategic Planning Workshop to achieve the goals
for 2019 and the next five years.

Lined up in the workshop was the review of the existing 555 massion and vision staternents, whereby 555 executives were grouped and given the
challenge to reflect what would be the wordings for the new mission and vision, taking into consideration the guidelines in assimilation - the use
of sirmple words and the four identified directionsfobjectives for 2019 All the groups’ insightssuggestions/ideas weare then consolidated.

After an in-depth exchange of views during the March &, 2019 board mesting wherein the existing and proposed 555 mission and vision statements
were presented, the SSC felt the need to come up with an 585 vision staterment that would incorporate the essence of the four strategic directions
for 2019 and to revise further the proposed 585 mission staternent. The new 555 mission and vision statements will then be submitted to the SSC for

555 RISK OVERSIGHT

Under its Resolution No. 887 dated Novemnber 27, 2019, the 55C approved the Report on the Risk Management and Risk Oversight which provides
an assessrment of the adequacy of the risk management system in the Social Security System [S55), a5 endorsad by the Risk Management and
Irmeestments Commitee.

Current Risk Management System In place. The Enterprise Risk Management [ERM) In the 555, a holistic approach to risk management, was
implemented which focuses on the following key components: 1) Corporate Governance; 2] Line Management; 3) Portfolic Managament; 4) Risk
Transfer; 5) Risk Analytics; 6) Data and Technology Resources; and 7) Stakeholders Management. The ERM Framework, to ensure the adoption of
adequate and effective enterprise-wide risk management system, and the ERM Policy, to ensure adhenenoce to best practices in the identification,
analysis, estimation and evaluation of risks, were also developed to support the ERM.

How ara key risks being managad? (n managing risks, effective measures were established under the follewing risk categories

M Financial Risks - whereby a Risk Dashboard was developed to identify the financial risks and ather financial-related risks,
e.g. market, credit and liquidity, that 555 is facing and ensure adherance to the provisions of 555 Law, Policies and
Guidelines in Determining and Managing Expasure Limits to Dabt and Equity and stock accreditation guidelines;

(2) Insurance and Demographic Risks - through conduct of actuarial valuation/studies and monitoring of experience;

(3) Strategic Risks - through monitoring new and pending bills, conduct of regular economic researches/studies,
implementation of the “No-Cift Policy”, "No Noon Break Policy”, "Anti-Fixer Campaign”, and "No Smoking Campaign”, and

{4) Cperational Risks - through conduct of regular Risk and Control Self-Assessment through the systemn and application of
the tools to address the operations risks, such as: (2] Privacy Impact Assessment; [b) Personal Equity Investrment Policy;
and (c] Business Continuity Management Program.

SS5 INTERNAL CONTROLS

Under Board Resolution Mo. B89 dated Movembser 27, 2019, the 55C approved the report of the Intemal Audit Service Group (LASG) on the review of
the results of the Baseline Asseserment of the Internal Control Systemn of the Social Security System (S55). Based on LASG's evaluation of 555 internal
Contrel System, all five control components were found present and functioning, although there is the need to improve in the Risk Assessment,
Monitering, and Control Activities, Wiz

COMTROL GAPS &
- BEFICIEMCIES

CONTROL

COMPONENTS Humbar of Sverall Weight for
Yes Wies Ha o Control 5 Componants of
Axtributes Intarnal Control

Control Environmisnt o2 S0.IT% m 2.7I% m 4B8.20%
Risk Assessmant 1 B.09% %] 20.91% Ll 4.T0%
Control Actihities I 5LT% n Eir 45 19E3%
oI Ao 44 89.80% 5 1020% % 2094%
Monitoring 3 18.75% L) 25% 16 GGk
TOTAL et 75.90% &l 2E.0T% ) T00%

5SS WHISTLEBELOWING POLICY

The Social Security Commissian (SSC), in its Resolution Mo. 193-52017 dated March 15, 2017, has approved the 555 Whistlheblowing Policy, which provides:
a forrmal mechanism that encourages and empovwars all persans, whether S55 amplovess or not, to report and provide information that weuld imvolhe
actions or omissions of officials, including the members of the SSC and emplovess of the S55, that are lllegal, unethical, violative of good governance
principles, against public policy and morales, promote uresund and unhealtiy business practices, or are grossly disadvantaged to the 555

SCOPE AND COVERAGE

Whistleblowers may report information or allegations of suspected acts such as, but not limited wo:

a. Abuse of Authority 9. Making False Written Statements m. Mepotism

b Bribery h. Mahersation n. Plunder

.. Confiict of Interest i Misappropriation of SS5 Assets o Receiving a Commission in 555 Official Transactions
d Destruction/Manipulation of Records } Misconduct p. Solicitation of Gifts

& Fixng k. Money Laundering q. Taking Advantage of Corporate Opportunities

f. Inefficiency L Megligence of Duty 1. Viclation of Procurement Laws
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Whistleblowers may also report other acts or omissions that imolve any violation of the following laws, rules and regulations:

a Code of Ethical Standards for 555 Officlaks and Emplovess g. ED.No.292, "administrative Code of 1987

b. SSS Circulars, Orders, and applicable laws and regulations D+ RUA No.10349, the "GOCC Governance Act of 201"

c. RA Mo ETE, "“Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards I GOG Memorandum Circular (M.C) No, 2012-05, "Fit and Proper Rule®
for Public Officials and Employees” J  GCG MLC No. 2012-06, "Ownership and Operations

d. RA No. 3018, *Anti-Graft and Cormupt Practices Act™ Manual Governing the GOCC Sector”

e RA No.7080. 25 arended. “The Phander Law” k GCG MC. Ne.2012.07, "Code of Corporate Gevernance for GOCCs"

f  Bookll, Title VI, Crimes Committed By Public Officers, I Violations of LA No. B282, “Social Security Act of 1997
The Revised Penal Code m. Other GO Circulars and Orders, and applicable laws and regulations

A Whistleblowing Report (WR] may be in any form, whether varbal or written. An ancnymous WR or one which does not disclose the
identity of the complainant will be acted upon only If it merits appropriate consideration, of contains sufficlent leads or particulars to enable
the taking of further action.

‘WhRs may be made or submitted throwgh the following reporting channeis:

& Face-to-Face Meeting : with the Compliance Officer, if the person subject of the report is below the rank of President;
with the S5C Chalrperson, if the persan subject of the report is the Compliance Officer; and
with the Governance Commissicn for Government Ownad or Controlled Corporations (GOG),
if the person subject of the report s any rmember of the 55C

b. E-Mail : whistieblowing@sss.gov.ph
. Mail : Tothe Compliance Officer or the S5C Chair, 12F, 555 Bidg., Makati Ave. corner Rufino St, Makati City or
To the Covernance Commission for COCCs, 3F, Citlbank Center, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makat Ciy 1228
d. Web I WARANLSES Oond P
: wwwwhistleblowinggog.gov.ph
& SMS : [to be assigned)
f. Viber : [to be assigned)
g. Telephone 1 [to be assigned)
h. Fax ! [to be assigned)
CONFIDENTIALITY

S35 shall ensure the confidentiality of all information arising from WR. All WRs, Including the identity of the whistleblower and the persons
complained of, shall be handled in a confldential manner, unkess disclosure s compalled by law or the Courts or the whistleblower consants to
reveal higher identity,

PROTECTION FROM RETALIATION

555 shall not mrmrmmmimmmmmimmnmammmwmm Whs or testify thereon in good faith.
Al possible assistance under applicable laws and rules given the circumstances shall be extended to them. Such retaliatony acts may include:

3. Discrimination or harassment in the workplace d. Termination of contract

b. Demotion In rank, status or salary & Evident bias in performance evaluation
c. Reduction in salary or benefits f. Anyacts of threats that adversaly affect the rights and interests of the whistlebiower
MALICIOUS ALLEGATIONS

Ini case where after imsestigation, it wes determined that the whistleblower andfor witress has made baseless, untruthful, fabricated, malicious or
vexatious allegations, and/or persists in making them, 555 will extend assistance to the official/employee subject of the WRs, should hefshe decide
to initiate a disciplinary or legal action against the whistleblower.

PROCEDURE

A, Handling Whistleblowing Reports

The whistleblower may file a WR with the Compliance Officer, regardiess of the rank of the person complained of, But, in case a WR is against the
Compliance Officer himsalfherself, the same shall be submitted filed directly with the Chairperson af the S5C.

if the WR is against any member of the S5C, the same should be filed with the GCG.
WhRs may also ba reported and filed directly with the GO0 as provided under GOG MUC. Mo, 200602 throwgh their website: wwwowhistieblowing.gog.gov.ph.
A proper WR shall include the following requirements:

# Full narne and position of the person complained of « All supporting evidence including affidevits of witniesses, f army

» Spacification of chargefs + Contact details of the whistheblower (ermail acdress, mobile nurmiber, etc)

» Statement of the relevant and material facts, including the » Certificate of non-forurm shopping, which should be dispensed for an
approxmate time and place of commission of act baing reported ananymous whistleblower

A whistleblower shall have the option to disclose or withhald histher identity, However, to aid further investigation, he/she can be contacted
without compromising anonymity (e.g. email address, telephone, or mebile number].

i the WH is made through a face-to-face meeting, a phone call, or any of the mobile messaging schemes, a written report thereon shall be made
by the Compliance Officer within three working days from receipt of such non-written neport. If the same is against the Compliance Officer, the
Chairperson may designate any of his'her staff to make such written report.

B. Evaluation of the WR

Al W Rs shall be personally evaluated by the Compliance Officer or the Chairperson, as may be applicable, within 15 calendar days from receipt thereof,
to determine whether it falls within the scope of this Policy and ifin the affirmative, determine likewisa if the same is sufficlent in substance.

The Compllance Officer may conduct hisher own investigation for a proper evaluation of the WR He/She may gather relevant evidence by:
a] calling the person/s complaint of and/or witnesses to appear for a discussion;

B} requiring the complainant, if identified, to a discussion andfor submit added information relevant to the WR;

¢} reguiring the person/s complained of to submit a comment

d} directing the proper office/depariment to submit papers or documenis relevant to the matter subject of the W,

e] conducting the Inspection at the workplace of the person/s complained of: and

fi conducting such other acts in akd of the proper evaluation of the W

crame ©



The 15-day period is cormespondingly extended for such time that the papers or documents required from the officefdepartment are not submitted.

Uipon determination that the reports does not fall within the ambit of a WR under this Policy or found to be vague, ambiguaus, patently or without
merit, the Compliance Officer or the Chairperson, as may be applicable, shall recommend to the 55C that the same shall be considered closed and
terminated and the complainant, if identified, shall be informed accordingly.

Should the Compliance Officer or the Chairperson, as may be applicable, determine that the WR falls within the Policy, he/she shall pursue the
following alternative courses of action:

2) Recommend to the S5C for the indorsement of the WR to the proper government agency, such as the Office of the Ombudsman and the Chil Senvice Commission.
b} Submit a report tothe SSC recommending the creation of a Fact-Finding Committes of Invesstigating Committee that will investigate and deliberate the case.

The cormpesiticn of the Fact-Finding Committee or Investigating Committes as may be formed by the SSC, depends upon who is the subject

af the whistleblowing complaint/report.

If the WR Is determined to be sufficient In substance, a Formal Charge shall be issued by the disciplining authority, as recommended by the Investigating
Committee, But If the person complained of falls within the disciplining authority of the President and CEQ (PCEQ), the Formal Charge shall be issued by
the PCEC. In bath cases, the Farmal Charge shall direct the respondent to file hisfher answer to the Formal Charge. Thereafter a formal Investigation shall
ensue, it shall be terminated within 30 days from date of issuance of the formal charge., In case of a whistleblower who wish to remain anonymous, the
Imsestigating Committee shall devise appropriate means 1o safeguard himfher without violating the right of the respondent to face his'her accuser.

It is urderstood that the proper disciplining authornty refers to the PCED for officials and employees below the rank of Vice President and the
S5C for those cooupying the positions of Vice Presidert and above.

C. Imvestigation, Recommendation and Conclusion

. The Investigating Committes, sitting as a panel, shall conduct an investigation pursuant to the Revised Rules on Administrative Cases in the Chil
Senvice [RRACCS). In case of a whistleblower who wishes to remain anomymous, care and caution must be exercised to respect the option of the
whistleblower to secure hisfher identity.

2 The result of the investigation and the recommendation of the Irmestigating Committes shall be submitted to the disciplining authority for approval,
within 15 days after the forrmal investigation has bean terminated. The disciplining authority shall rendar a decigion within 30 days from receipt
tharecf, Tha whistleblower, if identified, and the respondent shall be inforrmed in writing of the actions on the WER.

3 Ifthe whistleblower decides to withdraw the WR or desist, the investigation shall continue if the evidence on hand is sufficient to warrant the
continuation of the proceedings.

% In the event that the employes under investigation resigns from the service pending the completion of the investigation or the final resoiution of
the case, benefits due, if any, shall be withheld pending final resalution of the case.

D. Handling Ancnymous Complaints

An anonymous WH or one which does not disclose the Identity of the complalnant shall be made In writing form and will be acted upon only If it merits
appropriate consideration, or contains sufficient leads and pleces of evidence to enable the taking of further action.

In cases of complaints reported verbally, the Compliance Officer’duly designated staff of tha Chairperson shall log the complaint. Tha whistieblower whao
opts to keep his'her identity anonymous shall be required to submit sufficlent evidence. The compialnant has the option to disclose or withhold identity
and/or sources of information. However, the WR shall clearly identify the person complained of by hishar full name and position. To aid further investigation,
hayshe should provide means by which ha'she can be contacted without compramising anonymity (e.g. emall address, mobile number).

An anonymous WH shall be evaluated personally by the Compliance Officer or the Chalrperson, as may be applicable, within 15 days from receipt
thereof and shall follow the same requirements and procedure for 8 WR with an identified complainant.

E. Handling Complaints Against Retallation [CAR)
1. Submission of Complaint against Retaliation

Any whistieblower and/for witness who balieves that hafshe has been retaliated upon for filing a WR or for participating or cooperating in an investigation
under this Policy may file a written Complaint Against Retaliation [CAR) with the Compliance Officer/Chairparson within three days from the occurrence of
the alleged act or incident on retaliation.

Z The CAR should indicate the following details:
& MNarne, position, work address, contact number of the complainant = Brief descripion and details of the alleged retaliation

» Mame and position of officalslemployees alleged to have [dateftime, place and manner)
retaliated or imvolved in the retaliation against the complainant * Relevant evidence to prove the retaliation

+ Brief description and date of the WHR to which the aleged = Certificate of Non-forumn shopping
retallation relates

3. Preliminary Evaluation, Investigation and Reporting
The procedure for the preliminary evaluation, investigation and reporting of the WR as provided herein shall also be followed.

F. Maotlon for Reconsideration

A meotion for reconsideration of the decision may be filed by the party adversely affected thereby within 15 days from receipt of a copy thereof.
The Maoticn shall be based on any of the fellewing:

a) Newh-discovered evidence;

b] The decision is not supported by evidence; or

g} Emors of law of Irmegularities have been committed prejudicial to the interest of the movant;

In resobving the MR, the disciplining authority should require the comment of the other party and within 30 days from receipt of

said comment, reschwe the same.

G. Appeal
The party adversely affected by the decision an the MR may file within 15 days from receipt of a copy thereof to the proper appellate bodies.

All WRs and CARs received shall be assigned a control number for monitoring purposes.

A rmonthly progress report shall be submitted by the Compliance Officer to the S5C of all pending WR and CAR cases, respectively, with the
cofresponding status and action/s taken thereon.
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If the WHR is against the Compliance Officer, the Chairperson may designate any of his/her staff to essign a separate control number and prepare a
monthly progress report to be submitted tothe SSC.

In all matters not provided In this Pelicy, the RRACCS shall apply In suppletory character.

SSC TRAINING IN 2019

- May Z, 2019
Sponsor: Institute of Corporate Directors

Professional Directors Progrom Modules 2 & I Strategy and Policy for Directors
May 16417, 2019
Sponsor Institute of Conporate Directors

Regional Seminar an the Portobitity of Soclkal Security Rights batween ASEAN Member Stotes
My 28, 2019
Sponsor: Thelland Developrment Research Institute Foundation

Study Tewr on the Delhery of Pensions
Septembar 14 to 20, 2019
Wellingten, New Zealand

Wovrld Sockal Security Farum
CQctober T3 to 18, 2018
Brussels, Balgium

ANITA BUMPUS QUITAIN 2 Lo Go o 2 g
Sponsor: |netitute of Corporate Directars

Tth Annuol Forum on Good Governanca, Ethics ond Complionce "Good Governance Convergences®
October 16, 2015
Sponsor; Good Governance Advocetes and Practitioness of the Philippines

DIANA PARDO AGUILAR mﬁﬂl m’“"'mﬁ‘"““ Governance Training
Spunw". Inestieute of Corporate Dirsctors
The Corporate Governance Enhancement Sassion an 5C Technalogy Strotegy ond Governance: Market Trends and
New Business Applications, Risks and Challenges: and Cyber Sscurity: Protecting Criticol Business Infrostrietune
Saptembar 26, 2019
Sponsor PXP Energy Corporation

NORHA Orientation on the 555 and the S5C for New 55C Members
:ummium SRCRER 17, 200
Orfervtation on 555 investments and Financiols for New 55C Memibers
Jaruany B, 2020
MICHAEL G. REGING 7th Annual Forum on Good Governance, Ethics and Compliance "Good Governancs Convergences”
Octaber 16, 2019

Spongor. Good Covernancs Advocates and Practitioners of the Philippines
Advanced Corponate Governance Training

Noverniber 25, 2019

Sponsor; |nstiute of Corporate Directors

RICARDO L MOLDEZ wmwmw:wmww
Apdil T 812, 2019
Sponsor; Atenec-BAP Institute of Banking
Professiona! Directors Program Modules 2 & I Strategy and Policy for Directors
May 16 417, 20018
Sponsor: Institute of Corporate Directors

Orfartation on the 555 ond the S5C for New 55C Members
MAMUEL L. ARGEL, JR- 18,200
Orfertation on 555 imestments and Finendiols for New 550 Members
October 19, 2013
Corporgte Covernance Onentation Program for GOCCs

October T7, 2019
Sponsor |rstiute of Corporate Directors

Future of Wark and Sociol Security Talk
SANTIAGO D.R. ACDEPPA el s

Commission Secretary,

BRI Py Sponsor; PHi_:rpin- Social Security Association [PHILSSA)
Clark, and Camplianee Controct Review Sympasium for GOCCs

Cficar Hoverniber 18, 2019

Sponsor: Governance Commission for Govarnment Owned or Controlled Corporation

Thia Office of the Commikion Secratany, Ext uthe Comimission Clark and Compliancs Officar coardinatsd with thi Humen Risounts Senvices D hvissan of Uhe registiation of S5C
Mombors to varkous seminars/treinings as part of the ongelng and continuous profiessicnal education md‘trﬂnlnq dﬁns&t%u and Commisslon officer/s (provided for
under Section 27, 3nd par. bl Manual of Corporate Gowernanoe for the Social Sscurity Systermn, spp lutian Mo 138 dated 24 Febouany 2008).
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SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

CARLOS G. DOMINGUEZ Il

SECRETARY, DEPARTMEMT OF FIMAMCE
CHAIRPERSON, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

=  Asthe Secretary of Finance, he also serves as Chairman of the
Land Bank of the Philippines and the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation, and is a member of the Monetary Board.

= Served as Secretary of the Departments of Natural Resources,
and of Agriculture during the Presidency of Corazon Agquing.

= Served as President of Philippine Aiflines, the Philippine
Associated Smelting and Refining Corporation, and the former
Bank of the Philippine Islands Agricultural Development Bank.

P Served as Chairman of the board of Republic Planters Bank
and RCBC Capital Corporation.

P Completed his Master's Degree in Business Administration
frem Ateneo de Manila University and attended the Executive
Management Program at the Stanford University.

0- 555 2010 ANNUAL REPORT .
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SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

AURORA C. IGNACIO

555 PRESIDENT AMD CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
VICE CHAIRPERSON, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 17 July 1956

Place of Birth: Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Age: 63

Sex Fermnale

= Aurora C. Ignacio was appointed as the first PCEO
of the 555 under Republic Act No. N9 or the “Social
Security Act of 2018° on 28 March 2019, Prior to her
appointment as PCED, she was the Chairperson of
the Social Security Commission.

= Formerly the Assistant Secretary for Special Projects in
the Office of the President, Malacafang, the Focal
Person for Anti-lllegal Drugs by virtue of Presidential
Directive No. 5. She also served as a Guest Member of
the Dangercus Drugs Board, a Principal Member of
Task Force on the Establishment of Rehabilitation and
Treatment Centers for Drug Users, and a Council
Member of the Natlonal Food Authority.

5585 Norminee-Director in the boards of Union Bank
of the Philippines and the Philippine Long Distance
Telephone Company in 2019,

Member of the former SSC Committees
(Imvestments Owversight, Governance, Organization
and Appointments, Media and Communications,
Coverage and Collection, Risk Management,
Information Technology, and Audit Committees).

On 18 June 2019, she was designated member in two
streamiined SSC Committees: Executive Committes and
the Risk Management and Investments Commitiea.

Obtained her Bachelor of Sclence degrea in
Commerce, Banking and Finance from the
Centro Escolar University.
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SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

SILVESTRE H. BELLO 1l

SECRETARY, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT (DOLE)
EX= OFFICIO MEMBER, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

DCate of Birth: 23 June 1944
Age: TS5
Sax: Male

P DOLE Secretary Silvestre H. Bello 11l is ex-officio
member of the S5C and was designated member of
the 55C Executive Committee,

= Secretary Bello's other past professional and civic
involvernents include: president and chief executive officer
of the Philippine National Oil Company- Development &
Management Corporation, general manager and chief
executive officer of the Philippine Reclarnation Autharity;
presidential adviser for New Government Centers; Cabinet
Oversight Cfficer for Indigenous Pecples and National
Commission on Indigenous Peoples Matters; Cabinet
Officer for Regional Development for Region |I; Cabinet
Secretany; and a member of 16th Congress representing
1BAP Party List Representative.

He also sat on the boards of companies such as
Camp John Hay Development Corporation,

San Miguel Corporation, CAP Realty Inc., College
Assurance Plan, Comprehensive Annuity Plan

& Pension Corp, Red Eagle Lending Investors
Caorp, CAP Life Insurance Corp, CAP General
Insurance Corp., Puerto Azul, Baguic Country
Club, Philippine Plaza Hotel, Urban Bank, and
Ambassador Hotel, and was on the Board of
Adhisors of Philipping Alrlines,

He is a distinguished associate of various law
offices namely: Yulo & Ballo; Yuls, Torres & Ballo;
Yulo, Quisimbing, Torres, Ali & Bello; Yulo, Torres,
Tarriela & Bello; Tanjuatco, Oreta & Factoran;
Pinlac, Feficiana, Partiza, Majica & Ballo.
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SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

BAI NORHATA DEMARUNSING MACATBAR ALONTO

MEMBER, S0OCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 5 June 1950

Place of Birthe Masiu, Lanao del Sur
Age: 63
Sae Feriale

P Bai Norhata Demarunsing Macatbar Alonto was
appointed to the S5C on 3 December 2019,

p Formally served as Executive Assistant V/Chief of Staff
to the Chairman of Mindanao Development Authority
[Oetaber 2017 ta May 2019).

= Focal Person of foreign-assisted developrment
programs for the Bangsamaors inthe Office of the
Chalrman, Mindanao Development Authority.

= Member of the Board of Directors in the Office of
the President-ARMM Social Fund Board (2003 to
2004); Member of the Board of Directors in the
Office of the President-Bataan Shipyard and
Engineering Corporation (2003 to 2004); and
Commissioner of the Presidential Commission for
Urban Poor, Office of the President (2001 to 2002).

Presidential Assistant for Muslim Mindanao,
Office of the President [1995 to 2007).

College Instructor in the College of Arts and Sciences,
Mindanao State Unhversity (1972 to 1979) and Guidance
Counselor, Preparatory High Schoal, Mindanao State
University 1970 to 1972).

Head of Secretariat in the All Moro Comvention,
Mindanao [Movernber 2017).

Former Vice President and now Member of the
16th President Cabinet Spouses Foundation,
and Regional Governor of the Mational Council
of Women in the Philippines.

Completed her AB Psychology degree at the
Philippine Women's University and MA Psychaology
at the University of the Philippines.

Earned units in Master’s in Business Administration
at the Asian Institute of Management.

—
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SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

S5 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

DIANA PARDO AGUILAR

MEMBER, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 27 Octobar 1963
Place of Birth: Manila
Age: 56

Sex Fermale

= Diana Pardo Aguilar was reappointed as 55C
member on 28 November 2016,

Chairperson of the S5C Risk Management and Investment
Committes, and member of the Audit Committee.

Vice-Chairperson of the SS5 Provident Fund.

yYvy

555 Nominee-Director in the board of PXP Energy
Corparation (February 2018 to present) and appointed
as member of the Board Risk and Resource Oversight
Committee since June 2018,

555 Nominee-Dinector in the Board of Philex Mining

Corporation (November to present] and appointed as member
of the Finance Committes and Nominations Committes,

= Director of Security Bank Corporation (April 2017 to present)
and appointed as Chalrperson of the Trust Committee, and
member of Technology Execution Excellence Committes,
Related Party Transactions Committee and Risk Owersight
Committee. She is also the Chairperson of SB Capital
Investment Corporation [August 2006 1o present).

A\

Board of Trustees of La Salle Greenhills (September 2019 to
present) and appointed as Treasurer and Chalrperson of the
Finance Committee (December 2019 to present),

Member of De La Salle Philippines’ Investment Committees
Fuly 2008 to present),

Independent Director of the Medical Doctors, Inc. (Makati
Medical Center) from July 2018 to present.

Beard Member of Capital Markets Development Board (2013 to
prasent), of the Employers Confederation of the Philippines (ECOP),
and of the Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

Consultant Advisor to the Board of Philippine Seven Corporation
{[Panuary 2015 to present] and also an advisor to the Executive,
Audit and Nomination and Governances Comimitiees.

ECOP Governor (January 2017 to present).

She holds the degree of B.S. Computer Studies from De La Salle
University, and a Master's in Business Administration degres,
Major in International Business and Finance (with hamors), from
the Pepperdineg University in California, USA,




SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

ANITA BUMPUS QUITAIN

MEMBER, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 1 Novernber 1946
Place of Birth: Sta, Cruz, Davao Del Sur
Age: T3

Sex: Famale

= Anita Bumpus Quitain was appointed to the 55C
on & October 2016.

= 555 Nominee-Director in the boards of Philex Mining
Corperation and First Philippine Holdings in 20013,

= Member of the former 55C Committees on 1) Investments
Owversight, 2) Governance, Organization and Appointments,
3) Media and Commiunications, 4£) Coverage and Collection,
5) Risk Management, and &) Information Technoldogy.

= Chaired the Audit Committes in 2019, and on
June 1B, was designated member in the Information
Technolegy and Collection Comitiee.

In July 2009, she retired from 555 after 31 years of
dedicated service, during which period she was
officer-in-charge of operations of the 555 Representative
Office in Digos City, Davao del Sur and held the position
of Head in the various Sections of the 555 office in
Region 9, Davao City, to wit: 1) Member Assistance,

2] Operations Accounting, 3) Sickness, Disability and
Maternity, and 4) Real Estate.

Worked with the Department of Educationas an
elementary school teacher for 10 years and also taught
in the Philippine Women's College of Davao.

A graduate of the University of Mindanao,
Davao City, in Education.
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MANUEL L. ARGEL, JR.

MEMBER, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 23 July 1949
Place of Birth: Vigan City, llocos Sur

Age: 70
S Male

= Judge Manuel L Argel, Ir. was appeinted
S5C member on 4 September 2019,
representing the Employers’ Group.

p= Commissioner Argel is a retired Regional Trial Court
Judge for Laoag City, llocos Norte, and member of
the Judiciary for 20 yvears. Prior to this, he was a law
practitioner for 20 years.

B Priorto his service in the Judiciary, ha served the
Legislative Department when he was elected in 1980
as a member of the Sangguniang Bayan of Vigan City.
In 2008, ha was given the Legislator's Award by the
City Government of Vigan in recognition of his
accomplishments and contributions as forrmer
legislator of Vigan City.

1n 1995, while in private practice, he was accredited
as a Voluntany Labor Arbitrator of the DOLE Mational
Conciliation and Mediation Board.

He served as President of the Integrated Bar of the
Philippines (llocos Sur Chapter) from 1993 to 1995,
Provincial Secretany of National Citizens' Movement for
Free Elections, Chairman of the llocos Sur Local Amnesty
Board, a member of the People’s Assistance Development
Action Center, Inc. He is a Charter Crand Knight and
Lecturer-Member of the Knights of Columbus.

As RTC Judge of Laoag City, llocos Norte from 1995, he
also served as Executive Judge of RTC Laocag (2005 to
2007), and Presidential Assistant for Region | in the
Philippine Judges Association,

He is a distinguished alumnus of San Beda University,
where he obtained both his Bachelor of Arts in
Philcsophy in 1969 and Bachelor of Laws in 1974,




SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

RICARDO L. MOLDEZ

MEMBER, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 30 July 1247 3 P Represented the 555 in the Boards of the City
E';“?gf Birth: Bray. Bull, Muntinlupa City Savings Bank and Belle Corporation n 2019,
Sexc Male
= Alitigation lawyer with more than 40 years of
I Atty. Ricardo L. Moldez joined the 55C on 26 experience, including the following: Appointed
September 2018, Board Member, Hurnan Rights Victims' Claims
Board (2017 to 2018); Special Counsel, Department
= In 2019, he was designated member of the S5C of Justice [974 to 1976); Municipal Attorney,
Committees on Coverage, Collection and Other Muntinlupa City (1974); Court Interpreter,
Relatod Matters, Media and Communications, Risk Municipal Court of Muntinlupa (1969 to 1971).
Management, Investments Oversight, Governance,
Organization and Appointments, Information
Technology, and Audit. = Holds a Law degree from the Lyceum
of the Philippines, Manila, and was
= Onl8June 2019, under the streamlined SSC admitted to the Bar in 1972

Committees, he was designated member of the
Executive Committes and the Audit Committes.
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SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

MICHAEL G. REGINO

MEMEBER, SOCIAL SECURITY COMMISSION

Date of Birth: 14 August 1961

Place of Birth: Dipolog, Zambeanga Del Morte
Age: 58

Sexc Mabe

= Commissioner Michael G. Regino was appointed as
S55C member on 24 October 2016 and reappointed
on 25 January 2019,

= in 2019, he was designated member of the following
S5C Committees: Coverage, Collection and Other
Related Matters; Media and Communications;
Investments Oversight; Governance, Organization and
Appointments, and Information Technology. He served
as chairperson of the Risk Management Committee.

= ©Onl8June 2019, under the streamlined S5C Committees,
he was designated chairperson of the Information
Technology and Collection Cormmittes, and membar of
the Risk Management and Investments Committee.

—

S85 Nominee-Director in the Boards of Union Bank of
the Philippines and Philex Mining Corporation for 2019,

Has more than 30 years of corporate axperience from

various industries, including mining, real estate development,
memorial parks development, property management,
construction and housing materials manufacturing.

Served as president and/or a member of the board of
directors of Camella Homes, Golden Haven Memorial Parks,
Inc., MGS Group of Companies, 5t Augustine Gold and
Copper Ltd,, TVl Resources Doveloprment Phils, Inc, and
Agata Mining Wentures, Inc.

Graduated Cum Laude from Atenec de Zamboanga
University in 1981, with a degree of Bachelor of Science
major in Economics, then obtained his Master's in Business
Administration In 1985 frem Ateneo de Manila University.

fo- 555 2010 ANNUAL REPORT
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OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY INTERNAL AUDIT
TO THE COMMISSION SERVICE GROUP

N

-

SANTIAGO DIONISIO R. AGDEPPA JOSEFINA O. FORNILOS

SVP, COMMISSION SECRETARY, SVP, INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE GROUP
COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND

EXECUTIVE COMMISSION CLERK
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585 MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT & CEO, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS & SENICR VICE PRESIDENTS

ELVIRA G. ALCANTARA-RESARE

RIZALDY T. CAPULONG
EVP, INVESTMENTS SECTOR EVP, CORPORATE SEAVICES SECTOR
AND CONCURSENT ACTING HEAD,
AURORA C. IGNACIO HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT GROUP

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

fQ 555 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



SSS MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT & CEOQ, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS & SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS

VOLTAIRE P. AGAS
SVP, LEGAL AND ENFORCEMENT GROUP

JUDY FRAMNCES A. SEE
EVP, BRANCH OPERATIONS SECTOR
AND COMCLURRENT ACTING HEAD,
NCR OPERATIONS GROLS

PEDRO T. BAOY

SWP, LENDIMC AND ASSET MANACEMENT

GCROUP, CONCURRENT ACTING HEAD,
CAPITAL MARKETS GROUP AND
CONCURRENT ACTING HEAD,

ASSET MAMAGEMENT DIWISION

55 2019 ANNUAL REFORT r@-



S55 MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT & CEO, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS & SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS

{

]

N S

2 A

€
y
-

MARIO R. SIBUCAO

v, MEMBER SERVICES AND:

SUPPORT CROUP AND CONCURRENT EDGAR B. CRUZ

ACTING HEAD, MEMBER RELATIONS E“HES‘TD D'- FHANC’E:D JR SVIP & CHIEF ACTUARY, ACTLLARLAL

AMD SUPPORT DIVISEON SV, FUND MANAGEMENT GROUP JOSIE G. MAGAMA AND RISK MAMAGEMENT GROUP
SVP, LUZON OPERATIONS GROUP

i . 5552010 ANNUAL REPORT
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555 MANMAGEMENT PRESIDENT & CEQ, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS & SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS

RODRIGO B. FILOTEO* ANTONIO S. ARGABIOSO”
ACTIMG SVP, MINDMNAD OEERATIONS ﬁmﬁTﬁ{;‘;m" :‘:;TE 2
GROUP AND VB, MiMDaNA wesTervimion JOY AL VILLACORTA® CONCURRENT ACTING HEAD, NCR LARGE

ACTING SVE, INTERMATIONAL ACCOUNTS DERARTMENT

OPERATIONS GROUS AND LEN C. SOLITO

CONCURRENT ACTING HEAD, gjww.s%xmnmsumup

ASIA, AMERICAS AND PACIEIC -

CPERATIONS DIVISION
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555 MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT & CEO, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS & SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS

JOHNSY L. MANGUNDAYAO*

ACTING SYP, ADMINISTRATION CROUP

GWEN MARIE JUDY D. SAMONTINA®
LEONORA D. NUQUE* AOVP, PROCAAM SERCES DSION | CEMENT GROUP

ACTING SWP, CENTRAL PROCESSING
CROUP AND VP, NCR REGIOMNAL

PROCESSING DIVISION JEAN V. LACRADA*

ACTING SVB, CONTROLLERSHIP
GROUP AND VP, FINANCIAL AND
BUDGET DIVISION

“Sorvet in acting capacity
+ 5552010 ANNUAL REPORT -
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SSC AND SSS MANAGEMENT DIRECTORY EoL - it )

[m\:l.rmrmcu PRESIDENT

CARLOS G DOMINGUEZ 1l
Chairperson

AURORA C. IGNACID
Vice-Chairparsan

BAl NORHATA M. ALONTO
MANUEL L ARGEL JR.
SILVESTRE H. BELLO I
ANITA BUMPUS-QUITAIN
RICARDO L MOLDEZ
DIANA V. PARDO-AGUILAR
MICHAEL G. REGING
Members

COMMISSION SECRETARY,
COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE COMMISSION CLERK

SEMIOR VICE PRESIDENT

SANTIAGO DIONISIO R AGDEPPA
Commission Secretary,
Compliance Officer and
Executive Commission Clark

| *ACTING DEPUTY COMMISSION CLERK |

NACMI A, ANTAZO®
Deputy Cornmission Clerk

DEPARTMENT MANAGER Il AND

"ACTING HEAD

MARY LYN Y. DAVID®

Maetional Capital Region Commission
Legal Department

TINNA MARIE R LUZURIAGA®
Mindanao Commission
Legal Departrment

MARISEA C. MAPALO®

Policy Resaarch and
Covernance Department

JOCELYN B. PARAISO*
Commission Secretariat Department

JOSE B. SALGADO JR*
Luzon Commission Legal Department

GLORIA 5 TIRADO
Visayas Commission Legal Department

| 555 MANAGEMENT |

| PRESIDENT AND CEO |

AURDRA C. ICMNACID
Office of the President and CEQ

“Cificer-in-Charge

ELVIRA G, ALCANTARA-RESARE
Corporate Services Sector and

Concurrent Acting Head, Human
Resource Managament Group

RIZALDY T. CAPULONG
Investments Sector

JUDY FRANCES A. SEE
Branch Operations Sector and
Concurrent Acting Head,

MCR Operations Group

SEMIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND
"ACTING HEAD

MARIO R. SIBUCAD
Member Services and
Suppert Group and
Concurrent Acting Head,
Member Relations and
Support Division

HELEM C. SOLITO
Visayas Operations Group

JO% A VILLACORTA®
International Operations Group
and Comcurrent Acting Head,
Asia, Americas and Pacific
Operations Division

VOLTAIRE P. AGAS
Legal and Enforcement Group

ANTONIO S ARGABIOSO"

Account Management Group,

Vice President, Large Accounts Division
and Concurrent Acting Head,

HNCR Large Accounts Department

PEDRO T. BACY

Lending and Asset Management Group,
Concurrant Acting Head,

Capital Markets Group and

Concurrent Acting Head,

Agset Managemant Division

EDGAR B. CRUZ
Actuarial and Risk Management Group

RODRIGO B. FILOTEO*
Mindanao Operations Group and
Vice President, Mindanac West Division

JOSEFINA O. FORNILOS
Internal Audit Service Group

ERMNESTO D. FRANCISCO IR
Fund Managernent Group

JEAN V. LAGRADA®
Controllership Group and
Vice President, Financial
and Budget Divislon

JOSIE G, MAGAMNA
Luzon Cperations Group

JOHNSY L MANCUNDAYAC"
Administration Croup

LEONORA D. NUQUE®

Central Processing Croup and
Vice President, NCR Regional
Processing Division

GWEN MARIE JUDY D. SAMONTINA®
Information Technology
Management Group and

Vice President,

Program Services Division

*ACTING HEAD

HELEM L ABOLENCIA
NCR North Division

WiLMA P ACAPITO
Luzon Central 1 Divislon

MARIA FITA 5. ACLIA
NCR South Division

ED'WIN M. ALD
Mindanao Morth Division

CLORIA CORAZON M. ANDRADA
Luzon Central 2 Division

CRISTINA A BACALLA
Luzon Regional Processing Division

PORFIRIO M., BALATICO
Luzon North 2 Division

NICHOLAS C. BALBUENA
IT Operations Division

LILANI B. BENEDIAN

Wisayas West | Division and
Concurrent Acting Head,
Visayas West 2 Dhvision

HIDELZA B. CASTILLO
ICT Support Services Division

ELEOMORA Y, CINCO
Management Services and
Planning Civisien and
Concurrent Acting Head,
Risk Management Division

MARIO V. CORRO
Visayas Central 2 Divisicn

RENATO JACINTO 5. CUISIA®

Operations Legal Services Division |
and Concurrent Acting Head,
Operations Legal Services Division |1

DORENDA M. DASMARINAS-PAN®
Procurement Management Division

o D




FILOMEMA 5, DAVID®

Human Resource Services Division

and Department Manager Il

Learning and Development Department

RIZALITO ALBERTO C. DE LEON®
Mindanaa South 1 Division

ROSANO L DELMO*
Internal Audit Service Division |

NILD D. DESPUIG
Luzen Bicol Division

EDWIN B. DINCOG JR.®
Equities Investments Divislon

and Concurrent Acting Head,
Alternative Investmients Division

NORMITA M. DOCTOR
Benefits Administration Division

RENTONY C. GIBE*

Actuarial Services Division,
Department Manager il
[Senier Associate Actuary),
Program Development ard
Pricing Departmernt and
Concurrent Acting Head,
Actuarial Ressarch Department

MA. VIANMNEY O. GO*
Operations Accounting Division

FRAMNCISCO PAQUITO L LESCANO™
Luzon South 2 Division

LUZVIMINDA 1. LIMCAUCD
NCR West Division

EDWIN B. MALIWAT®
General Services Division

GILDAVICTORIA G, MENDOZA
Investments Support Division

FROILAN M. MISA®
Internal Audit Service Division Il

ALBERTO L MONTALBO*
Visayas Central 1 Division

FERNANDO F, MICOLAS™

Public Affairs and Special Events
Division and Departrnent Manager |1,
Media Affairs Departrment

BOOBIE ANGELA A OCAY

Fixed Income Imestmeants Division
and Concurrent Acting Head,
Member Loans Department

ALAMN GEME O. PADILLA
IT Solutions Division

CEASAR P, SALUDO
Luzon Morth 1 Division

ELENITA 5. SAMBLERG
Luzen South 1 Division

TERESITAW, SOLIMAN®
MNCR East Division

SYLVETTE C. SYBICO*
Middie East and Europe
Operations Divislon and
Department Manager I,
Foreign QOperations Support
Services Departrnant

GUILLERMO M. URBANC JR.
Treasury Divislon

MIRLAM A VILLALBA,
Visayas and Mindanac
Regional Processing Divislon

BREMDA P, VIOLA

Medical Services Division
REDENTOR 5. VI0OLA®
Mindanag South 2 Division

JOSELITO A VIVIT
Corporate Legal Services Division

memn I AND

"ACTING HEAD
AL MAYOD C. ABAD"

Governance and Administrative
Adjudication Department

MA. GRACIA D. ABAS

Business and Development
Loans Departmant

LEQ CALIXTO C. ABAYOMN
Network and Communications
Department

MAY 0. ABERIN

Financial and Investments
Audit Department

BLESSELDA M. ACOSTA*
Luzon North 1 Legal Departrment

CHERRYLYM E. ALEGRE®
Accreditation Department

NICOLAS L ARAC
NCR West Legal Department

MELANIE O. BARCELONA,
Luzon Large Accounts Department

ELISA B. BAROQUE
Medical Operations Department

ROBERTO B, BAUTISTA
Bilateral Agreements Department

AUREA G, BAY
Branch Systemns and
Procadures Department

REMNIER JOY NONITO B, BORMAS®
Opinion and Ressarch Departmant

FELIPE R. CABANERD

IT Rescurce Management Department

BALTAZAR C. CAJILIC*
Enginearing and Facilities
Management Department

ARCELI G. CARLOS®
Member Electronic Services Department

JOSEPH LAMBERTO P. CARLODS
Valuation Services Department

MARY ANN D. CASTELO*
Securities Settlement and
Custody Department

JOMAR C. CATABAY®
NCR Morth Legal Departent

RALLP. CINCO
Mindanas Narth Legal Department

ROBERT B. CLEMENTE
Infermation Systems Department IV

COLETTE H. CORDIAL
Corporate Policy and Planning Department

LILIBETH E. CORTEZ*
Employer Delinquency Monitoring Departrnent

ROSAT. CRISOSTOMO
Infermation Systems Department ||

WVICENTE SOL C. CUENCA*
Luzon North 2 Legal Department

GLORIA Y. CLISIA

Branch Expansion and
Management Services Department

CELSO C. CUMAMNAN

Data Center Operations Department
and Concurrent Acting Head,

IT Operations Analysis Department

ELPIDIO 5 DE CHAVEZ
Branch Support Services Departrnent

HAYDEE P. DE CUZMAN*
Retirernent, Death and Funeral Benelfits
Administration Department

JOSELITO B. DE LOS REYES
Employee Services Departmant

MARIE ADA ANGELIQUE T. DE SILVA
Housing and Acquired Assats
Managerment Department

MARITES C. DELA TORRE
Luzon Bicol Legal Departiment

MARIA CELINA M. DELAPO
Organizational Planning and
Staffing Department

JOSEPH C. DESUMIA
Legisiative Affairs Department

ALEJANDRE T. DIAZ*
Luzon South 1 Legal Departrment

NI¥OM O. DIMAPASOC
Office Services Departrment

"Officer-in-Charge
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MaA. DOROTHEA R. DIMLA
Liquidity Management and
Bank Depaosits Department

BERNARDOD B. DOFITAS JR"
Visayas West 2 Legal Department

GLENITO D. DOMABCC
Wisayas Central Legal Depariment

BELINDA B. ELLA
Ceneral Accounting Department

JOCELYM M. EVANGELISTA
Sickness, Maternity and Disability
Benefits Administration Cepartment
OLIVIA B. FARINAS"

Records Archiving and
Servicing Department

VIC BYRON T. FERMANDEZ
Luzen Central Legal Department

MARLA NIMFA V. FRANCO
Menagement Support

Services Department
ROGELIO A FUNTELAR
Technical Support Department

ALLAN MARTIN M. CAYONDATO
Statistics and Data Analysis Department

NEIL F. HERNAEZ
Visayas and Mindanao
Large Accounts Department

RACHEL P. JABOLI®
Special Investigation Department

STELLA C. JOSEF
IT Cevernance and Standands Departmeant

JUNIIE M. LABANGCO®
Security Department

YOLANDA C. LADOMNCA
Cash Management Department

TERESITA D, LANDICHO®
Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao
Audit Department

ROGELIO W, LANUZA
Hosting Services Department

BLESILA Y, LIM®
NCR and Foreign Audit Depamment

MARLA EMILY C. LIM
Informaticn Systerms Departrment [l

MYLENE H. LORICA
Strategic Decision and
Technical Support Department

ELOISA A MAGLAYA®
Health Care Department

MA. ELA R MANZOMN
Wisayas West 1 Legal Department

“Officer-in-Charge

ALEXAMDER C. MARQUEZ*
Precurement and Special
Audit Department

LUCRECIA C. MARTINEZ*

Member Cornmunications
and Assistance Department

FATRICIA B. NATARENG®
Mindanao South Legal Department

AMNDRILINE A. OBEDOZA™
Documentation and
Conveyancing Department

GILBY G. ORIBELLD
Valuation Department

WAN RENE M. ORPILLA
Infarmation Systerms Dapartrment |

HEMRY C. PABLO
Litigation Department

VICTORINA B. PARDO-PAJARILLO®
MCR East Legal Department

VENUS D, PASCUAL
Branch Accounting Department

FAUSTING P, PICONES
Project Managemant Office

JEFFREY 5. PITOC*
Investments Accounting Department

ROBERTO U. PUTONG*
Medical Program Department

Ma, NYMPHA M. RACGEL

Cooperatives and Informal
Sector Department

HYDEE R. RAQUID

Precurement Planning and
Management Department

DEXTER Q. REBLORA*
Budget Department

MARICHELLE L REYES®

Benefits Oversight and Review Department
and Departmant Manager I, Veluntary
Provident Fund Department

CECILIA S, ROA
Contributions Accounting
Department

MA SALOME E. ROMAND
Infermation Systerns
Security Department

JOSE ANTONIO L SALAZAR
Identity Management Department

AMADD GREGORIO P.SORPOCO
Investment Property Department

CARMEN 0. SORIANO
Pensions Administration Department

CYREME C. TINAE
Mindanao West Legal Department

ARNOLD A TOLENTING
Quality Management Department

MARIANG PABLO S TOLENTING
ROPA and Acquired Assets Departrment

LILlA A TUBONGBANLA*
Infermation Systems Audit Department

JOSE RANIL R. UGADDAN"
Cwverseas Filiping Werkers Management Department

STELLA BERMNA LD BLESILDA D. VALENTONA-INACAY
NCR South Legal Department

REME T. VICENTE"
Corporate Service Audit Department

CAROLINA V. VILLAY

Performance Management and
Emiployes Relations Departrmant

CARLD C. VILLACORTA®
Professional Sector Department

MARC A VILLANUEWVA®
Luzon South 2 Legal Department

MARIVIC 5. VILLARAMA,
Data and Information
Services Department

NAMMNAMA C. ABELLA
Diliman Processing Center

CHARISSE M. CASTRO
Pasig Processing Center

LUZON REGIOMAL
PROCESSING DIVISION

MARIA TERESA D. BUSTAMANTE
La Union Processing Centar

GERARDA N. TERRIBLE
Tarlac Processing Center

MILYN G. VALENCIA®
San Pablo Processing Center

VISAYAS AND MINDANAD REGIOMAL
PROCESSING DIVISION

MARIA TERESA L GELBOLINGO
Cebu Processing Center

MARICEL A LOCSIN
licilo Processing Center

JEANETTE A MAKIG-ANGAY
Davao Processing Center

GILDA L. QUINA®
Cagayan De Oro Processing Center

crrme O



BRANCH HEAD LIl AND
*ACTING HEAD

| NCR OPERATIONS GROUP

MARTIN D. BAUTISTA IR,
Mavotas Branch

CAROLIMA L CASTRO
Cubao Branch

LYDIA C. CERENO
Movaliches Branch

CRLANDO D, CRUZY
Kalookan Branch

RUTH A DE GUZMAN
Malabon Branch

JUANILLD 5. DESCALZO NI
‘Congressional Branch

EVELYN L. DUPLON
Dilirman Branch

EMMA J. ENRIQUEZ
‘Valenzuela Branch

ROWEMNA A FESALBON
Eastwood Branch

JOCELYM Q. GARCLA
San Francisco Del Monte Branch

LIBERTY A CORDOVEZ
Fairview Branch

ROWELA CRISTINA R MACASADIA
Batasan Hills Branch

LORELIE L. OLARTE
Marth Caloocan Branch

DIVINA GRACLA B, RAYMUNDO*
Paso De Blas Branch

ROMALDO W. RECIO
Deparo Branch

| NCR EAST DIVISION

EDMNA Q. ALDEA
Tanay Branch

ZEMAIDA B, BOLADD
Pasig-Rotunda Branch

WENDELING V. COMBOY JR.
Ortigas Branch

MARICRIS G. DELUMEN"
Marikina-Malandasy Branch

BENJAMIN M. DOLINDO JR.*
Mew Panaderos Branch

BERLITA F. FABRERD
aAntipolo Branch

ROMALD D. |1BAY
Cainta Branch

HELEN C. LABAD
Marlkina Branch

SUSAN REBECCA D. LARION
San Juan Branch

ALICIA A MILLARA,
Masinag Branch

FELIZARDOD B. MINOR JR.
Pasig-Pioneer Branch

VICTOR C. QCAMPO"
Pasig-Rosario Branch

ANNABELLA POLLYANNE M. ROMASOC

Mandaluyong-Shaw Branch

MARICHI 5. TRINIDAD
San Mateo Branch

| NCR SOUTH DIVISION

JESUS ARNEL A ARCILLA®
Makati-Guadalupe Branch

JULIET T. BOLINAG®
Bicutan-5un Valley Branch

JESUSAT. CASIMIRO®
Makatl-Gil Puyat Branch

LED A DANAD
Makati-1.P. Rizal Branch

FE MARIE 5. FERNANDEZ-GERALDO
Las Pifias Branch

CRISTINE GRACE B. FRANCISCO
Makati-Chino Roces Branch

CATHERIME T. GOMEZ
Alabang-Zapote Branch

SHIRLEY E. NAVALTA*
Alabang-Muntinlupa Branch

FE B. NUNEZ
Taguig-Gate 3 Branch

RHUENA ANNE MARIE C. OCAMPO
Parafiague-Tambo Branch

HOECHST R POTATO®
Parafiaque Branch

ROMEQ F. VALE*
Taguig Branch

JOSEPHINE D, ANG®
Manila Branch

LAZARD D, CAMLAS®
Binondo Branch

DANIEL T, CAPUT
Pasay-Roxas Boulevard Branch

AMALLA M. CATRAL
Recto Branch

DOLORA Q. HOJILLA®
Legarda Branch

CARIMA F. LORENZO®
Sta, Mesa Branch

TEODULO A MAYUYO*
Tondo Branch

LOREMNZA F. PANCHO
Pasay-Taft Branch

EUDORA G, RACUYAL®
Binondo-Reina Regente Branch

VERONICA C. RODRIGUEZ*
Welcome Branch

| LUZON OPERATIONS GROUP |

| LUZON NORTH 1 DIVISION l

RODERICK M. ANCRADA
Agoo Branch

AMOR P. ERPELO"
Candon Branch

CAROLINE C. KAPAWEN®
Bontoc Branch

DOMINADOR G. MALATAGH
La Trinidad Branch

FRAMNCISCO F. PENTECOSTES®
La Union Branch

RICHARD M, RARALIC®
Lacag Branch

CECILLE T. SALLY
Vigan Branch

MANCY M. UMOSO
Baguic Branch

EDWARD G. URUA
Bangued Branch

LUZON NORTH 2 DIVISION |

JAMET D. CANILLAS®
Tuguegarao Branch

GUADALUPE D. CASTILLO
llagan Branch

REYMAMNTE T. FERNANDO®
Cauayan, Isabela Branch

JEANMIE D. MESA®
Santiago, lsabela Branch

ROMED E. REYES
Solano Branch

JOSE ALVIN M. ALTRE
Alaminos Branch

CATALIMA A BASBAS®
San Carlos, Pangasinan Branch

HAIDEE C. BINAG*
San Jose, NE Branch

.



CHRISTIAN C. CATACUTAN®
Baler Branch

JORDAM A HERRERA
Mariveles-BEPZ Branch

ELIZABETH C. GABON
Iba Branch

EMMA M. LAURETA
Camilling Branch

MARLA MAXIMA C. MACARAEG
Tarlac Branch

MARCISO M. MARTIMEZ JR.
Urdaneta Branch

MOMALISA C. NARDO"
Dagupan Branch

PRIMITIVG D. VERANLA JA.
Cabanatuan Branch

JOELY. VILLAFUERTE
Balanga Branch

WINDA G, AGUSTIN®
San Jose Del Monte Branch

MIRIAM A CAMILING®
Sta. Maria Branch

MORMITA M. CRUZ
Angeles Branch

MARITES A. DALOPE
Balluag Branch

PABLITA A DAVID
Pampanga Branch

ALBINA LEAH C MANAHAMN®
Malolos Branch

CHELIN LEA D. NABONG®
Dau Branch

MA. THERESA A RIBUYACD
Meycauayan Branch

MARILOU M, SANTOS
Olongapo Branch

JUSTINA C. TANEDO
Bocaue Branch

| LUZON SOUTH 1 DIVISION

ROMAM R. BELEN
Sta. Cruz Branch

LETICIA M. DEL BARRIO®
Dasmarifias Branch

MONICA P, DIND
Tagaytay Branch

ELEAMNOR R, EBREQ
Carmona Branch

s

AMMA PEACHY P. GURANGOD®
Infanta Branch

JOSEPHINE 5. HIFQOLITO"
Bacoor Branch

EDWIN 5. IGHARAS
Calamba Branch

FREDERICK D. ISIP
Lucena Branch

ROBERTO 5. PAGAYUNAMN
Bifan Branch

JOSE RIZAL 5. TARUN
San Pablo Branch

EVAE. TOMENIO
Rosario [EPZA) Branch

REYMANTE A UNTIVEROS®
San Padro Branch

GRACE R VELASCO
Santa Rosa Branch

ERMINA MARLA P, ROBREDD
Masbate Branch

VIRGILIO A SANTIACO
Iriga Branch

PRISCO 5 SORSONA
Daet Branch

| VISAYAS OPERATIONS GROUP |

| VISAYAS CENTRAL 1 DIVISION ]

| LUZON SOUTH 2 DIVISION

ABDULTALIB A ABIRIN®
Puerto Princesa Branch

JESSICA M. AGBAY™
Batangas Branch

JOSEPH PEDLEY V. BRITANICO
Lipa Branch

JULIETA B. COMPLUESTO"
Lemery Branch

IMELDW, . FAMILARAMN
Calapan Branch

ESMERALDA 5. MADRIAGA®
San Jose, Occidental Mindoro Branch

CHRISTINE R. RIANO*
Cdiongan Branch

REMALY M. SACUID®
Baac Branch

SHEILA MARIE Y. ABAD®
Toledo Branch

ALIETA L BASUBAS
Tagbilaran Branch

JANICE L. CABALLES®
Talisay Branch

GEMMA C. CABERTE
Mandaue Branch

ERIC A COROMNADO*
Lapu-Lapu Branch

ROCELYH F. DUAY*®
Danao Branch

WILLIAM P. PENSERGA
Bogo Branch

BENJAMIN A POMBO
Cebu-North Reclamation Area Branch

VERDA 5. TORREFRANCA*
Cebu Branch

VISAYAS CENTRAL 2 DIVISION l

| LUZON BICOL DIVISION

DIVINA T. AVILA
Virac Branch

ANTOMNIO A, CASIMIRO®
Legazpi Branch

ELIZABETH A DE GUZMAN
GCoa Branch

ROLANDO O, GOMEZ
Sorsogon Branch

SUSANA N, MALUBAG®
Tabaco Branch

CLARIBEL L REBUEND
Maga Branch

GRECORIO 5. BAROZA
Maasin Branch

LILIBETH A, CAJUCOM
Tacloban Branch

WVINA SOCORRO A MERCADO*
Calbayeg Branch

AILEEM A OLARAM
Catbalogan Branch

PORFERIO A SALIDAGA JR.
COrmoc Branch

| VISAYAS WEST 1 DIVISION

BaAl P CIOCON IR
Bais Branch

BRENDA B. CRUZ
Victorias Branch

LYMLEE LU G. DATO*
Kabankalan Branch

M SHEILA V., GALEND
Sagay Branch

JANE T. GARCOLES
Bacolod East Branch




LINA WV, HILADO®
Bacolod Branch

ELISA M. LLAVAN
Dumaguete Branch

EMELLA B. SOLINAP
Bago Branch

VINCENT Q. TRANI
San Carles, Negros Occidental Branch

VISAYAS WEST 2 DMVISION

ANGELO O. BLANCAVER
Kallpo Branch

EVA L CURA
lipflo-Central Branch

LEILA T. FERRARIS*
licilo-Mola Branch

REMNE MOISES G. GONZALES
Roxas Branch

PHILLIP M. LUCERO®
Aritlgue Branch

| MINDANAO OPERATIONS GROUP |

| MINDANAO NORTH DIVISION ]

JULIET C. ABUTON
Croquieta Branch

WVALENTIME V. AUNZO
CDO-Lapasan Branch

PERKINS B. CALIXTRO
Gingoog Branch

BEMICNO 1. DAGAN| JR.
Tandag Branch

ANTONIO G. FABIA
Butuan Branch

JOSE ROEL J. HERBIETO
Surigao Branch

MARIA RAINE L JAMERO
Cagayan De Oro Branch

CHERYL V. JARIOL
lligan Branch

LIZA ) LUMANTAS®
Ozamiis Branch

ARNOLD O. PEPIND
San Francisco, Agusan Branch

ALAN L SAYON®
Cariguin Branch

MARILYN O. TAMAYD
Valencia Branch

| MINDANAO SOUTH 1 DIVISION |

ROMEO D. ALBWAR JR"
Bislig Branch

MONIQUE 5 ALCANTARA®
Teril Branch

JOSE 5. CATOTO JR.
Tagum Branch

MARY ELLEN A ESTOQUE"
Davag Branch

JOCELYNT. GOPC™
D¥gos Branch

IMELDA A. GUERRA
Mati Branch

ROSELAME B. PLAZA
Davao-llustre Branch

ALNORA Y, PRESBITERD
Panabo Branch

MINDANAQ SOUTH 2 DIVISION |

0N COMSOLACION A BASTARECHE®
Kidapawan Branch

SERAFIM G. HINGECO
Tacurong Branch

RITA FE 5. LIMBAGA*
Keronadal Branch

SUKARNO D. PEMDALIDAY
Cotabato Branch

SUZETTE H. PURIFICACION"
General Santos City Branch

JOSEFIMNA A MADURC
Kuala Lumpur Represantative Office

BERNARD C. ROMAN
Talpel Representative Offlce

LUCILLE BLESILDA L SIMBOL
Singapore Representative Office

| MIDDLE EAST

EDRE G. BAYND
Israel Representative Office

LYDiA E. CABAGNOT
Abu Dhabi Represantative Office

DANILO Q. CALAPE
Rivadn Representative Office

LESLIE P. DE LEON
Doha Representative Offica

MICHAEL DC. INGAL
Jeddah Representative Office

MARK ROUE N. OLIVA
Dubai Representative Office

JEREMY M. REDULLA
Kuwalt Representative Office

JOHN L 5IBBALUCA,
Al-Whobar Representative Office

| MINDANAO WEST DIVISION | | EuroPE

MA. SALVACICON F. ALAM MARY JESSIELYM C. S1A

Basilan Branch London Representative Office

AKILI N. AMBUTONG RUEL A VELASCO

Jolo Branch Milan Represantative Office

JAMES B. BUCKLY THELMA V. VENTURAMNZA

Pagadian Branch Madrid Representative Office

ELIZABETH C. CABATINGAN

Zamboanga Branch [ MORTH AMERICA

ENRICO C. FLORES JR* RHEA BALICAS - BIGGS

Dipalog Branch Calgary Represantative Office

RUDY M. LACANDALD JONNAH A CRUZADA

Ipll Branch Vancouver Representative Office
" : ANMNA LEE A DE LEON

o A Los Angeles Represantative Office

AND POEA

FLOCERFIDA R PALMERC
POEA Branch

| Asta |

JO¥ ANN E. CABADING
Brunel Represantative Office

KATHRYMN QUINM E. EUSUYA &
LESTER PALIL 5. MATA,

Henghkong Representative Office

CELENLA D, DIMAANCG
Mew York Representative Office

MARITES C. MARIN
San Francisco, USA Representative Cifice

RCBERTO V. ROLDAN
Toronto Representative Office

" qn—
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Corporate Communications Deparment
Public AfTairs and Spacial Events Divislon

CONTRIBUTORS:
Commission Secrefariat Dapartment

Corporate Policy and Planning Department
Financisl and Budget Dhvision

Coanara| Asssurting Dopartrmont
inbarrial Audin Services Group
Managerment Services and Planning Division
Misdis AfTairs Department
Organizational Planning snd Staffing Department




SOCIAL SECURITY SYSTEM
For commients, concemns, and inquiries, pleasae contact:
Hotline: 1455
Call Center; (632) 7N7-7777

E-mail: member_relations@sss.gov.ph
Facebook: http./'www.facebook.com/S55Ph
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